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AC/AAR/348/2019
14 February 2019

The Board of Directors

Bank Alfalah Limited {"the Bank™)
Karachi

Dear Sirs

CRAFT CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

We are pleased to enclose the draft consotidated financial statements of Bank Alfalah Limited (the Bank}
and its subsidiary companies namely Alfalah Securities (Private} Limited and Alfatah GHP investment

" Management Limited (together referred to as the group), prepared by the management of Holding
- Company, for the above year, together with our draft audit report thereon to the members, initialed by us

only for identification purposes. We shall be pleased ta sign and issue our audit report, in the present or

.amended form, after:

a) the Board has approved the consolidated financial statements and these have been signed by the
Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer and three Directors of the Bank authorized in this behalf;

| b)  we have received a certified true copy of minutes of your meeting approving the consolidated

financiat stataments;

¢} we have received the audited unconsolidated financial statements of Bank Alfalah Limited for the
- year ended 31 December 2018 and audited financial statements of Alfalah Securities (Private)
Limited and Alfalah GHP investment Management Limited for the year ended 31 December 2018;

and

d) - we have received a representation letter duly signed by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Cfficer of the Holding Campany on the lines of a draft provided to the management.

2. RESI':’ONSIBILITIES OF THE AUDITORS AND THE MANAGEMENT IN RELATION TO THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1.  The responsibitities of the independent auditors in an audit of consolidated financial
statements are provided under the Companies Act, 2017 and International Standards on Auditing
as applicabie in Pakistan.

2.2.  While the auditors are responsible for forming and expressing their opinion on the financial
statements, management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017¢XIX of 2017) and for such
internal control as management determines Is necessary to enable the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error. b_,l H
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going ¢concern, dis¢losing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Group or to cease aperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

We have been informed by the management that there were no contingencies and commitments
as of the reporting date that are required to be disclosed in the accompanying consolidated

financial statements, other than those disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements,

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

We have been informed by the management that there were no transactions with refated parties
other than those disclosed in note 45 to the accompanying cansolidated financial statements.

FRAUDS AND ERRORS
We have been informed by the management of the Group that to the best of their knowledge there

have been no instances of frauds or irreqularities during the year that could have a material effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

We wish to place on record our appreciation for the courtesies and co-operation extended to us by the
management and staff of the Group at all levels during the course of our audit.

Yours faithfully

EM F”dm”

Encls:

OC/AAR/DF.
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DRAFT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the members of Bank Alfaiah Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consclidated financial statements of Bank Alfalah Limited (the Bank)
and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flows statement for the year then ended, notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and (of) its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting -
standards as applicable in Pakistan. ' '

Basis for Opinian

we conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our repart. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the international Ethics Standards Beoard for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fuffilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. D

ale
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Fallowing are the key audit matters:

J Provision against Non Performing Credit Exposure
o The Group's credit portfolios include loans We applied a range of audit procedures
: and advances, and non-funded credit including the following:
[] facilities. The credit portfalio is spread across
various domestic branches and overseas - We reviewed the Group’s process
operations. for identification and  classification  of
. ) non- performing loans including the
As per the Group's accounting policy (refer quality of underlying data and systems. As
. -l note4.5 to the financial statements), the part of such review we performed an analysis
. Group periodically assess the adequacy of its of the changes within the different categories
provisions against non-performing credit of classified non- performing accounts from last
exposures in accordance with the year to the current reporting date. This analysis
requirements of Prudential Requiations of was used to gather audit evidence regarding
, State Bank of Pakistan. Suchregulations downgrading of impaired loans and
require specific provisioning against loan lesses | dectassification of accounts from non-
on the basis of an age based criteria which performing to regular, as the case may be.
should be supplemented by a subjective :
evaluation of Group's credit portfolio. The | _ We performed independent checks

determination of loan loss provision against | for the computations of provisions in line with
certain vulnerable corporate loans, therefore, | the requirements of the applicable
involve use of management judgment, on a case Prudential Regulations.

to case basis, taking into account factors such

3 &3

as the economic and business conditions, . In addition, we selected a
v borrowers repayment  behaviors and . representative sample of borrowers from the
! realizability ~of collateral held by the credit portfolios across various branches
Group. . including individually significant corporate

joans and performed tests and procedures
such as review of credit documentation,
repayment history and past due status,
financial condition as depicted by the
borrowers’ financial statements, nature
of collateral held by the Group and status of
litigation, if any, with the borrower;

In view of the significance of this area in
terms of its impact on the tinancial
statements and the level of involvement
of management's judgment, we identified
adequacy and completeness of loan loss
“provision as a significant area of audit
judgment and a key audit matter.

) - Based on the said credit reviews, we

' identified and discussed with the management
the lean accounts where the credit risk appear
J ' - ) : to have increased, We reviewed the adequacy

of provisions against such accounts on the

basis of our independent abjective evaluation of
the risk mitigating tactors that exist in such
cases;

- . We also assessed adequacy of
disclosures as included in note 9.4 and 9.5 to the
financial statements regarding the non-
performing loans and provisions made for the
same in the financial statements in accordance
with the requirements of the applicable financial
- reporting framework.

ald
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T Preparation of Financial Statements under BPRD Circular No.02 OF 2018

As referred to in note 4.1.1 to the financial
statements, State bank of Pakistan (5BP) vide
its BPRD circular no. 02 of 2018, (the circular}
revised the statutory forms of the annual
financia! statements of Groups effective from
the year ended 31 December 2018.

The revised statutory financial reporting
framework as applicable to the Group, prescribes
the presentation format, nature and content of
disclosures in relation to various elements of the

- We assessed the procedures applied by
the management for identification of the changes
required in the financial statements due to the
application of the revised forms for the
preparation of such financiai statements.

. We also evaluated the sources of
information used by the management for the
preparation of the financial statements
disclosures and the internal consistency of the
disclosures with other elements thereof.

financial statements.

- We considered the adequacy and
appropriateness of the additional disclosures and
changes in the presentation of the financial
statements based on the reqmrements of the
statutory forms.

The above changes and enhancements in the
financial statements are considered important
and a key audit matter because of the volume and
‘significance of the changes in the financial
statements resulting from the transition to the

new reporting requirements.

Infoermation Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the ather information. The other information comprises the information

" included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report

thereon,

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance cenclusion thereon.

tn connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the

_other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with

the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard. '

Responsibllitles of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolldated Financial Statements

Management is responsible‘for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financiat statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

“due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ahilfity to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do s0.

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

s
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statemenfs

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consclidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due o fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our apinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan wili always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infiuence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

"« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financlal statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinien. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal controi.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control retevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's infernal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, ’

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether @ material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern. )

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disciosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underiying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the conselidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audif. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit. S

We aisa provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related -

safeguards. )-'1 [fv’
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From the rhatters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law cr regulation precludes public

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Other Matters:

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 were audited
by another firm of chartered accountants who expressed an unmodified opinion thereon dated 25

February 2018.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Omer Chughtai.

Chartered Accountants 9’7 {-'. -
Place: Karachi

Date:
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BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FIRANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lendings 1o financial institutions
Investments

Advances

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Assets held for sale

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and cther accounts

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Subordinated debt

Deferred tax liabilities

Cther liabilities

Liabkilities directly associated with the assets held for sale

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY

Share capial

Reserves

Surplus / {deficit) on revaluation of assels
Unappropriated profit

Total equity aitributable to the eguity holders of the Banlc

Non-controfling interest

CONTINGENCIES AND COMNMITMENTS

Nofe 2018 2047 2016
Restated Restated
(Rupees in *000)
5 82,407,736 70,381,480 74,071,394
g 3,911,554 3,093,054 0,408,787
7 62,172,287 48 895,828 30,149,029
8 279,251,731 401,742 398 389,666,922
9 501,639,727 400,659,822 378,724,300
fLf] 18,317,042 16,158,902 16,819,627
i1 1,317,271 1,508,765 1,297,310
12 35,998,315 30,831,827 31,300,165
21 23,585,489 26,821,724 -
1,008,605,152 1,001,033,900 931,627,534
13 35,988,225 20,882,970 12,888,990
14 124,017,735 207 536,919 178,710,629
15 702,847,125 644 924 984 640,854 225
16 11,889,000 4,991,000 8,317.670
17 2,530,097 3,443,042 2,911,531
18 33,805,722 27,665,519 27,021,618
21 20,435,396 24,759,095 -
931,583,300 934,203,520 870,702,664
77,021,852 665,830,380 60,524 870
19 17,742,629 16,075,720 15,952,076
23,050,754 18,158,669 15,895,652
20 7,389,127 7,309,372 11,005,315
28,323,585 24,865,838 17,747 600
76,507,095 66,407 598 60,600,643
514,757 422,781 324,227
77,021,852 66,830,380 60,924 870
22

The amexed noles 1to 50 and annexures | 1o 11 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

’
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President & Chief Executive Officer

Chigh Financid! Giticer

Pirector

Director

d Director
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EBANK ALFALAH LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOQUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

- Note 2018 2017
Restated
mreee{ RUPEES iN 000} -mmeremme

Mark-up/Return/Interest Earned - 24 59,323,522 56,183,376
Mark-up/Return/Interest Expensed 25 27,732,785 27,198,914
Net Mark-up/ Interest Income 31,590,737 28,983,462
NON MARK-UP/INTEREST INCOME
Fee and Commission Income . B 6,795,955 8,543,078
Dividend Income 357,296 461,125
Foreign Exchange Income 2,168,533 1,442 886
Incame { (loss) from derivatives (20,542) {58.908)
Gain / (Loss) on securities 27 992,335 854,425
Share of profit from assocaites 645,093 434,834
Qther Income 28 194,143 84,647
Total non-markupfinterest (ncome 11,133,813 9762087
Total Income 42,724,550 38,745,548
NON MARK-UP/INTEREST EXPENSES
Operating expenses 29 24,372,994 24,994 550
Workers Welfare Fund 30 398,390 263,697
Other charges . 31 6,430 32,727
Total non-markup/interest expenses . " * : 24,775,814 25,280,974
Profit Before Provisions v 17,948,736 13,454,575
Provisions and write offs - net : 32 545,334 {816 495)
Extra ordinary / unusual items : - -
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 17,403,402 14,071,070
Taxation a3 6,887,079 5,658,330
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 10,516,323 8412740
DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS
Profit after tax for the year from discontinued operations 21 474,952 201,064
Profit for tha year 10,981,275 8,613,804
Attributabte to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Profit for the year from continuing operations 10,423,893 8,313,852
Profit for the year from discontinuing operations 474,952 201,064

10,898,845 8,514,916

Non-contrelling interest

Profit for the year from continuing operations 92,430 08,8588
Profit for the year from discontinuing operations -

82,430 98,888

10,891,275 8,613,804

{Rupeas)

Basic Earnings per share - Restated 34 6.20 488
Diluted Earnings per share - Restated 35 619 4.86
Basic Earnings per share from continuing operations- Restated 5.93 4.76
Diluted Eamings per share from continuing operations- Restated 5.2 4.75
The annexed notes 1 to 50 and annexures | to [Il form an integral part of these consolidated financial sta

LA B sl Y o s
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President & Chief Executive Officer Chig{ﬁ: inancial Cfficer Director Director Director
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BANK ALFALAH LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017
Restated

Profit after taxation 10,991,275 8,613,804

Other comprehensive incarme

Iterns that may be reclassified to profit and loss account in subsequent periods: *

Effect of translation of net invesiment in foreign branches _ 2,974,642 492,787
Movement in surplus / {deficit) on revaluation of investments - net &f tax (2,608,585) {3,718,588)

366,057 (3,226,801)

ttems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account in subsequent pericds:

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit obligaticns - net of tax. 122,770 242,885

Movement in surplus on revaluation of operating fixed / intangible assets - net of tax 2,662,351 51,232
Movement in surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets - net of tax 25,606 5,965

. _ | 2,810,727 300,092
Total-comprehensive income ' 14,168,059 5,687,005

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 14,071,942 5,588,207
Non-conirolling interest 96,116 98,888
14,168,059 5,687,095

3 ) e

The annexed notes 1 to 50 and annexures | to |l form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BANK ALFALAH LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

oo ' ' Note 2018 2017
Restated
--------- {Rugees in 000}—-------

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profii befure taxation from ¢ontinuing cperations 17,403,402 14,071,070
Profit before taxation from discontinuing operations 780,500 339,819
Dividend income {357,298) {461,125)
Share of profit from associates (646,093] (434,834)
17,480,513 13,514,330
Adjustments )
Depreciation 1,733,162 1,832,246
Amortisation 489,716 447 802
Provisions and write offs - net 545334 {616,495}
Unrealised loss / {gain) on revaluation of investments
classified as held for trading - net 43,611 7,351
! Gain on sale of operating fixed assets - net {137,915) {(11.571)
Charge for defined benefit plan 185,753 255,138
2,859,561 1,914,471
20,040,074 15,428 401
{Increase} / decrease in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions (18,366,107) {3,797,453)
Held for trading securities (24,776,244} {7,376,396)
Advances (100,849,080} {22,610,123)
Other assets (excluding advance taxation) {3,356,879) (13,699,516)
(147,347,310} (47 483,488)
Increase / (decrease) in oparating liabilities '

D Bills payable 15,105,255 {416,54%)
Borrowings (83,4586,637) 26,886,082
Deposits 57,922,141 36,883,041
Cther liabilities (exciluding current taxation) 748,646 4,573,185

D (9.720,695) 68,025,759

(137,027,931} 35,971,672
) l Contribution made to gratuity fund {185,753} (255,138)
_ Income tax paid (5,295,164) (5,136,262}
Net cash {used in) / generated from operating activities {142,508,848) 30,580,272

§ CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net investments in available-for-sale securities 142,536,128 {23,759,564)

) Net investments in held-to-maturity securities 1,227,241 1,541,900

- Investment in subsidiaries / assuciated companies - (769,230)

Disposal of investment in subsidiaries / associated companies (126,213} 1,251,417

¥ Dividend received from associated companies 201,061 8,743

Dividends received 368,420 489,538

i Investments in operating fixed assets (1,322,251) {1.879,602)

i Proceed from sale proceeds of fixed assels 447 931 90,279

Net cash generated / {used in) froim investing activities 143,332,307 {23,026,921)
— CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance / {redemption) of sub-ordinated debt 6,998,000 {3,326,670)
- Izgue of share capital 82,489 191,722
Dividend paid (4,000,915) (1,931)
Net cash used in financing activities 3,079,574 {3,136,879)
Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches 2,974,642 482,787
Increase / {decreasa) in cash and casgh equivalents 6,877,675 4,909,258
" Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 99,766,084 90,124,073
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents {6,105,728) (1,372,976)
- 93,660,356 88,751,097
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 100,538,031 93,660,355
s
The annexed notes 1 to 50 and annexures 1 te [l form an integral part of these consoltdated fikancial statemenirh,
|
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BANK ALFALAH LIMITED
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

STATUS AND NATURE QF BUSINESS
The "Group" consists of:
Holding Company : Bartk Alfatah Limited, Pakistan

Bank Aifalah Limited (the Holding Company / the Bank} is a banking company incosporated in Pakistan on June 21, 1992 as
a public timited company. It commenced its banking operations on November 1, 1992, The Holding Company's registered
office is located at B. A Building, I. I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Bank is
engaged in banking services as described in the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and is operating through 486

- conventional banking branches including 24 sub branches [2017: 475 branchas including 22 sub branches), 10 overseas

branches {2017: 10 branches), 152 Islamic banking branches including 1 sub branch (2017: 152 branches) and 1 offshore

Percentage of Holding

- 2018 2017

Subsidiaries

* Alfalah Securities (Private) Limited, Pakistan 97 91% 97.91%
Alfalah GHP Investment Management Limited, Pakistan 40.22% 40.22%
In addition the Group maintains investments in the following:
Associates
Alfalah Insurance Limited 30% 30%
Sapphire Wind Power Company Limited 30% 30%
TriconBoston Consulting Corporation {Private) Limited 8.25% 9.25%
investment in mutual funds established under trust structure not consolidated as subsidiaries - Note 1.2.1
Alfalah GHP (slamic Pension Fund 290.76% 34.99%
Alfalaht GHP Pension Fung 24.94% 31.77%
Alfalah GHP Money Market Fund 0.80% 7.44%
Alfalah GHP Incame Fund 2051% 0.11%
Alfalah GHP Islamic Stock Fund 0.00% 0.03%
Alfalah GHP Sovereign Fund 3.22% 0.02%"
Alfatah GHP Income Multiptier Fund . 0.0004% 0.00%
Alfalah GHP Islamic Income Fund - ' 0.05% 0.03%
Alfalah GHP Cash Fund 4.02% 3.62%

e
These represent the Group's investment in mutual funds established under Trust structure, which are subsidiaries of the
Group under IFRS 10, but have not been considered for the purposes of consolidation in accordance with the directives
issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through 8.R.O 56(1) /2016 dated January 28, 2016,
The said SRQ states that the requirements of consolidation under the Companies Act 2017 and IFRS 10 'Consolidated
Financial Statements® is not applicabie in case of investiment by companies in mutual funds established under Trust structure.
Accordingly, for the purposes of Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group, the investments in these funds have been
accounted for as associates as explained in note 2.4 to these consalidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These consolidated financial statements represent financial statements of holding company - Bank Alfalah Limited and its
subsidiaries. The assets and liabilities of subsidiaries have been consoclidated on a line-by-line basis and the investment held
by the halding company is eliminated against the corresponding share capital of subsidiaries in these consolidated financial
statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consclidated financial statements bave been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards compnse of:

intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the international Accounting Standards Board (JASB) as are
notified under Companies Act 2017.

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are
notified under the Companies Act, 2017

Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1862 and the Companies Act, 2017.

Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

wy b
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Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1362, Companies Act, 2017 or the directives issued by the
SBF and the SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS or IFAS, requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the
Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives shall prevail.

The BBP has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Standard {IAS) 39, 'Finzncial insiruments: Recegnition and
Measurement and International Accounting Standard (1AS) 40, ‘Investment Property' for banking companies through BSD
Circular Letter No. 10 dated August 28, 2002 till further instructions. Further, the SECP has deferred the applicability of
Internationa! Financial Reperting Standard (IFRS) 7, 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ on banks through its netification 3.R.O
414(1)/2008 dated April 28, 2008, However, investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements
prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan through various circulars. The State Bank of Pakistan thrgugh BPRD Circular No. 04 of
2015 dated February 25, 2015 has deferred applicability of Islamic Financial Accounting Standard-3 for Profit and Loss Sharing
on Deposits (IFAS-3) issued by the ICAP and nofified by the SECF, vide their SRO No. §71 of 2013 dated June 12, 2013 for
Institutions offering Islamic Financial Services (IIFS). Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been considered
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements,

23 Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its investment with investee and has the ability to effect those return through its power over the investee.

These consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of subsidiaries from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and operating
polices. Associates as well as investment in mutual funds established under trust structure {not consolidated as subsidiaries) are
accounted for using the equity method.

Nen-controlling interests are that part of the net results of operations and of net assats of subsidiaries attributable to interest
which are not owned by the holding company. Material intra-group balances and transactions are eliminated.

2.4 Key financial figures of the Islamic Banking branches are disciosed in Annexure )l to the unconsolidated financial statements.

2.5 Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in the
current year.

s =

There are certain new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Group's accounting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the
Group's operations and therefore not detailed in these consclidated financial statements.

)

26 Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yat effective. )

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after January 01, 2019

ﬁ Standard, Interpretation or Amendment Effective date (annual periods
beginning on or after)

IFRS 3 - Definition of a Business {Amendmenis) January 01, 2020

] IFRS 9 = Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement July 01, 2018
IFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation -

i (Amendments) January 01, 2019

_J IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment

in Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets ) )

N between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment) T Not yet finalized

_J IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers July 01, 2018
IFRS 16 — Leases January 01, 2019

h IFRIC 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments January 01, 2019

_J IAS 1/ 1AS 8 - Definition of Maierial = Amendments to IAS 1 and 1AS 8 January 01, 2020
IAS 19 — Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments) January 01, 2018

[ IAS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures —
!

{Amendments) January 01, 2019

R
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The above standards, amendments and interpretations are not expected to have any material impact on the Group's
financial staternents in the period of initial application, other than IFRS 9 and IFRS 18, With regard to IFRS 9, the Group
considers that as the Prudential Regulations and other SBP directives currently provide the accounting framework for the
measurement and valuation of investments and provision against non performing loans and advances, the implementation
of IFRS 8 may require changes in the regulatory regime. Therefore, the Group expects that the SBP would issue suitabla
guidarce and instruction on the application of IFRS 9 for the banking sector of Pakistan, With regard to IFRS 18, the Bank is

- currently evaluating the impact of application of IFRS 16 on its financial statements.

There are certain new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the Group's accounting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018 but are considerad not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the
- Group's operations and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards have alsc been issusd
by the |ASB in December 2017. Such improvements are generally effective for accounting periods beginning-on or after 01

“January 2019. The group expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any impact on the group's financial
statements in the period of initial application.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of
applicability in Pakistan.

IASB Effective date {annual

Standard _ periods beginning on or after}
IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 01, 2016
IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts January 01, 2021

2.7 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan requires management to make judgerments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and incorne and expenses as weli as in the disclosure of contingent liabilities. It also requires management to exercise
judgement in application of ite accounting policies. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and in future periods if the revision affects

[ T P T
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Signiﬁcant accounting estimates and areas where judgements were made by the management in the application of acceunting
policias are as follows:

i) classification and provisioning against investments {notes 4.4 and 8)

i) classification and provisioning against non-performing loans and advances {notes 4.5 and 9)

iii) income taxes (notes 4.13 and 33}

iv) accounting for defined benefit plan and compensated absences (notes 4.10 and 38)

v) depreciation of operating fixed assets (notes 4.6 and 10)

vi) amortisation of intangibles (notes 4.6.3 and 11) .
vii) revaluation of fixed assets and non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claim {note 462 465, 10and 12.1)
viii) impairment of assets (note 4.4.5)

i) employee stock option scheme (note 40§

x) fair value measurement of financial instruments (note 42)

xi) other provisions and contingent liabilities (notes 22 and 32)

iy Xii) consolidation of subsidiaties

N

g

e 3 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
r 31 Accounting convention

- Thesa consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that certain fixed assets
and non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims are stated at revalued amounts; held for trading, available for sale
investments and derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value and defined benefit obligation which are carried at
present value.

3.2 Functional and Presentation Currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the group's functional and presentation
currency.

L-_-_’.

The amounts are rounded off to the neareét thousand rupees except as stated otherwise,

L 2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of thesa consoclidated financial statements are consistent with those
of previous financial year except as disclosed below in note 4.1,

' Changes in accounting policies

Change in reporting format

The SBP vide BPRD Circular No.2 dated January 25, 2018 specified the new reporting format for the financial statements of
banking companies. The new format has revised the disclosure requirements of the Group for the year ended December 31,

2018 which has resulted in certain additional disclosures and reclassifications of the items in these consolidated financial
statements.

Surplus / Deficit on Revaluation of Fixed Assets

The-Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the repesled Ordinance) was repesled through the enactment of the Companies Act, 2017 on

May 30, 2017. However, as directed by the Securities and Exchange Cemmission of Pakistan vide circutar number 23 dated

October 4, 2017, the financial reporting requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 were only made applicabls for repomng
periods starting fram January 1, 2018. - :

The repealed Ordinance specified the accounting treatment for the surplus on revaluation on fixed assets, wherein, a deficit
arising on revaluation of a particular property was to be adjusted against the total balance in the surplus account or, if no surplus
existed, was to be charged to the profit and loss account as an impairment of the asset. However, the Companies Act, 2017
remaved the specific provisions allowing the above treatment and hence, a deficit arising on revaluation of a particular property is
now to be accounted for in accordance with 1AS 16, which requires that such deficit is to be taken to the profit and ioss account
as an impairment.

Consequently, the Group has changed its policy for accounting for a deficit arising on revaluation of fixed assets and accordingly,
any surplus/deficit arising on revaiuation of owned property and non-grouping assets acquired in satisfaction of claims is
accounted for at individual assets level.

The effect of this change in accounting poficy, which is applied with retrespective effect, is as follows:
December 31,

2018
{Rupees in "000}
Impact over statement of financial position
Decrease-in unapprapriated profit 30,137
Increase in surplus on revaluation of assets — net of tax 30,137

impact over profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash flows is immaterial.

Adoption of [FRS 8 -.'Financial Instrument’

Curing the curmrent year, the Holding Company's Bahrain, Afghanistan and UAE Operations have, in line with their respactive

" locally applicable regulatory frameworks, adopted IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ as issued by the International Accounting

Standards Board (IASB) in July 2014. In order to ensure compliance with the regulatory framework in these countries, the
expected credit loss charge arising as a result of adoption of IFRS 9 has been retained as a general provision in these
consolidated financial statements.

As permitted by the transitionat provisions of IFRS 9, the Group elected not to restate comparative figures. Any adjustments ta
the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities at the date of transition were recognised in the opening retained earnings
and other reserves of the current period.

The adoption of this standard by the overseas branches have resulted in additional net of tax provigioning require_rnent of Rs,
81.596 million in respect of prior year which has been incorporated in the opening balance of retained earnings, while net of tax

* provision reversal of Rs. 63.820 million has been booked in profit and loss statement of overseas operations, in respect of

Had IFRS 9 not been adopted by the overseas branches, unappropriated profit, investments, advances, other assets, _ot_her
ligbilities and deferred tax liabilities as at December 31, 2018 would have been higher by Rs. 17.776 million, Rs. 18.264 million,
Rs. 0.568 millien, Rs. 4.891 milion and Rs, 6,947 million, respectively.

Measurement of Redeemable Participating Certificates - IFRS 2

During the current year, the adoption of IFRS 9 at Holding Company's Bahrain Operations has resulted in investments in
Redeemable Participating Certificates held abroad, being mandatorily measured at “Fair Value through Profit and Loss Account”.
However, based on the clarification received from the State Bank of Pakistan {SBP) vide their letter No. BPRD/RPD/2018-16203
dated July 28, 2018, such investments have been reported and measured under "Available for Sake" investments in these
constlidated financial statements. 2y f\/
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Cash and cash sgquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, balances with treasury banks, balances with other banks in current and
deposit accounts, national prize bonds, any overdrawn nostro accounts and call lengings having maturity of three months o less.

Lendings to / borrowings from financial institutions

The Group enters into fransactions of repurchase agreements (repo)' and agreements ta resell {reverse repc} at contracted rates
for a specified period of time. These are recorded as under:

Sale under repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to a repurchase agreement {repg) are retaingd in these consolidated financial statements as investments
and the counter party liability is included in borrowings. The difference between the sale and contracted repurchase price is
accrued on a time proportion basis over the pericd of the contract and recaorded as an expense.

Purchase under resale agreoments

Securities purchased under agreement to resell (reverse repo) are not recognised in these consolidated financial statements as
investments and the amount extended to the counter party is included in lendings. The difference between the purchase and
contracted resale price is acerued on a time propertion basis over the period of the contract and recorded as income.

Investments
Classification

The Group classifies its investments as follows:

Held for trading

These are investments, which are either acquired for generating profiis fm_m short-term fluctuations in market prices, inferest rate
meovements, dealers' margin or are securities included in a partfolic in which a pattern of short-term profit taking exists.

Held to maturity

These are investrents with fixed or determinabie payments and fixed maturities and the group has the positive intent and ability
to hold them till maturity.

Available for gale ' : ' .

These are investments which do not fall under the ‘held for trading’ and 'held to maturity’ categories.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant infiuence but not contral. These are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. The investment in associates are initially recognised at cost and the carrying amount of investment
is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the post acquisition profits or losses in income and its share of the
post acquisition movement in reserves,

Regular way contracts

All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the tirme frame established by requlation or market convention
are recognised at frade date, which is the date at which the Group commits to purchase or sall the investmeants.

initial recegnition and measurement

Investments are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs asscciated with investments other than held for trading
securities are included in cost of investments. Transaction costs on held for trading securities are expensed in the profit and loss

Subseguent measurement

tn accordance with the requirerments of State Bank of Pakistan, quoted securities other than those classified as 'heid to maturity’,
investment in associates and subsidiaries are subsequently remeasurcd to market value. Surplus and deficit arising on
revaluation of securities classified as 'available for sale' is taken to a separate account shown in the statement of financial
position below equity. Surplus / (deficit) arising on revaluation of investments classified as 'held for trading' is taken to the profit
and loss account. Investments clagsified as 'held to maturity' are carried at amodised cost.

Unqucted equity securities, excluding investment in subsidiaries and associates are valued at lower of cost and the hreak-up
valge. Break-u_p value of equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest
available audited financial statements. Investment in subsidiaries and associates are carried 2t cost less accumnulated

impairment losses, if any. ‘Lﬁl b/
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445 Impairment

Impairment loss in respect of equity securities classified as available for sale, associates and held to maturity is recognised
based on management's assessment of ohjective evidence of impairment as a result of cne or more events that may have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or prolonged decling in Ffair value of an equity
investmant below its cost is also considered an objeclive evidence of impairment. Provision for diminution in the value of debt
securities is made as per the Prudential Regulations issued by the Stale Bank of Pakistan. In case of impairment of available for
sale securities, the cumulative loss that has been recognised directly in surplus / (deficit} on revaluation of securities is
transferred from equity and recognised in the profit and loss account. For investments classified as held to maturity and
investment in subsidiaries and associates, the impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account,

Gains or lossos o disposal of investments during the vear are taken to the profit and loss account.

&
]

Advances

Loans and advancos

o &0 O 90O DO o«

Loans and advances including net investment in finance lease are stated net of provision against non-performing advances.
Specific and general provisions against loans and advances in Pakistan operations are made in accordance with the
reguiremants of the Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan from time to time. The net provision mads /
reversed during the year is charged to profit and loss account and accumulated provision is netted-off against advances.
Provisions pertaining to overseas loans and advances are made in accordance with the requirements of regulatory authorities of
the respective countries. Advances are written off when there are no realistic prospects of recovery.

R

Islamic Financing and Related Assets

The Group provides Isiamic financing and related assets mainly through Murzbaha, ljarah, Diminishing Musharakah,
Musharakah, Running Musharakah, Salam, Istisna, Tijara and Export Refinance under SBP Islamic Export Refinance Scheme.
The purchases and sales arising under these arrangements are not reflected in these financial statements as such but are
restricted ta the amount of facility actually, utiised and the appropriate portion of profit thereon. The income on such financings is
recognised in accordance with the principles of Islamic Shariah. The Group determines specific and general provisions agairst
Islamic financing and related assets on a prudent basis in accordance with the raquirements of the Prudential Regulations issued
by the SBP. The net provision made / reversed during the year is charged to profit and loss account and accumutated provision
is natted-off against Islamic financing and refated assets. Islamic financing and related assets are written off when there are no
realistic prospects of recovery.

Finance Lease Receivahlas

s O

Leases where the Group transfers substantially gll the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset are classified as
finance leases. A receivable is recognised on commeancement of lease term at an amount aqual to the present value of the
minimum lease payments including guarante®d residual value, if any. Unearned finance income is recognised over the term of
the lease, so as to produce a constant periadic retum on the outstanding net investment in lease. The Group detenmines specific
provisions against investment in finance lease on a prudent basis in accordance with the requirements of the Prudeniial
Regulations issued hy the SBP. The net provision made / reversed during the year is charged to profit and loss account and
accumulated provision is natted off against net investment in finance lease. The assets are writlen off when there are no realistic
prospects of recovery,

45.1 ljarch Assets (IFAS 2)

ljarah assets are stated at cost less depreciation and are disclosed as part of 1slamic financing and related assets'. The rental

received/ receivable on ljarah under [FAS 2 are recarded as income / revenue. The Group charges depreciation from the date of
- recognition of fjarah of respective assets to Mustajir. ljarah assets are depreciated over the period of ljarah using the straight line
' method. Impairment of ljarah rentals are determined in accordance with the Prudential Regulations of SBP. The prevision for
s impairment of ljarak Rentals is shown as part of 'Islamic financing and related assets'.

4.6 Fixed assets and dapreciation
4.6.1 Capital work In progross
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditure connected with specific

3 assels incurred during installation and construction peried are carried under this head. (These are transterrad to specific assets
as and when assets become available for use).

4.6.2 Proporty and Equipmant (ewned and leased)

Property and equipmept are shown at historical cost iess accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any,
i e>'<cep_1 land and buildings which are carried at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Deprecialion is charged py'applying the straight-line method using tha rates specified in note 10.2 to these consolidated financiat
statements. The_deprecnatton charge for the year is caiculated after taking into account residual value, if any. The residual
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values, useful ives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. Depraciation on

additions is charged from the date on which the assets are available for use and ceases on the date on which they are disposed
off.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carmying amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow fo the group and the cost of the item can be measurad retiably.

Land and buiidings are revalued by professionally qualified valuers every three years to ensure that the nat carrying amount does
not differ materially from their fair vatue.

A revalualion surplus is recarded in OCI and credited to the surplus on revaiualion of fixed asset in equity. However, to the extant
that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, the increasa is recognised in profit
and loss. A revaluation deficit is recagnised in the statement of profit or loss. except to the extent that it offsets an existing
surplus on the same asset recognised in the asset revaluation surplus. A lransfer from the asset revaluation surplus to retained
earnings is made for the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation
based on the asset's original cost. Additionaliy, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the
gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than
its @stimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are taken to the profit and loss account except that the related surplus /
deficit on revaluation of operating fixed assets (net of deferred taxation) is transferred directly to unappropriated profit

Intangible assets

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Such intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. The usefut lives and
amortisation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate at each reporting date. Intangible assets having an indefinite
useful life are stated at acquisition cost, less impairment loss, if any. Intangible assets are assessed for impairment, if any, as
described under note 4.14.

Goadwiil

Goodwill is measurad at cost less accumulatad impairment losses, if any. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or whenever
there is an indication of impairment, as per the requirement of 1AS 36, Impairment of Assets. An impairment charge in respect of
goodwill is recognized through the profit and loss account.

Non-b‘anking assets acquired in satisfaction of claim

Non-hanking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation thereon.
The valuation of properties acquired under this head is conducted regulary, so as to ensure that their net carrying value does not
materiaily differ from their fair value. Any surplus arising on revaluaticn of such properties is transferred to the surplus on
revaluation of non-banking assets in other comprehensive income, while any deficit arising on revaluation is charged to profit and
loss account directly. In addition, all direct costs, including legal fees and transfer costs linked with transferring the title of the
propefty to bank is accounted as an expense in the profit and loss account.

Non-current 2ssets held for sale and discontinued operations

The Croup classifies a non-current asset (or disposal group) as held for sale if it represents a separate major line of business or
a geographical area of operations or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale; and its carrying amount will be
reccverad principally thraugh a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.

A non-current asset (or disposal group) held for sale is carried at the lower of its carrying amount and the fair value less costs to
sell. Impairment losses are recognised through the profit and logs account for any initial or subsequeant write down of the non-
current asset (or disposal group) to fair value less costs 1o sell. Subseguent gains in fair value less costs to sell are recognised to
the extent they do not exceed the cumuiative impairment losses previously recorded. A non-current asset is not depreciated
while classitied as heid for sate or while pant of a disposal group classified as held for sale.

Resultantly, all assets and liabiliies of assets held for sale are presented as separate line items on statement of financial
positien. The post tax results of such eperations are presented separately in the profit and foss account,
Borrowings !/ Deposits and theair cost

a} Borrowings / deposits are recorded at tha proceeds received. f‘f
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b)

c}

d)

b) Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred using effective mark-up / interest
rate method ta the extent that they are net directly aftributable to the acquisition of or canstruction of qualifying assets.
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset {one that
takes 2 substantial pericd of time to get ready for use or sale) are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Depaosits - islamic Banking

Deposits are generated on the basis of two modes i.2. Qard and Modaraba.

Deposits taken on Qard basis are classified as 'Current Account' and Deposits generated on Modaraba basis are classified as
‘Savings Account' and 'Fixed Deposit Accounts'.

Mo profit or loss is passed on to current account depositors.
Profits realised in investment poois are distributed in pre-agreed profit sharing ratio.

Rab-ul-Maal {Customer} share is distributed among depositors according to weightages assigned at the inception of profit
calculation period. '

Mudarib (Bank) can distribute its share of profit to Rab-ul-Maal upto a specified percentage of its profit.

Profits are distributed from the pocl so the depositers {remunerative} only bear the risk of assets in the paol during the profit
calcutation pariod,

Asget pools are created at the holding company's discretion and the holding can add, amend, transfer an asset to any other pool
in the interests of the deposit holders. : :

In case of loss in & pool during the profit calculation period, the loss is distributed among the depositors (remunerative)}
aceopding ta their ratio of Investments.

Subordinated loans

=

Subordinated lpans are initially recorded at the amount of proceads recaived. Mark-up accrued on subordinated loans is

recognised separately as part of other liabilities and is charged to the profit and loss account over the period on an accrual basis.

Staff retirement | Employee benefits
Defined benefit plan

The Holding Company operates an approved funded gratuity schems, administered by the trustees, covering eligible employess
whose period of employment with holding company is five years or more. Contributions to the fund are made on the basis of
actuarial recommendations. Projected Unit Credit Method is used for the actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.

The subsidiary - Affalah Securities operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its employees who have completed the
qualifying period as defined in the scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit scheme is determined using
the "Projected Unit Credit Method". Actuarnial (remeasurement) gains and losses are recognised as income or expense in full in
the year in which thay occur in other comprehensive income,

Defined contribution plan

The Holding Company operates an approved provident fund scheme for all its regular permanent employees, administered by
the Trustees. Equal monthly contributions are made both by the Holding Company and its employees to the fund at the rate of
8.33% of the basic salary in accordance with the terms of the scheme.

The subsidiary - Alfatah GHP operates an approved funded contributary provident fund for all its permanent employees to which
equal monthly contributions are made both by the company and the employees at the rate of ten percent of basic salary.

Compensated ahsences

The Hoiding Company recegnises the liability for compensated absences in respect of employess in the period in which these
are earned up to the balance sheet date. The provision has been recognised on the basis of actuarial recommendations.

Employees Stock Option Scheme

The Holding Company has granted share options to its employees under the Bank's Employee Stack Options Scheme (ES0S) ,
as approved by the shareholders and SECP. Under the scheme, the employees can subscribe to new ordinary shares for which
options have been granted to them under the scheme upto the period of 2019. As per the scheme the entittemants and exercise
price are subject to adjustments because of issuance of right shares and bonus issues.

The grant date fair value of equity settled share based payments to employees, determined as option discount as allowed by
Fublic Companies (Employee Stock Option Scheme) Rules 2001, is recognized as employee compensation expense on a
straight fine basis over the vesting period with a consequent cradit to equity as employee stock option compensation reserve,
The deferred employee stock option cost is shown as a deduction from employee stock option compensation resarve. Opfion
discount means the excess of market price of the share at the date of grant of an option under a Scheme over exercise price of

the option. /,_‘_t 7
fv
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4.11.1

4.11.2

When an unvested option lapses by virtue of an emploves: not venforming to the vesting conditions after recognition of an
employee compensation expense in the profit and loss account, such employee compensation expense is reversed in the profit
and loss account equal to the amortized portion with a corresponding effect ta employee stock oplion compensation reserve
equal to the un amaortized portion.

~When a vested option lapses on expiry of the exercise period, employee tompensation expense already recognized in the profit

or lcss is reversed with a corresponding reduction to employee stock option compansation reserve.

When the cptions are exercised, employee stock option compensation reserve relating to these options is transferred to share
capital and share premium. An amount equivalent ta the face value of related shares is transferred to share capital. Any amount
over and above the share capital is transferred to share premium.

Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consclidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Group operates.

Transactions and balances

-

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani rupzes at the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction date.
Foreign- exchange gains and losses resulting from the setflement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit and loss

_account.

4.11.3

4114

411.5

4.12

4.12.1

4.12.2

Forwarg contracts relating to foreign currency deposits are valued at forward rates applicable to the respective maturities of the
relevant foreign exchange contract. The forward cover received / paid on forward purchase contracts relating to foreign currercy
depasits are realised / charged directly to profit and loss account.

ForeiQn operations’

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into rupees at the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. The

. results of foreign cperations are translated at average rate of exchange for the year.

Translation gains and losses

Translation gains and losses arising an revaiuations of net investment in foreign operations are taken to Exchange Translation
Reserve in the statement of comprehensive income. These are recognised in the profit and loss account on disposal.

Commitments

Commitments for outstanding forward fareign exchange contracts are disclosed at contracted rates. Contingent Habilities
commitments for letters of credit and letters of guarantee denominated in foreign currencies are expressed in rupee terms at the
exchange rates ruling on tha reporting date.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that the economic’ benefits associated with a transaction will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured. .

Advances and investments
Inccme en performing advances and debt securities is recognized on a time proportion basis as per the terms of the contract.

Where debt securities are purchased at a premium or discount, such pramium / discount is amortised through the profit and loss
account aver the remaining maturity of the debt security using the effective yield method.

- Income recoverable on classified advances and investments is recognized on a receipt basis. Income on rescheduled /

restructured advances and investments is recognized as permitied by SBP regulations or by the regulatory authorities of the
countries where the Holding Company operates.

~ Murabaha income is recognised on deferred income basis.

Lease financing

Incorme from lease financing is accounted for using the financing mathad. Under this method, the unearned lesse income
{defined as the sum of fotal lease rantals and estimated residual vatue less the cost of the leased assets) is deferred and taken
to income over the term of the fease so as 1o produce a constant periedic rate of return on the outstanding net investment in the
lease. Gains or losses on termination of lease contracts are recognised as income when these are realised. Unrealised lease
income and other fees on classified leases are recognised on a receipt basis,

ljarah income is recognised on an accrual basis as and when the rentals becemes due.

alid
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4.17

4.18

4,19

5 - BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

Non Markup /! interestincome

Fee, commission and brokerage income are accaunted for on receipt basis,

Dividend income is recognised at the time when the group's right to receive the dividend has been established.
QOther income is recognised on accrual basis.

Remuneration for investment advisory and asset management services are recegnised on an acerual basis.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. income tax expense is recognised in the profit and loss account except
to the extent that it retates to items recognised directly in cther comprehensive income in which case it is fecognised in statermeant
of comprehensive income.

Current

Provision for currant taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into consideration available
tax credit 2nd rebate, if any. The charge for current tax alsc inciudes adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prior
years, which arises from assessments / developments during the year.

Deferred

Peferred tax is recogniseqd using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences arising between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for the taxation purposes. The amount of
deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settierment of the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available and the credits can be ulilised. Defeired tax asset is reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the refated tax benefits wiil be realised.

Deferred tax liability is not recognised in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with exchange translation reserves
of foreign branches, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Impairment

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment of
any asset or group of assets. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment
losses are recognised immediately in the unconsolidated financial statements. The resulting impairment loss is taken to the profit
and loss account except for impairment Joss on revalued assets, which is adjusted against related revaluation surplus to the
extent that the impairment l0ss does not exceed the surplus on revaluation of that asset.

Provision for claims under guarantees

Provision for guarantee claims and other off balance sheet obligations is recognised when intimated and reasonable certainty
exists for the group to seltle the abligation. Expected recoveries are recognised by debiting the customer's account. Charge o
the profit and loss account is stated net-of expected recoveries.

Other Provisions

Other provisions are recognisad when tha Group has a present, legal or construclive, obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of rescurces will be required to setide the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the statement of financial position as they are possible obligations where it has yet to
be confirmed whether a liability, which will ultimately result in an outflow of economic benefits, will arise, If the probability of an
outflow of economic_resources under contingent liability ts considered remote, it is not disclosed.

Off-setting

Financial assets and financial liabilites are off-set and the net amount reported in the consolidated financial statements only
when there is a legally enforceable right o set-off the recognised amount and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and to setie the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expense items of such assets and liabilities are also
off-set and the net amount is reported in the financial statements.

Derivative financiai instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date at which the derivative contract is entered into
and subsequently remeasured at fair value using appropriate valuation techniques. All derivative financial instruments are carried
as assets where fair value is positive and as liabilities where fair value is negative. Any changes in the fair value of derivative
financial instruments are taken to the profit and loss account. ;_,1 b’
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Acceptances

Acceptances comprise undertakings by the Group to pay bilis of exchange drewn on customers. The Group expects most
acceptances to be simultanecusly settled with the reimbursement from the customers. Acceptances are accounted for as on
balance sheet transactions.

"

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves after the reporting date, except appropriations which are required under the law, are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements in the year-in which these are approvetl.

Earnings per share

The group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) tor its shareholders. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

Segment reportlng

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting structure of the Group. Segmented
performance is reported to the senior management of the holding company on monthly basis for the purpose of strategic decision
making and perfarmance management.

4.231 Business segments

Retail banking

This includes loans, deposits, trading activity, wealth management and other banking transactions with retail, individual
customers, commercial and small and middle sizad customers of the Holding Company. Product suite offered to individual
customers includes credit cards, auto loans, housing finance and personal loans.

' Corporate banking .
This comprises of loans, depasits, project financing, trade financing, investment banking and other banking activities with
the holding company’s corporate and public sector customers.

Treasury
This segment includes liquidity management activities carriad out through borrowing, lending, money market, capital market

and merchant banking cperations. The investments of the hoiding company primarily towards government securities and risk
management activities via use of forward contracts & derivatives are reported here,

Digital banking

This segment includes branchless banking accounts, deposits and lending products, digitat channels (including ATMSs,
internst banking, call centre and alfa app}, corporate, G2P & SMME porttolio (including EOBL, BISP, payrcil solutions), d|g|tal
payments and digital products.

Islamic banking'
This seqment pertains to full scale [slamic Banking operations of the holding company.

International operations
This segment includes amounts related to Bank's overseas opevations, namely, commercial banking activities m
Bangladesh, Afghanistan, United Arab Emirates and whaolesale banking actives in the Kingdom of Bghrain. N

Retail Brokerage
it includes asset management activities mainly through the subsidiary Alfalah Securities (Private) Limited.

Asset Management
It includes asset management activities mainky through the subsidiary Alfatah GHP Investment Management Limited.

Others
This includes the head office related activities, and all other activities not tagged to the segments above.

4.23.2 Geographical sagments

The Group operates in three geographical regions being:

- Pakistan
- Asia Pacific {including South Asia)

- Middle East ’UT <4
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5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

T AN T BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

Note 2018 2017

--——{Rupees in 000)---—--
CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS

In hand
Local durrency 51 11,801,738 10,464,315
Foreign currency 52 5,711,022 4 031,567
- 17,512,761 14,495,882
With State Bank of Pakistan in '
Local currency current account 5.3 31122141 28,767,491
Foreign currancy. current account ' 5.4 4,413,423 2,927,953
Foraign currency deposit account ' 5.5 10,831,812 6,998,383

46,467,376 38,693,837

With other central banks in

Fareign currency current account : 5.6 2,733,265 1,403,720
Foreign currency deposit account 56 744,879 555,392
3,478,144 1,959,112

With National Bank of Pakistan in local currency current account 14,931,225 15,208,850

Prize bands : 18,230 23,799

82,407,736 70,381,480

This includes cash in transit amounting to Rs. 77,743 miflicn (2017: Rs. 7.001 million).
This includes cash in transit amounting to Rs. 478.410 million (2017: Rs. 4.230 million).

This includes stalutory liquidity reserves maintained with the SBP under Section 22 of the Barking Companies QOrdinance,
1962. :

As per BSD Cireular No. 9 dated December 3, 2007, cash reserve of 5% is required to be maintained with the State Bank
of Pakistan on deposits held under the New Foreign Currency Accounts Scheme (FE-25 deposits).

Special cash reserve of 15% is required to be maintained with the State Bank of Pakistan on FE-25 deposits as specified in
BSD Circular No. 14 dated June 21, 2008, Profit rates on these deposits are fixed by SBP on a monthly basis. These
deposits carry markup rates ranging from 0.56% to 1.35% per annum {2017: 0.068% to 0.37%).

These represent deposits with other central banks to meet their minimum &ash reserves and capital requirements pertaining
to the overseas operations of the Bank. The deposit accounts carry markup 0.82% to 1.71% (2017: 0.31% tc 1.01%).

L
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8.3

7.1.1

7.4.2

7.2

BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
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Note 2018 2017
SO YRR Y 11T1) Re—

In Pakistan
In current account - 457,760 530,401
In deposil account 6.1 14,184 228,801
468,944 758,002
Qutside Pakistan
In current account ' - 2,184,134 1,301,341
in deposit account 6.3 1,258,476 1,832,711
3,442,610 3,234,052
3,911,554 3,993,054

This represents funds deposited with various banks at profit rates ranging from 2.88% to 8.05% per annum (2017 1.73% to
3.75% per annum}

This includes amount held in Automated Investment Plans. The Bank is entitled to earn interest from the correspondent
banks at agreed upon rates when the balance exceeds a specified amount,

This includes placerhenl‘ of funds generated through foreign currency deposits scheme (FE-25) and non-contractual
deposits at interest rates ranging from 1.00% to 3.00% per annum {2017 1.00% 1o 8.40% per annumj.

LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Call f clean money lendings 7.14 15,166,288 20,255,936

Repurchase agreement lendings(Reverse Repo) 7128473 37,214,313 11,848 536

Bal Muaijal receivable with other financial institutions 7.1.3 9,811,504 16,791,356
. 82,192,105 48,895,828

Less: expacted credit loss - overseas branches (19,818) -

| ending to Financial Institutions - net of provision 652,172,287 48,895,828

These represent lendings to financial institutions at interest rates ranging from 0.50% 1o 9.90% per annum (2017: 1.5% to
9.75% per annum) having maturities upto June 2019 (2017: March 2018).

These represent short term lending to financial institutions against investmant securities. These carry markup rates ranging
from 3.00% to 10.45% per annum (2017: 5.8% to 6.2% per annum} with maturities upto January 2019 (2017: June 2018).

These represent Bai Muajjal agreements entered into with State Bank cof Pakistan (SBP) / other commercial banks. The
rates of return range from'9.90% to 10.05% per annum (2017: 5.71% to 5.80% per annumy}, and these are due to mature by
Mareh 2019 {2017: March 2018).

Particulars of lending - gross

In Jocal currency ) 55,400,871 43,346,538
In foreign cusrencies 6,791,234 5,549,2an
62,192,108 48,895,828

i
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7.3 Securities held as collateral against Lending to financial institutions

81

Market Treasury Bills
Pakistan Invesiment Bonds
Total

INVESTMENTS Note

Investments by typsa:

Held-for-trading securities
Federal Governmen Securilies
Markel Treasury Bills
Pakistan invesimant Bonda
Shares

Fully paid up ordinary shares /
units - Listed

Foraign Securities
Overseas Bonds - Soveraign

Avallable-for-sale securities
Federal Government Securitias
Market Treasury Bills
Fakistan Investment Bonds
Govemment of Pakistan Sukuks
Government of Pakistan Euro Bonds
Shares
Fully pald up ordinary shares -
Listed

Fully paid up ardinary shares -
Unlisted

Preference Shares - Listed
Preference Shares - Unlisted

Nen Govermnment Del Securities
Term Finance Carlificates
Sukuks
Commercial Papers

Foreign Sacurities
Overseas Bonde - Sovereign
Qverseas Bonds - Othets
Redesmable Participating Certificates

Held-to-maturity securities
Federal Government Securities
Markel Treasury Bills
Pakistan Investment Bonds
Govemment of Pakistan Euro Bonds
Other Federal Governmenl Securities
Nan Sovemmeant Debt Securilies
Term Finance Certificales
Sukuks .
Fareign Securities
Overseas Bonds - Sovereign
Ovaraeas Bonds - Jhers

Assoclates {valued at equity methad  8.9.1

General provision and expacted
credit 1095~ :

Cuerseas operations

Total Investments

- BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

2018, 2017
Heldby | Furher Helg by | Further
Bank given as Total Bank given as Total
_ collataral ‘ coliateral
(Rupees in '000')
28,757,067 - 28,757,067 5593265 - 5,503 265
8,457,246 - 8457246 1,003,918 5,251353 5,255 271
37,214,313 - 37,214,313 6,597,183 5251353 11,848,536
2015 2017
Cost f Provision Surplua /. Carrying Cost/ Provision Surplus f Carrying
Amortised cast| | OF (Deficit Valye | Amortised for {Deficlt) val
diminution cost diminution alue
{Rupees in '000")
45,898 257 - {13,261)} 45,885,696 22,759,650 - (11,486} 22,748,164
1,209,673 - (13,174) 1,196,499 - - -
184,797 - {23,227} 141 570 28,140 - {990} 27,150
302,689 - 6,151 o8, 25¢ 14,443 - 5,125 24,568
47,875,126 - {#3,511) 47,532,615 22,807,233 - {7.351)  22,799.882
114,893,151 - {40,902)] 114,862,249 | 162,885001 - (g2.650)! 162,502,351
26,490,800 - {464,211} 26,026,589 | 108,088,932 - 3,156,472 | 111,245,404
15,726,083 - {120,264)| 15,805,819 34,204,664 - 315,035 34,599,699
2,440,078 - (134,045) 2,308,031 2,281,177 - 108,351 2,386,528
7,390,808 (22,383) 718,558 8 086,983 5,786,367 {15,000) 396,022 6,187 388
382,055 {59,661} - 322,394 350,507 (103,293} - 247,214
108,536 {108,835) - - 108,835 (108,835) - -
25,000 {25.000) - - 25,000 {25.000) - -
1,504,128 1359,706) {12,071} 1,132,349 1,287,084 {302,904) {8.474) 685,708
4,776,082 {96,510} 323,930 5,002,502 1673571 {102,142} 43,563 3,614,992
- - . . 90,201 - - 90,201
1,357,353 - (49,426) 1,307 927 552,041 - 1,858 554,000
9,147,217 - (223,871) 8,923 548 8,626,230 - 3,821 8,828,851
2,362,923 - - 2,362,923 1,133 658 - - 1,193,858
186,603,508 (672,095) {(2,102) 185929312 320,183,269 (857,174) 3,930,699 332456954
- - - - 1,470,741 - 1,470,741
26,280,950 - - 26,280,980 | 31,537.988 . - 31,637,988
243,019 . - 243,011 193,239 - - 193,239
4,122,216 - 4,122, 218
£24 266 {524,28E) . . 524,288 {524,268} - -
2,689,985 (141,399} - 2,548,566 4,057 810 {167,890} - 3,929,820
8,185,947 . - 8,185,847 5,492 369 5,492 168
690,721 - - B30, T21 548,143 - - 548 143
42,737,116 [665,665) - 42 071,450 43,964 358 (692, 156) - 43,272,200
2761612 - . 3761612 2213322 - - 3213322
- {43,258} - 143,258) - - - .
280,678,362 {1,381,018) {45,613) 279,251,731 389,168,180 (1.349.330) 3,923,548 401,742,398
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The details of investments accounied for under equity method of accounting is as follows.

BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

8.1.1 Movement in values of investments accounted for under equity method of accounting

2048
'In've_stmén Investment Redeemad Dividend Share of Balance as
N . ‘tasat = made during during the received profit/ at December
v - January 4 the year year during the year  [Loss) (3!
Alfalah Insurance Company Limitad 319,725 - - - 21,198 340,921
Sapphire Wind Power Company Limited . . 1,557,584 - - {219,000) 567,299 1.605.883
TriconBoston Consulting Corporation (Private) Limited 764,575 - - - 29,318 793,893
Alfalah GHP Money Market Fund 81,416 137,256 {205,000 {15,442) 583 298,913 .
Alfatah GHP Income Multiplier Fund +] - - - - 6
Alfalah GHP Sovereign Fund 491 75071 - (20 58 75,600
Alfalah GHP Income Fund 1,529 153,806 - {2,290 4,292 157 437
Alfalah GHP Isfamic Income Fund 5,576 o4 - (197} 54 5,827
Alfalah GHP Peanslon Fund 86,343 - - - 538 86,881
Alfalah GHP Islamic Ponsion Fund 86,277 - - - (326) 85,951
Alfalah GHP Islamic Stock Fund - . - - - -
Alfatah GHP Cash Fund 0800 | - 384 - 116 10,300
- — (236949) 623128 3,761,612
27
Investmen Investment Redeemed Bividend Share ol DBalance as
tasat madaduring duringthe racelved profitf  at Decomber
January 1 the year year during the year  (Loss) 3
Alfalah Insurance Compary Limiled 282,909 - - - 36,816 319,725
Sapphire Wind Pawer Company Limited 1,221,237 - - - 336,347 1,557,584
TriconBoston Consulting Corporation (Private) Limited Coa 769,230 - - {4,855) 764,575
Alfalah GHP Money Market Fund §7.287 379,088 (58,440 - 3,500 381,418
Alfalah GHP Income Multiplier Fund 298,473 25,968 {330,948) {1,281) 7.804 B
Alfalah GHP Sovereign Fund 253,490 1,602 {258,911) {2.136) 6,446 481 - -
Alfalah GHP Income Fund 169,745 180.491 {350,000 (7.321) 5614 1,528
Alfalah GHP Islamic Income Fund. 6,563 148,981 {150,000) {307) 215 5576
Alfatah GHP Pension Fund - 90,000 - - {3.657) 86,343
Alfalah GHP Isiamic Pension Fund - 90,000 - - {3.723) 86,277
Alfalah GHP Islamic 5tock Fund ‘438, 502 - (467.178) - 21 676 -
Alfalah GHP Cash Fund 534,264 9,763 (553,523 {150} 19,448 8,800
. {11,205) 434,833 3,213,322
8.1.2 Particulars of assats and Habilitles of associates and mutual funds estabilshed
under trust structure not considered for consolidatlon.
2018
FinanclaID:tta:amoms : Agsels Liabilities Revanue :;:?: ::r::: '
verrrarrassannsnarneeses (RUPBES N 000) s ivveeiimnnenns
Alfalah insurance Company Limited December 31, 2018 3,187,385 2,115,633 112,924 70,653
Sapphire Wind Power Gompany Limited December 31, 2018 15,866,719 10,038,327 1,670,653 837.917
TriconBoston Consulting Corporation {Private) Limited December 31, 2018 46,805,961 38,350,514 2,085,328 365,622
Alfaiah GHP Money Market Fund December 31, 2018 13,804,942 56,7368 421,847 378,539
Alfalah GHP Income Multipller Fund December 31, 2018 470,770 23,886 13,455 7.575
Alfalah GHP Sovereign Fund December 31, 2018 1,762,416 826,233 37,082 27 665
Alfalah GHP Income Fund December 31, 2018 325,279 15,491 14,384 10,341
Alfalah GHF islamic lncome Fund December 31, 2018 4,612,301 16,943 175,274 134,527
Alfalah GHP Pension Fund December 31, 20138 139,752 594 {1,413} {2.819)
Alfalah GHP Islamic Pension Fund December 31, 2018 114,680 497 {1.424) 2.811
Alfatah GHP Cash Fund December 31, 2018 116,582 14,493 5,355 3,704
- 2017
Financial statemants  Assets  Liabililes  Revenue | ontforthe
Data year { pariod
[N | 7111138 [ T 11 1) RO
Alfalah Insurance Company Limited December 31, 2017 3,169,013 2,118,909 $9,598 122,720
Sapphire Wind Power Company Limited December 31, 2017 13,702,492 8,685,386 1,184,593 468,632
TriconBaston Consulting Corporation (Private} Limited December 31, 2047 24,253,943 16,107 746 - {35,196)
Alfalah GHP Monhay Market Fund December 31, 2017 5,176,858 25,707 57,420 47 487
Alfalah GHP Income Multiplier Fund December 31, 2017 689,548 33,948 67,014 46,705
Alalah GHP Savereign Fund December 31, 2017 1,500,627 663,108 38,052 28,087
Alfalah GHP Income Fund December 31. 2017 560,723 15,608 29,641 19,995
Alfaiah GHP Istamic Income Fund December 31, 2017 7.250,318 19,943 177,165 128 968
Alfatah GHP Pension Fund December 31, 2017 109,768 985 {3.202) {4,535)
Alfalah GHP Istamic Pension Fund December 31, 2017 99,901 955 {4.071) (5357}
Alfalah GHP Cash Fund December 31, 2017 119,408 14,336 5431 3.415

o1
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n 2013 017
nmi‘::i:'nd Prouisiofl fort Surplus | Carrying C’T“t me‘:: o 5urplu.!s." Carrying Value
82  Investments by segments: cot diminution {Deficit Value fAamortised cos diminution (Defleid)
(Rupeea In "b0KF)
: Federat Government %ncumlcs:
Market Treaswy Bilis 160,792,108 - {54,163)] 160,737 945 187,115,382 - (24,135} 187 Q024,256
Pakistan Inyasiment Boads 53901 453 - [477,385) £3,504 078 138,725 920 - 3,156,472 1432 BE3, 392
i 4 Pakistan Eura Bonds 2,681,087 - (134,045)| 2,549,042 2474410 - 105,351 2579767
D Othar Fadaral Govamment Sacurities 4,923,215 - - 4,122,215 - - - -
Government of Pakistan Sukuks 14,726 D43 - 120 264/ 15 &0 5‘01 9 3‘@&5& - )l 5__0_3_5 34.5_99.699
N . 237,304,958 - (TA5 85T) 236,510,099 363,601,382 - 3,462, 722 367 084,114
) Shares:
Listess Companias l ¥,604,540 (101.219)]  e9s3n l 8,226,553 I L 5,623,242 I f123,3351| 395.032 ] §,194.539 |
Unlisied Companias 407,055 (B4,681] - 322,394 275.507 1128,283) - 247,214

B,071,495 {245,879] 655,331 8,550,947 5,258,048 [252,128) 245,032 6,441,753
Non Govarnment Debt Securities .

Listed I 851,765 1,785 12,091 ‘ 685,641 | 201.825 | 2.185 | 1.553 305,663
Unhisted 8441 ET4 (1,123,886) 264,763 2017776 #.381.007 1,099,387} 33,538 B.315,158
9.433,439  [1,121,80%) 311,359 8,683,417 9EB293Z  {1097.202) 45,089 5,520,819
Foreign Sutuwritins r
Gavamnient $ecurilias I 9,845,899 - l 43,215 9,802,724 ” 6,003,053 ‘ . I 7084 ] a.cm.m‘
Hon Govamment Debt secusitien 12,200,681 - (223.8671)] 11977190 10,308,032 - 2,621 10,241,653
! 22,046,850 - (266,946) 21779914 18,371 685 - 10,70% 16,382,390
- Basacisins (valued ai Bq.l:lil]' mahod}
Alfalah Insuranca Limited 340,924 - - 34090 313,725 - P 310,725
R Sapphire YWind Power Company Limited - 1,995,883 - - 1,905,883 1,557 584 - - 1,557,584
E TriconBosion Consuling Corpocation [Privale) Limited 793,093 - - 783,853 764,575 - - 764,575
i Alfalan GHF Money Market Fund 298,913 - . 208,813 61448 - - 381,416
Adfmiah GHP Incame Muitpliar Fund & - - ] L] - . L]
Alfalah GHF Eovareign Fund 75,600 - . 5,600 A - . 481
AKalan GHP Incoeme Fund 187437 - - 187,437 1,528 - - 1.528
Altalah GHP Islamit Ineame Fund 582¥ - X - 5027 55M% - - 5,576
_ Altatah GHP Pansion Fund 86,881 - . 86,881 86,343 - - 86,343
Alfalah GHP |slamic Pension Fund 85,951 - - 85,951 86,277 - - 88277
Altalah GHP Cash Fund 10,300 - - 10,300 #.800 - - 9,600
. 3,Ys1.812 - - ATe1812 3213922 - . - 3213322
General pravision 2nd expectad credit loss- Cversaas operations 143,258) ’ {43,258) - - - -
Tatal Investmants 280,678,362 (1,361,098 (45,613) 279251731 399,168,140 11,348,320) 3,923,548 401,742,388
8.2.1 Investments given as coliateral ' 218 2017
-——{Rupees in 000)-------
Market Treasury Bills ) 39,445,702 85,274 643
Pakistan Investment Bonds ) . 15,854,600 54,920,622
Pakistan Euro Bonds : - 645 802
Overseas Bonds 4,818,676 3,621,444
Sukuk Bonds : 3,885,853 6,939,721
84004637 _ 161802232,
E The market value of securilies givan a3 colleral is Rs. B3,858.995 milion (2017 Rs. 163,429,313 million}.
m 83 Provision for diminutien in value of investmants .
§.3.1 Opening balance ) 1,349,330 1,263,781
~ Impact of adoption of IFRS 09 - overseas branches ) 77698 -
. 1,427 028 1,253,781
: Exchange adjusiments 13,876 -
Chargs / reversals
Charge for tha year : ' RE, 766 111,134
Reversals for the year (88,073) (15.539)
Reversal on disposals . -
" 12,307) 95 505
Transfers - ne {3,947 {48}
Pravision adjusted during the year {43 632) -
Clasing Balance ’ 1381048 1,348,330
8.3.2 Particulars of pravision against debt securities .
- Category of classHication ___20i8 2017
S HP Provision NP Provigion
i Domaestic B LIT T LA | Y T1) SR
Other essets especially mentioned s : . . - _
Substandasd ’ - Lo - - - -
— Doubtul : : S . R - .
Loss 1,121,881 1,121,889 1,087 202 1,097,202
1,121,881 1,121,884 1.097.202 1,097,202
L) Overseas
Not past due but impaired . - - -
Cverdug by:
Upto B0 days . - . .
‘ 9110 180 days - . . .
| 181 [ 365 days - - . -
— > 365 days X ; ; i
Total 1,121,881 1,121,881 1.097.202 1.997 262
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8.4 Quality of Available for Sala Securities

Details regarding quality of Available for Sale (AFS) securilies are as foillows:

]

Faderal Govarnment Securitias - Government guarantesd

2018

BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

2017

Cost
..... {Rupees In 000)——

i Market Treasury Bills 114,893,151 162,885,001
i Pakistan Investment Bonds 26,480,800 108,088,032
Government of Pakistan Sukuks 15,726,083 34,284 664
Government of Pakistan Eurc Bonds 2,440,076 2.281 177
r 159,650,110 307,530,774
Shares
r Listed Companies
Ordinary Sharos
. Automobile Parts & Accessories 169,584 123,882
Cement 1,224,060 1,752,247
Chemicals 17,909 17,908
Commercial Banks 1,596,590 812,564
. Engineering 333,633 167,071
é Fertilizer 308,635 444 315
i Insurance 92,708 -
Investrnent Banks 15,000 15,000
Oil and Gas Exploration Companies 1,754,619 835,827
it Cil and Gas Marketing Companies 534,549 290,839
Q Pharmaceuticals 202,738 -
© Power Generation & Distribution 749,175 855,961
Real Estate Investment Trust 372,083 457,843
i Miscellaneous 19,518 13,109
. 7,390,808 5,786,367
Preference Shares
U Fertilizer 108,835 108,835
7,499,843 5,895,202
U 2018 2017
Unlisted Companies . " Break up valua Cost Braakup value Cost Breakup value
as at {Ruboes in ‘000)
Ordinary Sharas
hid AGP Pharma Limited ** . - 256,212 212 544
Al-Hamra Avenue (Private) Limited June 30, 2010 50,000 47,600 50,000 47 600
Pakistan Export Finance Guarantee )
Agency Limited June 30, 2010 5728 286 5725 286
Fakistan Mobile Communication Limited Dec 31, 2017 --'22238 53,450 22,235 33,752
Pakigian Mortgage Refinance Company Limited Dec 31, 2017 309,000 300,686 12,240 12,299
Saciety for worldwide Interbank Financial
Telecommunication Dec 31, 2016 4,095 11,754 4,095 11,754
382,055 413,476 360,507 318,235
Preferenca Shares
Trust Investment Bank Limited Dec 31, 2017 25,000 27,784 25,000 27,700
407,055 441,260 375,507 345,935

[ won B e B cov B <

) = =
|
|

** Represent securities listed during the year and hence reclassified to listed cumpanie.ui'(,/7 A
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|

Non Government Debt Securitios

Listed

Categorised based on long term rating by Credit Rating Agency .

- AAA

- AR AN, AA-

- A AL A

- BBB+, BBB, BBB-
- BB+, BB, BB-
-B+ B.B-

- CCC and below

- Unrated

tUnlisted

Categorised basad on long term rating by Credit Rating Agency.

- AARA
- AR+, AA, AA-
-AY A A
- BBB+, BBB, BBB-
- BB+, BB, 8B-
-B+ B.B-
- CCC and below
- Unrated

Forgign Securities

Government Securities

Abu Dhabi Government Inl Bond 2027
Saudi Intemational Band 2026

Kingdom of Bahrain Sukuk

Non Government Debt Securities

Unlistod

Categorised based on long ferm mting by Credit Raling Agency

- ASA

- Al AA, AA-

- A AL A

- BEB+, BRA, BBA-
- BB+, BB, BB-
-B+, B, B-

- CCC and below

- Unrated

23

2018

Cost

2017

—=w--[RUp@as i 000} -w---

- 99.860
550,000 100.000
99,980 99,880
1,785 2,185
651,765 301,825
4,444,440 2,600,000
1,183,003 2,158,931
5,627,443 4,758,931
2018 2017
Cost Rating Cost Rating
{Rupees in "000) {Rupees in '000}
685,183 AR - .
872470 Al -
- 552,040 B+
1,357,353 552,040
2018 2017
emneee{RUP@8S In 0G0)erreenm

- 877192
8,040,314 5,396,168
1,106,803 1,209,742
- 1,043,129
2,362,923 1,133,658
11.510,140 9,759,590

BANK ALFALAH LIMITED
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2018 2017
Cost
w-—{Rupees in 000}
8.5 Particulars relating to Held to Maturity securities aro as follows:

Faderal Government Securities - Government guaranteed

-
N Market Treasury Bills - 1,470,741
Pakislan Investment Bonds . .- 26,280,990 31,637,968
M Pakistan Euro Bonds 243,011 193,239
] Other Federal Government Securities ' 4,122,215 -

30,848,216 33,301,988

Non Government Debt Securities

—J

Unlisted
Categorised based on fong term rating by Credit Rating Agency
.i..
- AAA . ) 1,041,670 1,041,670
- AR+, AA, AA- 566,667 1,133,333
- At AL B 180,230 254 918
- Unrated 1,415,664 2,182,155

§ 3,214,231 4,622 076
Foraign Securitles
- . 2018 2017 :
37 Government Securilies Cost Rating Cost Rating
: (Rupees In ‘000) ({Rupees in "000}
u Bangladesh Government Bonds .. 7,497,232 Unrated 4945043 | Unrated
State of Qatar 688,715 Ah- 547 126 Ab-
8,185,947 5,482 169
u Non Government Debt Securities s ' - 2018 2017
’ ’ ’ Cost
E Unlisted ) ——(RUpees in 000)-----m-
- BBB+, BBB, BBB- 690,721 548,143
' 680,721 548,143

8.5.1 The markel value of securities classified as held-1o-malturity as at December 31, 2018 ameunted to Rs. 40,75¢ million {December

31, 2017 ; Rs. 43,844 miliion}. : % {7
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9.1

9.1.2

9.2

8.3

9.4

ADVANCES

25

BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

Hote Performing Naon Performing Total
2018 a7 2018 2017 2018 2017
{Rupres In '000'}

{.0ana. cash credds, running finances, elc. o1 402,388,697  333.599,195 17,286,103 15,906,224 419,674,800 349 505 419
[slarnic financing and ralated assets 22 85,660,964 55,284,995 1,393,959 1595172 87,054,923 56,880,169
Bills discounted and purchased 11,524,510 10,723,399 143,478 7B 714 19,667,988 10,802,113
Advantes - gross 499,574 171  399607.590 ~ 18,823,540 17,580,111 $18.39%,711 417 187,701
Provision against advances
- Specific 95 - - (15,884,669} (15,685041)| (15.884,869) (15.885041)
- General 8.5 (873,315) (842,738) - - (873,315} (842,738

{873,215} {842,73B) (158B4,669) ({15685041) (16,757,984) (15,527,779)
Advances - nel of pravision 488,700,856 398,764.852 2,938 871 1,685,070 501,639,727 400,658 822
includes Net Investment in Finance Lease as disclosed below:

2018 2017
Later than Later than
Not later .
th one and Ovar five Total Not later than | ona and lees Qver five Total
20 ON® )l ocs than years one year than five years
year five years years
{Rupaes in '000")
Lease rentals recewvable 1,403,651 2,030,833 41,335 3,475,819 925,485 2,082,153 70,316 3,084 954
Residual valua 594,353 998435 13,347 1,606,135 370,194 911 824 40,100 1,322,118
Minimum lease payments 1,998,004 3,029 268 54 682" 5,081,854 1,295,679 3,000,877 110,416 4,407,072
Financial charges for future periods _ {220,67%) (258,985) L {472,660} (94,838} (220,262) {1.027) {316,127)
Present value of minimum .
lease payments | 1,777,329 2,770,283 4,602,294 1,200,841 2,780,715 109,388

54,682

4,090,545

Advances includa an amount of Rs.82.95 million {2017: Rs. 25.11 millipn). being Employee Loan facilities allowed to Citibank‘ N.A, Pal_(istan’s employees,
which were either taken over by tha Bark, or were granted afresh, under a specific arrangement executed between the Bank and Citibank, N.A, Pakistan. The
said arrangemsnt is subject to certain relaxations as specified vide SBP Leiter BPRD/BRDICHiS2017/21089 dated September 11, 2017. ’

The said arraﬁgement covers only existing employees of Cilibank, N.A, Pakistan, and the relaxations allowed by the SBP are on continual basis, but subject 1o
review by SBP's BID and OSED departmenis. These loans camry markup at the rales ranging from 9.46% 10 20.30% (2017: 9.46% 1o 16.48%) with maturities

up to December 2038 (2017: December 2022}, -

These reprasents financing and related assels placed under shariah permissible modes and presented in note Annexure-ll.

Particulars of advances (Gross)

In local currency
In foreign gurrencies

2018

2017

~eees{Rupeas in §00)---

Advances include Rs. 18,824 million (2017: Rs. 17,580 million} which have been placed under non-performing slatus as detailed below:

Category of Classification

Domestic

Other Assets Especially Mentioned
Substandard

Doubtful

Loss

Qverseas
Not past due bl impaired
Overdue by.

Upto 90 days

9110 180 days

181 1o 365 days

> 365 days

Total

vk

493,638,878 392 303,907
24,758,833 - 24 883,754
518,397,711 417 187,701
2018 B 2017
Non- Farfarming Non- Performing
Loans Provision Loans Provislon
{Rupees in 000}

104,121 3,330 84 960 4979
3,077,658 762,678 1,365,008 338582
552,920 235,663 1,854,613 1,245152
14,591,887 14,518,782 13978614  13,837.989
18,326,586 15,520,453 17,277,093 15,426.702

42,787 3,536 -
104,384 46,537 ; .
345,783 314,043 303,018 258,339
496,954 .- 364,216 303,018 258,339
- 18,823,540 15,884,669 17,580,111 15,685,041
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9.5 Partlculars of provision against advances
2018 2017
Note tific General Total Genergl Total
{Rupees In ‘000’
QOpening balance 15,585,041 42,738 16.527,7?9 16,368,263 775,968 17,144 231
Impact of adoption of IFRS © - 25297 25,297 - - -

Exchange adjustments 652,512 2,944 55,456 2,221 1,589 3,820
Charge for the year 3,007,907 269,364 3,277,271 2230902 156,284 2,387,286
Reversals (2,631,522) (267,028))  (2,898,550)|  (2,741,25Q) (81,213} (2,832,472
376,385 2,336 318,721 {510,357) 65,171 (445,186)

< Amounts written off {179,305) - {179,305} (72,058) - (72,056)
Amounts charged off - agriculture financing {59,964) - {58,964) (103,030) - (103 030}
26 {239,269} - {239,269) {175,086) - (175,088)

Closing balance 15,884,669 873,315 16,757,984 15,685,041 842,738 16,527 779

9,5.1 Particulars of provision against advances 2018 097
ecific General Total Specific {Genara Total
[Rup»es n '000'}

In local currency 14,708,296 698,706 | 15407002 | 14,802,261 701,036 | 15,503,297
In foreign currencias 1,176,373 174,609 1,350,982 882780 141,702 1,024 482
15,884,669 873.315 16,757,984 15,685,041 842,738 16,527,778

9.5.2 The additional profit arising from availing the forced sales value (FSV) benefit - net of tax al Dacember 31, 2018 which is not available for distribution as either
cash or stock dividend to shareholders/ bonus to employess amaunied to Rs. 30.108 million (2017: Rs. 28.899 million).

8.5.3 General provision inciudes provision against consumer loans being maintained at an amount equal 10 1% of ths fully sscured performing portfolio and 4% of
the unsecured performing portfolio. Provision against SE portfolio is being maintained at an amaunt equal to 1% agains! unsecured perfiorming SE portfolio as
required by the Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. General provision also includes provision held al overseas branches to meet the
requirements of regulatory authorities of the respeciive countries in which overseas branches operates.

9.5.4 Exposure amounting to Rs. Nit (2017 : Rs. 8.421 billion) relating to certain non performing facilities of Power Holding {Private) Limited, which is guaranieed by
the Government of Pakisian, had not been classified as non-performing, pursuant 1o a relaxation given by SBP in this respect.

9.5.5 Although the Bank has made provision against its non-performing portfolio as per the category of classification of the loan, the Bank holds enforceable
collateral in the event of recovery through litigation. These securities comprise of charge against various tangible assets of the barrower including land,
bu:1dmg and machinery, stock in trade etc.

Note 2B 2017

8.6 PARTICULARS OF WRITE OFFs; -——-Rupees in 000)-——

9.6.1 Againsi Provisions o 9.5 239,269 175,086
Diractly charged to Profil & Loss account - .

' 239,269 175,086

9.6.2 WWrite Ofis of Rs. 500,000 and above
- Domestic a7 130 566 113,741
- Overseas ' - -
Write Qffs of Below Rs. 500,000 108,703 61,345

238 269 175,086

‘9.7 DETAILS OF LOAN WRITE OFF OF Rs, 500,000/ AND ABOVE

In terms of sub-section (3} of Section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 the Stalement in respect of written-off loans or any other financial relief

of rupees five hundred thousand or above allowed to a person(s) during the year ended December 31, 2018 is given in Annexure-1 to unconsolidated
Financial Statements. %
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10.1

10.21

FIXED ASSETS

Capital workin-progress
Property and equipment

GCapital work-in-progriss

Civil waorks
Equipment

Advances to suppliers
Others

Property an_d Equipment

Al January 1, 2018
Cost / Revalued amount
Accumuiated depreciation
Nat bogk vahug

Year ended Cecember 2018
Opaning net book valus
Addilions

Movemant in surplus an assals revalusd during the year

Deficit on ravaluation recogrised n the
profit and |oss account - nal

Dispraals

Depracietion charge

Exchange rate adjustmanis

Other adusiments [ transfers

Closing net book value

At December 31, 2018
Cast f Revalued amount
Arcumulated depreciation
Net baok value

Rate of deprecialion (parcentags }

At January 1, 217

Cost f Revalued amount
Arccumulsted depreciation |
Nel book velue

Year unded Owcember 2017
Opaning nat book valug
Additions

Movermnantin supue on assels revalued during the year

Deficil pn revalualion recogiised in the
profit and |ess account - nat

Dizpozals

Depreciatioa charge

Exth&nge rate adjustmernts

Othar adusimen | transfer

Clozing net book value

At December 31, 2017
Cosl f Revalued amount
Accumulaled depreciation
Net book value

Rata of depgraciation {parcentags)

27 BANK ALFALAH LIMITED
Note 2018 o077

———[Rupees n 000)------

101 175,338 796309

102 18,141,703 16,115 263

18,317,042 16,198 802

115,840 14 818

55,670 43,868

1,075 12 958

2,754 7 98y

175,338 79,629

Faial ]
Building on | Bultding on . .
Fraehold land | Leasahoid tand | Freehold [ Loasohotd | 2% held | Fumitwes | Qffice Vehiolss Total
land land improvamant | and fixture | equipment
(Rupees in DOI}

4,376,534 28589930 1,243,208 2,744,105 5,110,322 1,988,763 11,221 K43 419860 20,094,733
- [33,745) 71,991} (186 80d) (3375 ABT) {1 547841} (B655315) (234.B85) (13,975 470)

4,376,934 926,15 1,471,315 2687601 1,734,935 451120 _ 7,666,198 204 975 15,119,263

4,375,934 2,826,188 1171316 2587801 1,734,935 451120 2,688,198 204,975 16,119,283

11,000 . 9114 76.03 183,507 12871 657,449 19.RE5 996,057

4,773,512 G2d 804 121619 473 718 - - - - 3,193,663
{11,000) Ma.zT3  {24027) {19.569) . . - . {56,869}
- 242,490 - - (12, 367) (3,643 {8,155) (43,361) [310.616}
- {17,525 {37,992) [T8.694) {326,593) {118,682] {1,082,756) {¥0,936) {1.733.152)

- - . - L E) 1,569 4,779 3,179 10,5035
_ . . . {14,000} {319} (56,389) 11} {70,728}

5,861 5 B 181,136 313 18,441,703

L 8,150,446 3ZVBI01 1440029  AOABORI 6272686 2025376 11808377 358827 33962496
) ; ; - [389%.79s) (1682848) [B41TIEX  (245098) (15030792}
§.160,496 AIEI01 1440079 3038083 1576881 362727 2181128 113731 18,141,703
" T - $% 2.5% 25% _ W-20% 10%-25% 125% 0% __Zs%
- 2017
Bullding on | Building on .
Fremhatd land | Leasehold land Fnla::dow Ln‘:::old I;::::::'e‘:ﬂ .:';::"; ewc'i'p“‘*m S| venicies Total
{Rupees In "00)
4353934 3007.930 1171324 2620975 4802297 1996343  10.431,361 243M 28822 865
- 117075 35060)  [B0.5041  (3.200.869) (1427287 (7675107 {242763) (12678 645)
= 11 BAGAT1 1601308 560.056 3 756.254 181938 16,144,220
4358,834 2990605 1136264 2549474 15601308 560058  2.756.354 181208 16.144.225
18.000 . 71820 116,453 618692 20537 . 1.064.956 123820 1.043.808
. - (47.834) . 2100 (37.919) {1.258) (72094 198571 (116.307)
- (168861  (36.632)  {(78.060)  1320.202)  (142.893) [1.44396® (80650  (1,826.491)
- - - - {4431 1526) {4.155) 189 {4.935)
. - . 183 (163 i17.421) {3.996) 511 (246) (21.122)
2376038 2976185 1171315 2507601 1724035 381130 566,108 204875 16.119.263_
4378934 2959.930 1243306 2744106 5190322 1996763 11221513 439860  30.094.733
. (33745)  (71991) [15B504) (33753871 [1547.643) (B556.315) (34885  (13975.470)
4076034 2.076.185 117131 7ROt 1734935 451120 2.8RA1 D&075__ 15.119.26
~ (FEE 2.6% 25% ___10%-30% 0% 35% 125% S0% ___25% :

The properties of the Bank have been revatued by independent professional valuers as at December 31, 2018. The revaluation was camied ol by Mfs, Akbani 8
Javed Associates, M/s. Harvester Services {Private) Limiled and M/s. Hamid Mukhiar & Co. (Privals] Limited on the basis of professional agsessment of present
market values which resuited in an ingrease in surplus by Rs. 3,194 million and a deficit of Rs.66.8 million. Accordingly, the surplus has been transferred 1o the
equity and the defict has been charged to the profit and lpss account.

Had thers been no revaluation, the carrying amount of 1he revalued assets st December 31, 2018 would have been Rs. 5,443.888 milion {2017 Rs. 5,742.060

millicn).

Frashold land

Leasehold land

Buildings on freehold land
Buildings on feasehold land

10.2.2  Included in cost of property and eguipment are fully depreciated items still in use having cost of Rs, 9,773.91 million (2017 Rs. 8,644.77 million).

10.2.3  Carrying amount of le ang held for sale properties:”

10.2.4  Sale offixed assels 1o refated parties are disclosed in Annexure Il o tha unconsolidated financial slalements.

Gidmoashersepe i L Lol

N FYY V.

2018 2017 .
Met book HNethook  Net book Net book -
valueat valueat  valugat value at
Cost  Revalued Cost Revalued
amount amount
{Rupees in "000'} -
1,536,928 6,150,446 1,536,928 4376,934
9,441,656 3,278,704 1596,418 2,926,185
1,083 942 1,440,029 1,094,877 1,471,315
1,421,392 3,028,083 1,413,837 2 587.601
£,442 068 13,907,258 5742060 11,062,038
8 2047

—e{RUPEES 1000 jomarmr-

209,150

186,410
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Note
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Capital work-in-progress / Advance payment to suppliers
Software / membership card 1.1
AtJanuary 1
Cost.

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book value

Year ended December 31
QOpening net book value
Additions - directly purchased
Disposals

Amportisation charge
Exchange rate adjustments
Other adjustments

Closing net book value

At December 31

Cost _

Accumulated amorfisation and impairment .
Net book value

Rate of amcrtisation (percentage)

Uselul life 4

2018

BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

2017

180,901 129,689
1,136,370 1,379,076
1,317,271 1,508.765
3,562,816 3035017

(2183740)  (1,737,707)
1,370,076 1557 310
1,379,076 1,267,310

250,671 520,449
(489,716) (447.802)
1470 ]
(4,831) 119
1.136.370 1376078
3.822,430 3.562,816
(2,686,060)  (2,183,740)
1,136.370 1.379.076
20%-33%  20% - 33%
3 - 5 years 3 -5 years

included in cost of intangible assets are fully amortized items stil in use having cost of Rs. 1,349.493 million (2017: Rs.

1,010.07 million).

OTHER ASSETS

Incorme/ Mark-up accrued in local currency - net of provision
Income/ Mark-up accrued in foreign currency - net of provision
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments
Advance taxation {payments less provisions)

Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 12,11
Dividend receivable '

Mark to market gain on forward foreign exchange contracts
Mark to market gain on derivatives

Stationery and stamps on hand

Defined benefit plan

Branch adjustmenl account

Account raceivable _
Receivable against fraud and forgeries 12.2
Acceptances

Others

KL N

Less: Provision held against other assets 123
Other Assets (Net of Provision)
Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets acquired in

satisfaction of claims 12.1.1

e

11,880,512 11,333,672
538,855 462,647
2,663,485 2,472,218
90,885 1,141,536
615,517 647,286
2,768 13,892
4,519,604 1,978,336
68,224 14,174
37,631 - - 67,522
923,633 729,546
311,104 .
1,393,630 1,135,017
206,651 145,583
13,319,285 10,701,434
195,906 547,480
36,767,670 31,390,343
{828,885) (G86,441)
35,838,785 30,703,902
159,530 127,925
35,008,315 30,831,827
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29 BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

Note 2018 2017
—---~{Rupees in 000)-——-

Markel value of Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims
- properties anly 748,865 782,636

The properties of the Bank have hbeen revalued by independent professional valuers as at December 31, 2018. The
revaluation was carried out by M/s. Akbani & Javed Associates and M/s. Harvester Services (Private) Limited on the basis of
professional assessment of present market values which resulted in an increase in surplus by Rs. 33.421 million.

Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Opening Balance 775,211 471,365
Additions - 234,191
Revaluation , 33421 © 78,906
Disposals (24,775) - (3,893)
Depreciation ' (8,810) (5,368)
impairment - ' -
Closing Balance 775,047 175,211

Gain/Loss on Disposal of Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of ciaims

Disposal Proceeds 24,775 8,241
less
- Cost 24,775 (3,893)
- impairment / Depreciation {24,775) -

- {3,893)
Gainfl.oss 24,775 4,348

This represents fraud and forgery amount receivable from the insurance company and other sources. Provision has been
created against non-recoverable amount. .

Provision heid agalnst other assets

Advances, deposits, advance rent & other prepayments - 810,930 - 643,711
Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 17,955 - 42,730
928,885 686,441

Movement in provision held against other assets

Opening balance . 686,441 1,163,130
Impact of adoption of IFRS 9 - overseas branches 5,785 -
Balance as at 01 on adoption of IFRS 9 : ' 692,236 1,183,130
Charge for the year 421,760 -
Reversals (10.41¢) (37,788)
Amount Written off ' {144,945} {1,229)
Exchange and other adjustments (29,750) {5,047)
Classified as held for sale - (432,625)
Closing balance ' 928,885 686,441

. BILLS PAYABLE

In Pakistan o 35,825,039 20,792,002
Qutside Pakistan 163,186 90,968

,L’. 35,988,225 20,882,970




30 BANK ALFALAH LIMITED
]F Note 2018 2017
—eeeci(RUpees in 000)—--v-
{“ 14 BORROWINGS
' Secured
' Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan
r Under export refinance scheme 141 26,344,557 20,568,840
' Long-term finance facility 14.2 11,199,254 7,173,372
Financing facility for storage of agriculture produce 14.3 263,033 56,536
Repurchase agreement borrowings 14.4 35,962,700 107,982,494
' 73,769,544 135,781,242
E Repurchase agreement borrowings 145 11,163,509 17,237,602
Bai Muajjal 14.6 22,268,894 37,650,637
Other short term borrowings 147 279,494 343,253
Totzl secured 107,481,441 181,012,734
Unsecured
Call borrawings 14.8 14,951,957 10,332,574
Overdrawn nostro accounts 14.9 947 547 970,114 -
Trading liabilities 1410 - 5,221,517
s Others 1411 636,780 -
Yotal unsecured 16,536,204 16,524,205
124,017,735 207,536,939

141  This facility is secured against a demand promissory note executed in favour of the State Bank of Pakistan. The mark-up rate
on this facility ranges from 1.00% to 3.75% per annum {2017: 1.00% to 3.00% per annum) payable on a quarterly basis. -

14.2  This facility is secured against a demand promissory note executed in favour of the State Bank of Pakistan. The mark-up rate
on this facility ranges from 2.00% to 5.00% per annum (2017; 2,00% to 5. 00% per annum) payable ona quarterly basis.

14.3  This facility is secured against a demand promissory note executed in favour of the State Bank of Pakistan, The mark-up rate
on this facility is 6.00% per annum {2017: 2.50% to 10.00% per annum) payable on a quarterly basis.

14.4  This represents repurchase agreement borrowing from SBP at the rate ranging from 5.78% to 10.16% per annum (2017.
5.80% to 5.82% per anaum) having maturities upto January 2018 (2017: January 2018}.

14.5 This represents repurchase agreemént' borrowing from other banks at the rate of 2.78% to 10.25% per annum (2017
1.55%% to 5.82% per annum) having maturities upto January 2019 (2017: February 2018).

14.6 This represents borrowings from financial institutions at mark-up rates ranging from 6.10% lo 9.70% per annum {(2017:
5.73% te 5.83%) having maturities upto March 2018 (2017: Octeber 2018).

14,7  This represents short term running finance to meet the working capital requirements, This facility camies quarterty mark-up at
the rate of three month KIBOR plus 3% (2017: KIBOR plus 3%) and valid upto 31 January 2021,

=

14.8  This represents borrowings from financial institutions at mark-up rates ranging from 0.50% to 10.25% per annum (2017
0.80% to 5.75%) having maturities upto June 2019 (2017: March 2018).

14.9  This represents book overdrawn balances appearing under cerain nostro accounts which are due for setlement and the
U balance exist only due to timing differences. These do not carry any mark-up rates.

14.10 This represents liability in respect of short selling of Paklstan lnvestmen‘l Bonds held as collateral against repurchase
agreement lendings.

4 .
14.11 This includes borrowing from Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company Limited (PMRC) to extend housing finance facilities to
d the Bank's customers on the agreed terms and conditions. This borrowing carries mark-up rate of 3 years PKRY less 50bps.
This also includes borrowing from Karangaaz Pakistan Limited in lieu of Risk Participation Agreement o support Bank's
- venture into SME segments. The participation carries a spread of 315 bps over the KIBOR rate,
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In local currency

14.12 Particulars of borrowings with respect to Currencies

kA

BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

2018 2017
(Rupees in 000)

102,260,223 187,309,818
In foreign currencies 21,757,512 20,227,120
124,017,735 207,538,939
DEPQSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
2018 2017
In Local Currency ':-.r::r::il;l Totat é'f.:?ﬁﬁ:; ;::::la:g; Total
: {Rupesas [n GO0’}
Customers
Current deposits 263,826,090 31,077,261 284,903,351 236,043,620 21,553,885 257,587 508
Savings deposits 182,286,764 29,222,301 211,509,065 | 188,782,625 28,277,335 215,069,960
Terr deposits 403,144,924 42,383,783 145,528,707 | 110,563,894 20,448,144 134,010,038
Others . 10,007 520 1,920,061 11,927,581 5,573 888 831,064 3,505 849
£49,265,298 104,603,406 653,868,704 540,974,027 88,208,325 610,183,262
Financlal institutions .
Current deposits 2,130,211 533,400 2663611 1,147,240 185,626 1,312,936
Savings deposits - 3D, 561,127 53,403 30,634,536 20,318,241 34,690 20,353,938
Term deposits 14,220,573 1,404,959 15,622,532 - B,043,869 1,150,279 8,194,148
Cithers 47 926 8,816 57,742 3,880,609 3, 880,609
, >:1’5.979.3:'.1' 1,998 584 48,978,421 33,390,959 1,350,673 34,741,832
59€,245.135 106,601,950 702,847 125 574,384,988 70,559 598 44,924 984
2018 2017

Composition of deposits

- Individuals

- Government {Federal and Provincial)
- Pubhic Sector Entities

- Banking Companies

- Mon-Banking Financial Instilutions

~ Private Sactor

i

seeems(RuUp@es N 000)-mweer-

347,809,428 342,182,573
45,416,762 32,446,285
48,524,311 28,802,27%

528,326 1,994,835
48,450,09'5 | 32,746,797,
214,018,203 206,752,215
702,847,125 644,924,984

] 15.2  This includes deposils eligible to be covered under insurance arrangemsnts amounting to Rs 400,654,623 million (2017: Nil).
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16.1

16.2

SUBORDINATED DEBT

Term Finance Certificates V - Quoted, Unsacured

lgsua amount
Issue date
Maturity date
Rating
Security
Ranking

Profit payment frequency
Redemption

Mark-u'p

Lock-in-clause

Call option

32 BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

2018

2017

-—-—[Rupees in 000)«cwen-

4,989,000

Rs. 5,000,000,000

February 2013

February 2021

"AA-" (Double A Minus} by Pakistan Credit Rating Company Limited
("PACRA").

Unsecured

Subordinated to all cther indebtedness of the Bank |nc!ud|ng
deposits bul superior to equity and ADT-1 instruments,

Payable semi-annually in arrears.

The instrument will be structured to redeem semi-annually in such a
way that 0.30% of the principal will be redeemed in the first 50
months and remaining principal of 88.70% at maturity in the 96th
month.

Base Rate + 1.25 percent

Base Rate is defined as the simple average of the ask rate of the six
meaths KIBOR prevailing on one business day priorto each
redemption date, for the redemption amount payable an the
beginning of each semi-annual peried for the markup due at the end
of that period.

Mark-up will only be paid from the Bank's current year's earning and
if the Bank is in compliance of regulatory MCR and CAR
requirements set by SBP from time to time.

There is no call option available to the Bank.

Term Finance Certificates - Additional Tier-l - Quoted, Unsecured

Issue amount
Issue date
Maturity date
Rating

Security
Ranking

Profit payment frequency
Redemption
Mark-up

Lock-in-clause

Loss absorbency clause

Call Option

Rs. 7,000,000,000

March 2018

Perpatual

"AA-" (double A minus) by JCR- V1S Credit Ratlng Company Limited.

7,000,000

Unsecured

Subordinated to all other indebtedness of the Bank inciuding
deposits but superior to equity. '

Payable semi-annually in amears.

Perpetual

For the period at end of which the Bank is in compliance with
Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) and Capitat Adequacy Ralio
{CAR) requirements of SBP, mark-up rate will be Base Rate + 1.50%
with no step up feature.

{Base Rate is defined as the six months KIBOR (Ask mde} prevailing
on cne (1) business day prior 1o previous profit payment date

Mark-up wilt only be paid from the Bank’s current year's eaming and
if the Bank is in compliance of regulatory MCR and CAR
requirements set by SBP from time to time.

In conformity with SBP Basel Il Guidelines, the TFCs shall, if
directed by the SBP, be permanently converted into ordinary shares
upon: () the CET 1 Trigger Event ; (i} the point of non-viability
Trigger Event ; or {iii} failure by the Bank to comply with the Lock-In
Clause. The SBP will have full discretion in declaring the point of non-
viability Trigger Event.

The Bank may, at its sole discretion, exercise call option any time
after five years from the Issue Date, subject to pricr approval of SBP.

4,991,000

11,989,000

4,991,000

“yf
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deductible Temporary Differences on

- Provision against investments

- Provision against advances

- Provision against off balance sheet obligations

- Provision against other assets

- Provision against lending to financial institutions

- ljarah depreciation taxed

- Unrealised loss on revaluation of HFT investments

Taxable Temporary Differences on

- Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets
- Surplus on revaluation of investments
- Share of prolit from associates

- Accelerated tax depreciation

- Exchange translation reserve

Deductible Temperary Differences on

- Provision against investments

- Provision against advances

- Provision against off balance sheet cbligations
- Gain on revaluation of HF T investmenis

~ Provision against other assets

Taxable Temporary Differences on

- Surplus gn revaluation of fixed assets
- Surplus on revaluation of investments
- Share of profit from associates

- Accelerated tax depreciation

OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up/ Retury/ Interest payable in iocal currency
Mark-up/ Returnf interest payable in foreign currency

BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

Unearned commission and income on bills discounted and guarantees

Accrued expenses
Current taxation *
Acceptances

Dividends payable

Mark to market loss on forward foreign exchange contracts

Mark to market loss on derivatives
Branch adjustment account
Provision for Compensated absences

Payable against redemption of customer loyalty / reward points

Charity fund balance

Provision against off-balance sheet obligations
Security deposits against leases, lockers and others
Worker's Welfare Fund

Payable to vendors and suppliers

Indirect Taxes Payable

Others

2018
At.January 1, Recognised in Racognised in At Decomber 31
2018 P&L A/C o 2018
{Rupees in 000)
{174,218} 32,844 (27,194) (168,568)
{118,504} {148,434} - {266,938)
{245,594) 20,621 - (224,973)
- (5,720) - - (5,720)
- {16,680) - {16,680)
(2,263) {12,269) - _{14,532)
{540,579) {129,648) (27,194) {897,421)
828,306 {2,807) 503,685 1,329,184
1,411,085 - {1,413,967) (2,882)
288,930 138,585 - 428,524
1,455,261 (169,471) 870 1,286,460
- - 156,232 156,232
3,583,591 {32,693) (753,380) 3,197,518
3,443,012 {162,341) (780,574} ~ 2,500,097
2017
AtJanuary 1, Recognisedin Recognisad in A December 31
2017 P&L ASC Qcl 2017
{Rupees in 000)
(2.264,329) 2,080,111 - {174, 218)
(392,066) 273,562 - (118,504)
(13,078) 13,078 - -
38 {2,301) - (2,263
{309,218) 63,624 - (245 594)
(2,978,653} 2,438,074 - (540,579}
840,539 {18.198) 5,985 828,306
3,399,673 - {1,988,788) 1,411,085
252,053 36,886 - 288,939
1,388,662 85,349 {18,756) 1,455,261
5,881,134 104,038 (2,001,575 3,883,581
2,902,481 2,542,110 (2,001,579) 3,443,012
Note 2018 2017
e {RUpoos in 000)-c-w
2,108,495 1,389,374
610,511 202,738
220,584 230,383
4,206,509 3,493,081
926,956 -
13,319,265 10,701,434
- 84,229 60,728
970,502 868,082
1,169 -
- 220,823
498,010 393,496
274,078 200,433
20 833
18.1 78,450 65 .4G63..
6,808,459 6,210,193
579,662 590,821
606,480 504,868
563,270 326,769
1,548,175 2,105,829
- 33,805,722 2?1665,5E=
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34 BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

m! .

2018 2017
18.1 Provision against off-balance sheet obligations —--—{Rupess in 000)-—-—

Opening balance 65,463 69.708
Exchange adjustment and other adjusiments 13,759 (2,807}

Charge for the year 33,994 37 B75
Reversals {34.7¢E {39.213})
(772) (1,338)

78,450 65,483

Closing balance

The provision against off balance sheet obligations include general provision of Rs. §6.50 million {2017: Rs. 53.50 million) held in Bangladesh
book as required under the local regulation and specific provision of Rs. 11.85 miltion held against defaulted Lelter of Guarantees, The Bank |s
making efforts for recovery of the defaulted amount.

19 SHARE CAPITAL
19.1 Authorizad Capital
2018 2017 2018 2017
----- ~(Number of shares}---—---— --—--{Rupees in 000)-m--
z,aoolnuu.ooo 2,300,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 23,000,000 23,000,000
19.2 lIssued, subscribad and paid up Capital
2018 2017 ) : 2018 2017
s eme-{Nutnber of shares)———- —--—({Rupees in §0Q0)---—-
Ordinary shares
888,650,908 883,165,724  Fully paidin cash B,236,508 8,831,857
885,711,966 724,406,250 Issued as bonus shares 8,857,120 7.244,063
1,774,362 874 1607571974 17,743,629 16,075,720
1,774,362,874  1,607,571,974 17,743,629 16,075,720
During the year the Bank has issued 5,485,184 ordinary shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each to ils empioyees on exercise of oplions
vested under the Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) (nole 39). The paid-up capitel of the Bank before issuance of shares to employees
was Rs, 16,075,719,740 (divided intc 1,607,571,974 shares of Rs. 10 each) and after issuance of shares to the employees has increased to
Rs. 16,130.571,580 (divided into 1,613,057,158 shares of Rs. 10 each). Subseguent to this, the Bank issued 161,205,716 number of shares
as a 10% bonus issue. The share capital after such issue increased to Rs. 17,743,628.740 (representing 1.774,362,874 shares of Rs. 10
gach).
19.3 Material non-controlling Interests

18.3.1 Below are details of subsidiaries of the Group that have matesial non-"conimlling interests:

Proportion of ownership
interests and voting rights Accumuiated non-contrelling

Narne of subsidlary Non Controlling Interest for tha year

held by the non-controlling interests
intorosts
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
. {Rupees In 000)
Alfalah GHP Investment
Managemeni Limited 58.76% 58.70% 92,430 58,888 510.778 418,348

Summarised financial information of material non-controlling interasts before intragroup eliminatien is as follows:
Alfalab GHF Investrment Management Limitac 2018 2017

meemee{RUPAAE iN Q00femmerem
Statarnent of financial position

Tolal assets 1,083,589 947 545
Tolal lizbitities 206,308 254 687
Equily 857 260 692858
Staternent of comprehensive income

Total income 472,004 539,217
Tolal expenses 261,240 302,936
Net profit after tax ' . : 164,221 164,739
Other comprehensive income : . 181 6,274)
Statement of cash flows . }
Net cash flows generated from / {used in) operating activities 151,112 166,401
Net cash flows generated from investing activilies {153,539} (166,878)
MNet cash flows during the year (2.427) (20,4773
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20  SURPLUSHODEFICIT) ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS
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Surplus / {deficit) on revaluation of

- Awailable for sale securities

- Fixed Assets

- Pakistan Stock Exchange Membership Card

- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

- Surpius on revaluation of Investment held for sale in Afghanistan

Deferred tax on surplus / {deficit) on revaluation of:

- Available for sale securities

- Fixed Assets

- Non-banking assets acguired in satistaction of claims

- Surplus on revalualion of Investment held for sale in Afghanistan

Derivatives

Surplus on revaluation of available for sale securifies attributabiz 10 non-controlling interest

201 Burplus on revaluation of fixed assets

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets as at January 1
Effect of change in accounting policy for surplus /
{deficit) on operating fixed assels - note 4.1.2
Surplus on revaiuation of fixed assels as al January 1 - restated
Recognised during the year
Realised on disposal during the year - net of deferred tax
Transferred to unappropnaied profit.in respect of incremental
depreciation charged dunng the year - nel of deferred tax
Related deferred tax liability on incrementat
depreciation charged during the year .
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets as at December 31

Less; relaled deferred tax liability on:
Revaluation as at January 1
Efiecl of change in accouniing policy for surplus /
(deficit) on gperaling fixed assels - note 4.1.2
Revaluation as al January 1 - Restaled .
- revaluation recognised during the year *
- surplus seaiised on disposal during the year :
- incremental depreciation charged during the year

20.2 Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Surplus on revaluation as at January 1
Recognised during the year
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental
depreciation charged during the year - net of deferred tax
Related deferrad tax liability on incremental
depreciation charged during 1he year
Surplus on revaluation as at December 31

Less: related deferred tax liability on:

-~ revalyation as at January 1

- revaluation recegnised during the year

- incremental depreciation charged during 1he year

Note

8.1
20.1

20.2

201
202

BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

Restated
18 2047
~--{RUpBES in 000)—--—

(2,102) 3,930,829

3,608,874 5,365,558
- 1,633
159,530 127,925
303 130,288

8,666,605 9,956,203

(2,943) 1,371,893

1,298,531 819,099
30,653 24,654

81 45,801
1,326,302 2,261,247
48,952 14,933
(128) (517}

7,389,127 7,309,372

5,365,558 5,385 843
. 45 583

5,365,558 5.433,426

3,193,653 .

- |} (15,744)
(32,719) (32,.370)
(17.818) {17,754)

6,508,874 53065558
B19,099 826.917

- 15,446
19,099 842,363
497,050

. (5,510)
{17,618) (17.754)

1,298,531 819,000

7,210,343 4,546,459

127,925 50,890
33,421 78,906
(1,180) (1427}
{638) (444)
158,530 127,925
24,554 13623
6,635 1475
(638) {444)
30,653 24,654
128,877 103,271
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36 BANK ALFALAH LIMITED
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

During 2017, the Board of Directors of the Holding Company accorded its in-principle approval and authorised the
management of the Bank 10 explore the possibility to sell the Afghanistan Operations of the Bank to a potential buyer, subject
to obtaining all regulatory approvals, compliance with applicable laws and regulations in the matter.

During the current year, the Holding Company signed a Business Transfer Agreement with a potential buyer for the sale of
the Afghanistan operations and subsequently an application for approval of the transaction was made to the DA Afghanistan
Bank {DAB), the Central Bank in Afghanistan. The DAB has raised some queries on the application which the Holding
Company and the potential buyers are in the process of respending.

‘Resultantly, all assets and liabilities and income and expenses for the Group's Afghanistan Operations are being presented

as separate fine items on the balance sheet as Non-Current Assets and Liabilities Held for Sale and profit after tax from -
discontinuing operations respectively, rather than as part of actual line items under which they were being reported
historically. ;

The financial position and results of assets classified as held for sale are as follows:

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Naote 2018 _ 2017

----- {Rupees in 000)w-eau-
Assets held for sale

Cash and balances with treasury banks 4,764 918 7,594 852
Balances with other banks : 3,431,885 1,025,9v6
Lendings to financial institutions i 10,470,354 5,288,982
Invastments - net ' : _ 4,596,965 11,582,895
Advances - net 224,090 1,108,663
Fixed assetls 9,370 11,918
Other assels 91,897 198,418

23,589,489 26,821,724

Liabilities directly associated with the assets held for sale

Bilis payable 4,549 8,575
Deposits and other accounts _ 20,287,651 24491178
Deferred tax liabilities ' 223 45,601
Cther liabilities : 142,973 . 213,742
20,435,396 24,759,096

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT:

~ Mark-up/Retum/Interest Earned _ 353,937 743,588
Mark-up/Return/interest Expensed 18,929 154,769
Net Mark-up/ Interest Income _ 335,008 588,819
Non mark-upiinterest income
Fee and Commission Income 188,049 153,492
Foreign Exchange Income 14,653 . 18,947
income { {loss) from derivalives 48,637 -
Gain / {Loss) on securities : (42,586) 132,583
Other Income - (14)
Total non-markup/interest income 208,753 306,018
Total Income _ 543,761 893,837
Non mark-upiinterest expanses )
Operating expenses 323,774 458,802
Other charges _ 1,263 1,923
Total non-markup/interest expenses 325,037 460,726
Profit Before Provisions 218,724 433,111
Provisions and write offs - net 21.2.1 (561,776) . 93,292
Profit before taxation from discontinuing operations 780,500 339,819
Taxation _ 305,548 138,755

Profit after taxation from discontinuing operations. oy p 474,352 201,064
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This includes reversal of provision amounting to Rs. 443.898 million (USD 3.949 million), previously held ageinst amount
blocked in the Holding Company's Nostro account following setflement of dispute, and release of funds in favour of the Bank.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

-Guarantees

" -Commitments

-Other contingent liabilities

Guarantees:

Financial guarantees
Performance guarantees

Other guarantees

Commitments:

Cocumentary credits and short-term trade-retated transactions

- Letters of credit

Commitments in respect of:
- forward foreign exchange contracts
- forward government securities transactions

- derivatives
- forward lending
- operating leases

Commitments for acquisition of;
- operating fixed assets

- intangible assets

Other commiiments

ot

Note 2018 2017
----- ~{Rupees in 000)eu--mm-
22.1 | 57,086,398 64,176,351
22.2 | 437,956,428 || 349,143.018
2231 13,222,064 9,787,372
~508,264,890 423,106,739
731,536 176,643
32,153,833 34,549 521
24,201,029 20,449,887
57,086,398 64,176,351
68,026,025 73.773.817
22.2.1f 228265384 || 92,108,750
2222| 76,821,957 || 128.052.456
- 22230 12,051,001 8,865,756
22.2.4| 34,773,260 30,207 372
16,906,848 15,791,635
604,674 99,373
507,209 219,605
2225 - 23,952
437,956,428 340,143,016
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Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts

2018

BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

2017

-=---[Rupees in 000)-------

Purchase 140,128,603 50,285,544
Sale B8,136,761 31,823,208
228,265,364 892,108,750
Commitments in respect of forward government securities transactions
Purchase 39,518,422 118,034,680
Sale } 37,303,535 12017776
76,821,957 128,062 456
Commitments in respect of derivatives
. W
Interest Rate Swaps
Purchase 10,650,708 8,865,756
Sale o . - -
N 10,650,708 8,865,756
Futures -
L 1)
Porchase . _
Sale 1,400,383 -
1,400,383 -
Commitments in respect of forward lending
Undrawn formal standby facilitié.s. credit lines and other commitments to lend 22'2_4.;| 29,428,567 22 628,329
Commitments in respect of investments ' 5,344,693 7,579,043
34,773,260 30,207,372

These represent commitments that are irrevocable because they cannot be withdrawn at the discretion of the Bank without

the risk of incurring significant penalty or expense.

Othar commitments

Donations - 23,952
Other contingent liabillties
Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debis 13,222,064 9,787,372

These mainly represents counter claims filed by the borrowers for restricting the Bank from disposal of assets (such as
hypothecated / mortgaged / pledged assets kept as security), damage to reputation and cases filed by Ex.employees of the
Bank for damages sustained by them consequent to the termination from the Bank's employment. Based on legal advice
and / or internal assessment, management is confident that the matters will be decided in Bank's favour and the possibility
of any outcome against the Bank is remote and accordingly no provision has been made in these financial statements,

Contingency for tax payable

There were no tax related contingeﬁc'iés' other than as disclosed in note 33.2. 7;,,

/-7
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Derivatives are a type of financial contract, the value of which is determined by reference to one or more underlying assets or
indices. The major categories of such contracts include futures, swaps and options. Detivatives also incude structured
financial products that have one or more characteristics of forwards, futures, swaps and options.

23.1 Product Analysis 2018
Interest Rate Swaps Futuras
Countsrparties ] Mark to Mark'to
No. of Notional market No. of Notional  markst gain /
contracts Principal  gain/ loss. contracts Principal - loss
{Rupees in 00D)-
With Banks for .
Hedging 22 10,650,708 88,487 - - -
With Flis other than banks R
Hedging ' - - . 88 1,400,383 {21,432)
Total .
Hedging _ 22 10,660,708 88,487 88 1,400,383 {21,432)
2017
Interest Rate Swaps Futures
Counterparties No. of Notional Markto No. of Notional Mark to
market gain . market gain /
contracts Principal floss contracts Principal loss
{Rupees in 00D)
With Banks for
Hedging 23 8,865,756 13,241 - - -
Total .
Hedging 23 8,865,758 - - - -
23.2  Maturity Analysis 2018
srermmnemeeenee———(Rupees in 000)
Remaining Maturity No. of Notional Mark to Markat
Contracts | Principal Negativa Positive Net
Upto 1 month - T - - - .-
1 to 3 months BB 1,400,383 21,432 - {21,432)
3 to & months 6 3,540,979 - 16,651 16,651
6 month to 1 Year 4 1,624,684 - 13,821 13,821
1% 2 Year 2 1,388,619 - 17,286 17,286
210 3 Years 4 1,696,912 - 20,548 20,548
3105 Years 2 1,110,895 - 12,432 12,432
510 10 years 4 1,385,612 . 7,748 7,748
[Above 10 Years 0 - - - -
Total 110 12,051,091 21,432 88,487 §7,055
2017
e e {Rupees in 000)---———— emmem
Remaining Maturity Ne. of Notional Mark to Markat Net
. Contracts Principal Negative - Positive
Upto 1 manth - - - - -
110 3 months - - - - -
3 to 6 months - - - - -
§ menth Lo 1 Year - - - - -
1ta 2 Yaear 11 4,504,277 5,168 17,166 11,998 .
210 3 Years 2 1,104,172 1,033 5,689 4,656
3to 5 Years 8 2,153,135 - 9,856 9,866
15 to 10 years 4 1,104,172 13,275 929 (12,346)
|Abgve 10 Years - - - - - -
Total 23 8,865,756 18,476 33,650 14,174

23.3 Risk management related to derivatives is discussed in note 47.7 j_,( T’"
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Note 2018 2017
. wreeed{ RUpGOS in D00}~
24 MARK-UPRETURNANTEREST EARNED
On:
. a) Loang and advances 37,186,512 28,274,015
b) Investments 19,005,495 25,297 579
= 4] Lendings to financial institulions 1,332,729 -2,064 996
d) Balances with banks / financial jnstitutions . ’ 91,202 52,039
.. a) On securities purchased under resale agreements 1,697,583 - 494 747
59,323,522 56,183,376
25 MARK-UP/RETURN/ANTEREST EXPENSED
On:
- a) Deposits 19,694,356 15,815,168
[a)] Borrowings ) 1,308,422 1,034 867
] c) Securities sold under repurchase agreements 4,355,708 8,802,388
d) Sub ordinated debt and ADT-1 instrument 989,221 | 626,488
8) Cosl of foreign currency swaps against foreign surrency deposits f barrowings 1,282,525 852 503
g ) Reward poinls 102,555 68,390
i 27,732,785 27,199,814
" 26 FEE & COMMISSION INCOME
é Branch banking customer fees : 1,462,606 - 1,335,560
Consumer finance related fees ’ 224,228 190,589
Card related fees {debil and credit cards) 848,104 907,652
Credit related fees 148,340 217 400
investment banking fees 210,029 313,592
Commission on trade 1,242,681 1,037 828
Commission on guarantees 370,779 372,561
Commission on cash management 20,948 23,330
) Commission on remittances including home remittances 165,419 ¥7,770
o Commission on bancassurance . 394,931 391,316
Card acquiring business 296,297 96,497
Wealih Management Fee 7,633 83,561
Commission on E0BI 114,130 59,435
Cammission on BISF 282,920 384,736
Alternate delivery channels (ADC) 310,050 286,517
BrokeragefCommission income 122,918 126,286
Management fee 424992 500,394
Others . 128,350 98,045
6,795,955 5,543,078
27 GAIN / (LOSS) ON SECURITIES .
Realised 27.1 1,035,846 861,776
_ Unrealised - held for trading 8.1 (43,511 {7,351)
E 992,335 854,425
271 Realised gainf{loss) on:
n Federal Government Securities ' 4,243,684 637,871
Shares [241,675) 232,780
Mon Government Debt Securities 2,891 || (9.876)
Foreign Securities 31,026 1,001
J 1,035,846 861,776
28 OTHER INCOME
u Gain on sale of fixed assets-het ) 137,915 11,584
Gain on sale of non banking assets - net 121.2 24775 4,348
o Income from short sell of securilies - 28,783
Profit from sale of leased assets 31,204 36,932
J Others 249 -
: )JT ?{’ 194,143 B4 647
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Note

QOPERATING EXPENSES

Total compensation expense 291

Property expense

Rent and taxes

Insurance

Utilities cost

Security {including guards}

Repair and maintenance (including janitorial chargas)
Depreciation )

Others : :

information technélogy oxXpenses
Software maintenance

Hardware maintenance
Depreciation |

Amortisation

Network charges

Others

Other operating expenses

Direclors' fees and allowances

Fees and allowances to Shariah Board .
Legal and professional charges R
Outsourced services costs . KR
Travelling and conveyance

NIFT clearing charges :

Depreciation . .

Training and development
FPostage and courier charges
Communication

Statonery and printing .
Marketing, advertisement and publicity .

Donations 29.3
Auditors Rermuneration . . 29.4
Brokerage and Cammission - .

Entertainment '

Repairs and mainlenance

insurance .

Cash Handling Charges v .

CNIC Verification

Others

Total compensation expense

Fees and Allowances et
Managerial Remureration
i) Fixed

i} Variable

of which;

a) Cash Bonus / Awards etc.

b) Bonus and Awards in Shares etc.
Charge for defined benefii plan 3818
Cantribution to defined contribution plan 3
Medical
Conveyance
Staff compensated absences
Cthers
Sub-total
Sign-on Bonus
Severance Allowance
9rand Total

2511

29.1.2

i
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2018 2017
--—{RUp#28 in 000}~

9,873,206 10,246,130
2,078,144 2,044,081
889,173 898,329
539,961 636,976
778,795 538,435
460,809 459,340
4,806,982 4,578,161
876,760 662,726
200,168 227,341
388,436 431,541
489,716 447,802
329,082 389,332
2,284,152 2,156,742
153,981 126,018
€,980 6,720
308,075 1,213,476
1,278,434 1,302,518
533,403 453,833
71,180 80,423
883,917 935,610
61,194 159,473
238,107 176,327
290,174 219,818
460,907 443214
§14,585 724,087
36,594 9,948
40,601 32122
141,008 166,306
207,542 181,569
296,417 355,103
866,630 620,269
69,228 413,743
92,465 81,077
457,333 300,263
7,408,745 B.011,517
24,372,994 24,994,550
7,829,579 7,585,805
1,202,259 1,171,339
13,038 26,693
185,753 250,153
324,410 320,476
12,998 9,934
181,747 177,008
104,514 (8,148)
{43,132) 9,758
9,811,162 9,543,018
37,850 B.638
24,193 694,474
9,873,205 10,246,130




' 42 BANK ALFALAH LIMITED
a
§ 29.1.1 The Holding Company operales a short term employee benefit scheme which includes cash awards/ performance bonus for all
eligible employaes. Under this scheme, the borus for all executives, including the CEOQ is determined on the basis of
employees’ evaluation and Holding Company's performance during the year. The aggregate amount determined for the eligible
m employees in respect of the above scheme relating to the Key Management Personnel of the Holding Company and for Other
i Executives amounted to Rs. 239.49 million {2017; Rs. 260.190 million) and Rs. 462 278 million {2017; Rs. 369.285 million)
t
29.1.2 This includes exgralia payment made to the outgoing CEC of the Holding Company in 2017.
u 28.2  Total cosl for the year included in Other Operating Expenses relating to outsourced aclivities is Rs 626.858 miflion {2017 Rs
£53.673 milion) pertaining to the payment to companies lncorporaled in Pakrs1an Thls mcludes payments other than
- outsourced services costs, which are disclosed above. _ - .
= 253 Donations . . A Note 2018 2017
) . —{Rupees in 000)--—
- Child Aid Association 1700 . .
- Family Educational Services Foundation 3,250 -
. |BA Karachi - 22,000 -
a Manabik Shahajya Sangstha ) 994 -
Supreme Court Diamer Bhasha And Mohmand Dam Fund 8650 -
Aman Foundation - - 6,300
) Karachi Lions Pediatric Nephrology Project (NICH) - . T _ - 1.000
3! Shabab Murshid Development Feundation - Bangladesh _ . 548
The Aga Khan University Hospital Medical College Foundalion h _ . 2.000
36,594 9,948

29.3.1 None of the Directors, Sponsor shareholders, Key management persannel or their spouses have any direct interes! in the
i Donees.

29.4 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee - 15,335 13,472
Fee for other statutory certifications . 6,508 6,372
Fee for audit of foreign branches 7.969 7,966
Special certifications and sundry advisory services 8,536 2287
Out-of-pocket expenses : 2,173 2015

' 40,601 32,122

30 WORKERS WELFARE FUND

Through Finance Act 2008, the Federal Government introduced amendments to the Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) Qrdinance, -
1971 whereby the definition of industrial establishment was extended. The amendments were challenged and conflicting
judgments were rendered by various courts. Appeals against these orders were filed in the Supreme Court.

The Supreme Court of Fakistan vide its order dated November 10, 2016 held that the amendments made in the law introduced
by the Federal Gavernment for the levy of Watkers Welfare Fund were not lawfut. The Federal Board of Revenue filed review
pefitions againsi {he above judgment. These petitions are curr_e‘ntly pending wilh the Supreme Court of Pakistan.

A legal advice was obtained by the Pakistan Banking Asscciation which highlights that consequent ic fling of these review
pelilions, a risk has arisan and the judgment is not conclusive uniit the review petition is decided. Accardingly, the amount
charged for Workers Welfare Fund since 2008 has not been reversed.

31  OTHER CHARGES : 0

Penalties imposed by Siate Bank of Pakistan : 6,430 32,727
32 PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS - NET
Provisions against lending to financial institutions e 16,344 -
Provisions for diminution in value of investments ’ 8.3.1 : (12,307} 95 595
Provisions against loans & advances . 9.5 378,721 {445,186}
Provision against other assets . ©124 411,344 {37,788}
Provision against of-balance sheet abligations 181 {772) {1,338}
Recovery of written off / charged off bad debts (247,996) {227,778)
545,334 {616,495)
33 TAXATION .
lerrenl' 7,287,561 4,999,426 -
Prior years : (238,141) {1,883,206)
Deferred - (162,341) . 2542110

—_— e

€,887,078 5658330
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- 2018 2017
w=====(RUpoos in DO0)-—- -
33.1  Relationship hetween tax expense and accounting profit
o~ Accounting Profit before taxation 17,403 402 14,071,070
:; ket Ty e
Tax al ihe applicable rate of 35% (2017 35%) 6,091,191 4,924,875
Effect of: -
- income tax chargeable to tax at different rates 14,208 (10,515
- permanen difierences . 7.010 42 844
- tax charge pertzining to overseas branches _ ) _ 33,542 110,039 -
- adjustment of priar years o © 1,666 517,925
- - Super tax 737,15 ' -
1] - others 2,479 73,162
- Tax expense for the year 5,887,079 5,658,330
o AL LN
- 3.2 a) The income tax assessments of the Bank have been finafized upto and inclutling tax year 2018. Malters of disagraement
: exist between the Bank and tax authorities for various assessment years and are pending with the Commissioner of
‘L Inland Revenue (Appeals), Appellate Tribunai Inland Revenue (ATIR), High Court of Sindh and Supreme Courl of

Pakistan. These issues mainly relate 1o addition of mark up in suspense to income, taxability of profit on government
securities, bad debts written off and disallowances relating to profit and loss expenses.

In respect of tax years 2008, 2014, 2017 and 2018, the tax aulhorities have raised certain issues including default in
payment of WWF, allocation of expenses to dividend and capital gains, dividend income from mutual funds not being
iaken under income from business, disallowance of Leasehold improvements and provision against other assets
resulting in additional demand of Rs.789.862 milion (December 31, 2017 : Rs.1,033.519 milion). As a result of appeal
filed before Commissioner Appeais against these issues, relief has been provided for tax amount of Rs.116.351 million
appeal effect orders are pending. Bank has filed appeals on these issues which are pending before Commissioner
Appeals. The management is confident that these matters will be decided in favour of the Bank and conseguently has
not made any provision in respect of ihese amiouns. :

b} The Bark has received an order from a provincial tax authority wherein tax authority has disallowsd certain exemptions
of sales tax on banking services and demanded sales tax and penalty amounting to Rs.77.592 milion (December 31,
2017 : Rs.77.592 million) {excluding default surcharge) for the period from July 2011 to Jure 2014. Bank's appeal

}7 f')' ' 100,538,031 3,660,356

against this order is currenlly pending before Commissioner Appeals. The Bank has not made any provision against this
order and the management is of the view thal ihe matter will be settled in Bank's favour through appellale process.
Hestated
2018 2017
U 34 BASI|C EARNINGS PERSHARE e {Rupees in 000)—---—
Profit for the year 10,991,275 8,613,804
—-—--{Number of shares in ‘000~
U Weighted average number of ardinary shares . . 1,773,672 1,766,588
' Rupees
Basic earnings per share _ 6.20 4.88
a5 DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE :
-——={RUpeas in 000}-----
Profit for the year 10,994,275 8.513,804
% s-—={Number of shares in ‘000}——--
' Weighted average number of ordinary shares (adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares) : : ‘ 1,775,732 1,772,198
U Rupees
Diled earnings per share 6.19 4.88
351 Reconciliation of basic and diluted earning per share +  =-——(Nuber of shares in "000)-re---
D Weighted average number of ordinary shares 1,773,672 1,766.588
Plus: Employee stock option scheme 2,060 5,608
Dilutive potential ordinary shares 1,775,732 1,772,196
Note 2018 2017
------- ~——{RUPBOS In 000)-r o
k1 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS '
~° Cash and Balance with Treasury Banks 5 82,407,736 70,381,480
Balance with other banks g 3,911,554 3,993,054
Call rrianey lendings 7 15,166,288 20.255,936
Overdrawn nostre accounts 14 {947,547} ~ {970,114}
[

{
|
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2018 2017
STAFF STRENGTH {Number of employees)
Domestic Overseas Total Domestic Overseas Total
Permanent 8,390 198 8588 7674 195 7 869
On Bank contract 29 82 111 66 85 159
Bank's own staff strength at the end of the year 8.419 280 8,699 7.740 280 8,020

In addition te the above, 2,106 (2017: 3,776) employees of outsourcing services companies were assigned to the Bank as at the end of
the year to perform services other than guarding and janitorial services.

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

Helding Company
General description

The Bank cperates an approved funded gratuity scheme which cover all regular permanent employees. The liability of the Bank in
respect of the plan is determined based on actuarial valuation carried ouf using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial valuation of
the defined benefit plan is carried out every year and the fatest valuation was camied out as at December 31, 2018. The significant
a'ssumptions are detailed below

Number of Employees under the scheme

The number of employees covered under the following defined benefit plan are:

2018 2017
{Number}

- Gratuity fund _ ' 8,185 7,506

Principal actuarial assumptions

The disclosures made beloﬁv are based on the information included in the actuarial valuation report of the Bank as of December- 31,
2018

2018 2017
------ {Per annum)--—----
Withdrawal rates .- ' Modarate High
Mortality rates sLIC Adjusted SLIC
. 2001 - 2005 2001 - 2005
Valuatien Discount rate (p.a) o 13.26% 9.50%
Salary increase rate {p.a) - Short term (3 years) 8.25% 5.75%
Salary increase rate {p.a) - Long term 11.25% 9.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets (p.a) : 13.25% 9.50%
Normal retirement age ) 60 Years 60 Years
Duration 03 Years 6 months 10 Years
Reconciliation of {receivable fram} [ payable to defined henefit plans
Note 2018 2017
==-esi{ Rupeas in 000)-------
Present value of ubligalions ' 3815 1,474,588 1,657,387
Fair value of plan assats 3818 {2,398,231) {2,386,933)
(Receivable} / payable - -
. {923,833) (729,546)
Movement in defined benefit obligations
Obligations at the beginning of the year 1,657,387 - 1,820,065
Current service cost - 270,272 306,823
Interest cost . i . : 148,967 167,766
Benefits paid by the Bank (304,841) {304,133)
Re-measurement loss / {gain) . {298,187) _ (433,234)
Ohbligations at the end of the year . 1,474,598 1657,387
Movement in fair value of plan assets : o
Fair value at the beginning of the year S 2,386,933 2.269,382
Interast income on plan assets =~ - - ' ) 234,486 224 536
Contribution by the Bank - net 185,753 250,153
Benefits pard - o . 1304,841) [304.133}
Re-measurements: Net return on plan assets _
over interest income gain/ (loss) : . 38.1.8.2 {104,100) (53,005)
Fair valug at the end of the year e : f( 2,398,231 2,386.933

e NN, S
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Movement in (receivabie) / payable
under defined banefit plan

Opening balance

Charge { {reversal) for the year

Contribution by the Bank - net

Re-maasuremant loss / (gain) recognised in QCI
during the year

Benefits paid by the Bank

Closing balance

Charge for defined benefit plans

Cost recognised in profit and loss

Current service cost
et interest on defined benefit asset / fiability

Re-measurements recognised in OCI during the year

Loss / {gain) on obligation

- Demographic assumptions

- Financial assumptions

- Experience adjustment

Return on plan assets over interest income
Total re-measurements recognised in OCI

Components of plan agsets
Cash and cash equivalents - net
Government Securities -

Ordinary shares/TFCs
Units of mual funds

Sensitivity analysis

Note

38.1.82

BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

2018 2017
==e-{Rupees in 000)-------
{729,546} (349,317)
185,753 250,153
(185,753} (250,153)
{194,087) {380,229)
(923,633) (728,548)
270,272 306,923
{84.519) (56,770)
185,753 250,153
(992} -
(310,891) (149,752)
13,696 {283.482)
104,100 53,005
{194,087) (380.229)
372,963 258,914
- 659,789
375,000 1,172,369
1,650,263 295,861

Sensitivity analysis has been performed by varying one assumption keeping all other assumptions constant and caleulating the impact
on the present value of the defined benefit obligations under the various employee benefit schemes. The increase / (decrease) in the
present velue of defined benstit obhganans as a result of change in each assumption should ba summarised is summarized as below;

Particulars

1% increase in discount rate -

1% decrease in discount rate

1 % increase in expected rate of salary increase

1 % decrease in expected rate of salary increase .
10% increase in withdrawal rate

10% decrease in withdrawal rate

1 year Mortality age set back

1 year Mortality age set forwarg

Expected contributions to be paid to the funds in the next financial year

Expected charge / (reversal) for the next financial year
Maturity profile '

The undiscounied expected payments maturity is tabulated below:

Particulars

Year 1

Year 2

Year3

Yeard

Year &

Year & to Year 10
Year 11 and above

2018
" PV of Defined
Benefit Change
Obligation -
=we{RUpees in 000)-———
1,332,323 142,275
1,612,385 (137,787)
1,622,818 {148,220)
1,321,566 152,932
1,468,848 5,750
1,454,268 20,332
1,460,734 13,864
1,462,760 11,838
2018
{Rupees. in
'‘000)
106,243
106,243
Undiscounted
Payments
{Rs. in "000)
148,556
108,648
115,755
105,011
121,440
746,583

7,610,572
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Funding Policy
The bank's policy for funding the staff retirement benefit schemes, is given in note 4 .10 (a).
Risks Associated with Defined Benefit Plans

Asset Volatility
The risk arises due to the inclusion of the risky assets in the pension/gratuity fund portfalio, inflatien and interest rate volatility.

Changes in Bord yislds : :
The risk arises when bond yield is lower than the expected return on the plan assets (duration based PIB discount rate}.

Inflation Risks

The risk arises if pension/gratuity benefits are linked to inflation and the inflation is higher or higher than expectéd. which results in
higher liabilties

Life expeciancy ! Withdrawal Risk:

The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impoée a risk to the benefit obligation, The movement of the
liability can go either way.

Longevity Risks: - :
The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at the plan level over the entire
retirge population. - :

Salary Increase Risk: -

The mast common type of Tetirement benefil is ane where the bengfit is linked with final salary. The risk arises when the actual
increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liabilty accordingly.

Alalah Securities (Pvt) itd

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its employees who have completed the qualifying period as defined in the
scheme. The Company has carried out an actuarial valuation on 31 December 2018 using Projected Unit Credit Method and results of
the valuation are as given below: . )

Actuarial assumptions o 31 December 31 December
2018 2017
. —vmeaean ~(Per annumj----m------

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Financial essumplions _ . _
Valuation discount rate ' 13.75% 8.50%

Salary increase rate : 13.758% T 8.50%

Demographic assumptions

Mortality rates (for death in service) . SLIC 200145 )
Rates of employee turnover _ Moderate - High
Amount recognisad in the halance sheet Note 31 December 31 December
2018 2017
~-=---(Rupees in 000)-=v----
Defined benefit obligation 3823 22,636 12,487
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net liability 22,636 12 487
Reconciliation of payable to defined benefit plan Note 31 December 31 December
' 2018 2017
=esev--(RUpees in 000)-----r----
Opening net lizbility 12,487 3,998
Charge for the year : 3824 6,762 4. 985
Other comprehensive income . . a.32.5 3,387 4,254
Benefits paid during the period / yaar - (750)
Clcsing net “ablmy . I 22,636 12 487
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Charge for the defined benefit plan

Current service cost

Net interest

Actuarial gain / {loss) on ebligation

Unrecognized actuarizl (loss) / gain as at 1 January
Actuarial loss on obligations - recognized in QCI

Unrecognized actuariaf loss at 31 December

Sensitivity analysis on signlficant actuarial

assumptions: actuarial liability

Discount rate +1%
Discount rate -1%
Salary increases +1%

Salary increases -1%

Weighted average duration of the present value of
defined benefil obligation

Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation

Distribution of timing of benefit payments (time in years)

Year 1
Year 2
Year 3
Year4
Year 5
Year 6 fo Year 10

Yaar 11 and above

The expected gratuity expense for the next one year works out to be Rs. 10.680 million.

Risks associated with defined benefit plans

(a) Investment risks

C o
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31 Decamber 31 December
2018 2017
----- —{Rupees in 000)---—

B,576 4,641

1,186 344
6,762 4,985
(4,473) (219)
(3,387) (4,254)
{7.860) (4,473}
20,224 1,150
25,612 1,350
25,597 1,400
20,116 1,212 -
31 December 31 December

2018 2017

.......(Ygars}.--.....

11.68 10.01

31 Decamber
2018 2017
----- -{Rupees in 000}

31 December

1,369 4,251
1,444 281
1,096 1,302
1,212 876
1,204 821
16,038 3,803

218,556 36,085

The risk arises when the actual performance of the investments is Tower than expectaticn and thus creating @ shortfall in the

funding objectives,

St
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B {b) Longevity risks
The risk arises when the actual lifelime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at 'the plan level over the

] plan leval over the entire retiree population.

) {c) Salary incraase risk

P

) The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is finked with final salary. The risk arises when the actual
- increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.

e ' - .
1 (d) Withdrawal risk

-}

. The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the benefit obligation. The movement

- .

: of the liability can go sither way. -

39 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
s

391 Heolding Company '

The Holding Company operates an approved provident fund scheme for all its permanent empioyees to which both the Holding
Company and employees confribute @ & 33% of basic salary in egual monthly contributions.

During the year, the Holding Company contributed Rs. 309,371 million (2017 Rs. 307.135 million) in respect of this fund.

% 39.2 Aifalah GHP Investment Management Limited

The subsidiary - Alfalah GHP investment Management Limited cperates an approved funded contributory provident fund for all its
permanent employees to which equal monthly contributions are made both by the Company and the employees at the rate of 10% of
basic salary.

J
L}

During the year, the subsidiary company contributed Rs. §.534 miflion (2017: Rs. 4.603 million} in respect of this fund.
40 EMPLOYEES STOCK QPTION SCHEME
The Holding Company has granted share options to éertain critical employees, (the “employees™) under the Employee Slock Options

Scheme {ESOS) as approved by the shareholders and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan {SECP) vide its letter no.
SMO/CIWWESOS/02/2013 dated Decemhber 27, 2013.

e B wea

Under the Scheme, the Holding Company has granted opticns to these employees (as selected by the Board Compansation
Commitiee, specifically formulated as-required under the Public Companies (Employees Stock Option Scheme} Rules, 2001} to
subscribe for fresh ordinary shares of the.Bank (being issuance of further capital without issue of rights) in the years 2014, 2015 and
2016. No fresh grants were made after the year 2018. However, due to a bonus issue of 10% in October 2018, all employees having
exercisable options outstanding were entitled to additional Shares worked out in accordance with the provisions of the scheme. The
revised option entittement and the revised option price have been disclosed below.

Under the schems, the options entille the selected employees to purchase shares at 40% discount {the Option Diseount), of the market
price prevailing at the date of the grant. As per the Scheme. the entitlements and exercise price are subject to adjusiments because of
issue of right shares and bonus shares. The aptiens carry neither right to dividends nor veting rights till shares are issued to employees
on exercise of options.

Details of share cptions granled under the scheme together with the status as at December 31 , 2018 are as follows:

U Granted in
the Granted inthe  Granted in the
year 2016 year 2015 year 2014
g : (In '000)
Cpticn issued 13,737 12,614 11,331
- . Cption ne longer in issue 4,199 3,264 1,732
Options vested i ’ 3113 2,407 N/A
: Options exercised 3088 2428 N/A
Options available for exercise 2,405 ' - .
Exercise price per sharg Rs. 14.85 15.1%5 16.32
Adjusted exercise per share for final tranche of year 2016 Rs- 13.59  ° N/A N/A
Option discount per share Rs. 9.96 10.10 10.88

e
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Chief Executive Directors Executives
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
_ {Rupees in '000) -

Fee . . 153,981 126,018 . .
Managerial remuneration 99,467 107,186 . ) - 2,075968 3,415,580
Post employment benefits 5,887 7676 - - 97,002 382,642
Rent and house maintenance . - - - 530,401 1,007,964
Utilities 3,533 4607 - - 127,083 255,935

108,887 119,469 153,981 126,018 2,830,454 5,062,121
Number of persons ' 1 2 9 ' 6 579 2.003

The Chief Executive and certain Executwes have been provided with the free use of cars and household equipment as per
Holding Company's policy.

All executives, including the CEQ are entitied to certain short term employee benefits which are disclosed in note 29.1.1 to
these financial statements. In addition, the Holding Company also granted share options to certain kay employees of the
Holding Company in the year 2014, 2015 and 2016, which shall vest till the year 2019 - refer note 40 and Annexure on-
Employee Stock Oplion Scheme,

The count for Executives has been reduced from 2,003 in 2017 to 579 in 2018 due to a change in definition of the Executives.
Earlier, any employee having an annual basic salary of Rs. 0.5 million or above was defined as an Executive. This threshold
has now been increased te Rs. 1.2 million. :

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The fair value of quoled securities cther than those classified as held to maturity, is based on quoted market price. Quoted
securities classified as held to maturity are carried at cost. The fair value of unquoted-equity securities, other than
investments in associales and subsidiaries, is determined on the basis of the break-up value of these investments as-: per
their latest available audited financial statements. The fair value of unquoted debt securities, fixed term loans, other assets,

other liabilities, fixed term deposits and borrowings cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due to the absence of a
current and active market for these assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for simitar instruments.

In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assats and Ilabllrtles are not mgmﬁcantly d;fferent
from their carrying values since these are either short-term in nature or, in the case of customer loans and deposits, are
frequently repriced.

Fair value of financial assets

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices),

Level 3: Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.

unobservable inputs). . ﬂ)({,,
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The lable beiow analyses financiat instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in the fair value higrarchy into which the fair value

measurgment is categorised:

On ba| sheet fi ) Insdir L}
Fir ial paaets . od at fair value
Invesiments

Federal Government Securitios

Shares

Nan-Government Debt Securities
Foreign Secunfies
Qthers

Off-balance shret financial Instruments - measured at fair value
Forward purchase of foreign exchange

Forward sale of foreign exchange

Forward purchase government securities transactions

Forward sale government securities fransactions

Derivatives purchases

Derivatives sales

On balance sheet financial instruments

E ol t
F -

ed at fair valug
- Invesiments
Federal Govermnent Securities
Shares
Nan-Government Debt Securities
Foreign Securities
lhers

Otr.b sheet fi
Fenward purchase of foreign exchange
Forward sale of foreign exchange

- measured at fair valua

nstr

Forward agreaments for lending
f orward agreaments for borrowing

Derwvalives purchases
Derivatives sales

2018
Leval 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
{Rupeea In '000}
- 205,872,893 . 205,872,883
8,228,553 - - 8,228,553
- L4597 774 - 8,497,774
. 10,540 323 10,540 323
. 4,519,604 - 4,549,604
. {970,502) {970,502}
- 65,224 - BB, 224
- {1,16%9) - [1,168)
2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
————— et HAUT=D T TR T R ——
- 333.782.148 - 333782146
6.19%4 535 - - 6,164,539
- 5,824,558 . 5,824,958
9,208,419 - 8.208,419
- 1,078,336 - 1,978,338
- (968,982) - [BEE D82Y
14,174 . 14,174

Cerlain categories of fixed assets (land and buikdings) and non banking assets acquired in satistaction of claims are carried al revaled amounts (level 3 measurement)
determined by profassional valuers based on their assessment of the market vaiues as disclosed in noles 10 and 12. The valualions are conducted by Ihe valuation experts

appoinied oy the Hofding Company which are also on the panel of Stale Bank of Pakistan,

The Group's policy is to recognize transfers into and out of ihe different fair value hierarchy levels at the date the event or change in circumstances thatl
caused the transfer occurred. There were no transfers betwaen levels 1 and 2 during the current period,

Valuation techniques ysed in determination of fair values:

Financial instruments in leve! 1

Financial instruments included in level 1 comprise of investrnents in ordinary shares of listed companies,

Financial instruments in lavel 2

Financial instruments included in level 2 comprise of Market Treasury Bilis, Pakistan Investment Bonds, GoP Sukuks, Qverseas Government Sukuks,
Overseas and Eurg Bonds. Term Finance Certificates. and other than Government Sukuks, forward foreign exchange contracts, and interest rate swaps.

Financial instruments in level 3
Currentlly. ne financial instruments are ciassified in level 3.

The fair value of unguoted debt securities, fixed term loans, other assels, other
sufficient reliability due 1o the absence of a current and active market for these

liabilities, fixed term deposits and borrowings cannot be catculated with
assels and iiabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar

Item

Valuation approach and input used

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The valuatian has been delermined by interpolaling the FX revaiuation rates announced by
State Bank of Pakistan.

IMerest rate swaps

The fair value of interest rate swaps and fulures js determined using prices and curves
through Bloomberg.

Market Treasury Bills(MTH) / Pakistan Investment Bands (P8},
and GoP Sukuks {GIS)

The fair value of MTBs and PIBs are derived using PKRV rates. GIS are revalued using
PKISRV rates. Floating raie PIBs are revalued using PKFRV rates

Overseas Government SUkuks, Dverseas and Euro Bands

The fair value of Overseas Government Sukuks, antt Overseas Bonds are valued on the
tasis of price available on Bioomberg.

Debt Securities (TFCs) and Sukuk other than Government

Invesiment in WAPDA Sukuks, debt securilies {comprising term finance certificates. bonds
and any other security issued by a company or a body corporate for the purpese of raising
funds in the form of redeemable capital are valued on the basis of the rates announced by
the Muluai Funds Association of Pakistan

prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commissian of Pakistan.

{MUFAP) in accordance with the methedology

Ordinary shares - listed

The fair value of investments in listed
quoted market price available at the Pakistan Stock Exchange, .

equity securiies are valued on the basis of closing

Operating fixed assets and non banking assets acquired in
satisfaction of claims

The :raluakion €xperis used a market based approach o amive at the fair value of the
Bank's properties. The market approach used prices and other relgvant information

cenainly accordingly a qualitative disclosure of sensitivity has not been presented in these
financiai siziements.
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ol ]
Ratall CIBG | 1BG | Tremsury | Cighal | Owersaas I Brakerago Asse1 Managemen | hers I Total
{Rupess In 006, ——
Profit & Loas
Met mark-upiretum proafit (1$7,079) 11,544,402 9,633,092 11,781,327 - 1,771 586 (2,584} 1,266 11,011,173 3,590,737
inter segment evanug - net 19,386,608 [9,024,965} 1837.417) (10,397,518} 227,863 (164,375) - - 614,002 -
Nan mark-up / rearn [ interest Income 4024 Bl 142,078 10va A% 3,065,155 30% 326 252 940 125438 450,889 T35 107 11,133,843
Total Income 3214388 5324812 6,014 455 4,743,966 626,869 1462121 122,854 ATI4T 338,126 42,724 550
Sagmeant direct Bxpenses 10,468,834 BB2,250 3,030,761 - 407 791 T 966,713 210,044 ®/1,17N T.071,058 24TIS M4
Inter Beg T Il 5,666,518 E23276 1,304 D54 2T 087 45 574 118,338 - - B3, Fid) -
Tolal expenses 16,135,352 1,305 528 4334815 581,770 822,762 1 m,osz 290,044 261,471 (60,676} 24,775,814
Reversal/ {Pravivions] 16,608 (212 267) {299,255} 172,643} {&4) [33,T6%) 8 > 43,080 545.334)
Profil before tax - gontinued gpemtipns 7,108 625 Iauairn 1|:!ﬂ|385 alnulsas ‘195.81?' ‘MalauJ ‘ﬁ' 1) 210,974 441,793 17,403 402
Prefit befare tax - discontinged operations 730,500
Retail GiBG 186G Treasu Digtal Crverseas Brokera Asset Managament Othars Total
——{Rupwes in"000]
Balanze Steet
Cauh & Bank palances HA4s024 11,605,738 12,388,256 243840 292 5,099,305 a2.752 4,693 (%0,B50) 86,119,290
[nvastmers 80,704 SO 426 43.89E107 221 SE1 045 - 29,434,619 33,571 T20.9%5 2828, 341 279, 25,731
Nei |nter Tegmanl Icncirlu i 3,3?1 - - - 424128 . - - 43,055,982 334,510,504
o insdiduth - ¥? 885 558 31,014,393 - 10,470,377 - - - B2,1T2.257
M\rances - paxforming 158, ?30 402 235171010 45,573 840 - - 18,233,298 2,167 1,111 4,588,046 498,700,856
Advances - non-perfoming 365, Tie 1,451,002 262,226 - - 13274 - - T24,705% 2,008,371
Others 9T5 10,628,391 5,508,343 B, 258,800 A7 785 11,612 can Ad0,267 X ] 26 $66 458 19222117
Top) Assets 314,295 092 250,553 040 +45,683,DTE 263,068 733 4,982 529 Te2 AT 564,7T9T 1,061,558 T8.693,156 1345 115,858
Borrawings 10,460,214 22,558 761 5300018 §2,172,164 - 22,097,452 379,494 - 403,741 124,017,738
Suacrdingisd debt - - - - - - - . 14,869,000 11,939,000
Deposits & oihar secounis 484,330,440 92,224,318 113,541,482 - 4 800048 27 670,152 - i |48, 154) 702,847 125
Nt intar segmant bonmowing - 135,169,563 - 201,240,935 - . . - - 136,510 504
Cthwrs A8 £33 541 8,554 126 A0,575.954 11 Ok 23,234 243 175801 208,308 B,690 242 £1,720.440
Total linbilities 513,642,305 259 T3 130,427,255 264,700 134 SE1 929 73,998 da7 455 355 206,308 21,034,798 1266093304
Het Assals GHI?B? i”iml 14 155|823 (TN.E.&_QJ - sisaslsau 10!,’2_ £57, 260 5T.858 108 ¥7,021 B52
Equiy = 7T
Conti 1 & & i SBIZH!TN ‘fﬁﬁ!ﬂiﬂl 31777 BO5 §1Eﬂ'2 1-?'534 solmen SE[ - ‘MJZSIHIS SNII!E-I!ISII
2047
L_Rstail | cme 1 IBG [ Treasu Dighal OveErsess Brokstage | Avsat Management Cthers Total
——{Rupees jn D00}
Pruiit & Loss .
Met mark-upfretumipeefil Z15.57Y 10,920,380 4577481 12.742 488 {188) 1,558,327 3.0 302 605,126} 28,983 452
Inier sagmant rvenue - net 14,443,074 {7 113,801 {344 BET) (7 613,E95) 168,124 [21.457) - . 581,786 -
Noa mark-up J relum f inferest Income 3667 144 753,520 1,028,042 2,600,668 786,745 215.32¢ 182.29% _baEgs5 (7.852) 9,762,007
Toral Incame 17. 793,645 4,560 682 5260636 7739455 855,672 1752157 185,306 530174 {31,165 88,745 549
Segmenl direcl eupanses 10.626.062 730 826 3.002.454 550,115 52LE10 884,604 154,226 N2 BES 2489052 25,200,574
Imer segmeni axpense aocation 5.552.084 731,403 1,482 405 641,985 57.2592 1436748 - - (8.588,828) -
Tatal expenses 165,158,176 1.470,229 4,514,329 1192100 EB5,902 1,038,283 154 326 302 895 {128.775) 25,290,574
Provisions 462 058 260,283 o - - 4 B75 ES - - 516,48,
Profit before Lax - cominued agerationy 2 117.575 3 358 753 B5E. 513 5,537,355 o2 TT0 569,198 11,045 236,279 Se581 14 071,07
Frafil before tax - discontinued operations — 19
Resall [S[:T:] 1BG Treawu Digtal Overseas Brokara; Anset Managemant Cthers Total
{Rupses in I}
Balsnce Shest
Casn & Bark batances 43,181 802 7.712.857 10,392,888 7,251,880 488, 248 5107.704 244 BES . 1118 {12,633 74374534
Invesiments 1.185.021 T13.213 7914182 333,926,478 - 24 598438 42 626 571,438 2,700,954 401,742, 208
Net infer zegmant lending 263,461,028 - - - 6,245728 - - - 29,366, 360 28B,773.714
Lendings te financial instilutions - - 0,891,450 11,848 535 - 5,155,832 - - - 48,895 8928
Advances - perfanming 130,728,918 193,641,955 55208 455 - - 14,601,488 1691 2,867 4,578,534 398, TEa B52
Advances - hon-parforming BAT 923 242,551 35716 - - 44 675 - - 124 201 1.665070
Hhers 15,823 933 5,482 472 4,403,704 E 720312 384,162 17 539 195 527,715 366,171 21,011,603 75,361 218
Totsl Asaets 456,078 825 210,693.048 139,207 428 358.747 205 71200136 808,047,336 B15.637 547,545 STB40.653 1209807 614
Bormowings BATH, 745 15,870,995 3,548,712 159,167 819 - 19.608 082 243253 - 218323 207,536,828
Suberdinated debi - . - - - E - - 4.991.000 4,231,000 °
Daposils & olher accounls 428 T13.427 76,990,726 1124143683 - 7.046.650 18,926 520 - - {167,003 B44 024 984
Het inler segrmmnt bormowing - 103,588,014 - 185185700 - - - 2088, 772.T14
Cthers 12957 986 8.970. 164 5781718 3,083 270 73,586 26.157 366 341.7q7 254 209 HE.080, 111 76,750,597
Tot) GabHlties 449350 159 205 418,800 125844 702 A57446.783 712013 54'933,378 84,950 254& 21,422 430 1,232 977 234
Nat Asaets 5.228 468 5473 148 13,382 536 1300416 . 3,113 958 231 67T 892 856 36,427,223 €6.830.580
Equity — BE B0, 38
Conting. LY 59 258 374 85,721,796 37.986.102  220.25% BSE 40 588 18,513,337 9,112 . 10,905.605 423,106,139
w S — e e L T
During tha year, the Bank has cf Digilai Banking a5 a ¥ g in a manner with {he iMemal reponing siruciure of the Bank, 5 d msuits are reported [o the senior managamant of
the Bank for the purpoan of git decision making yEiams ano int la ba ak to this and asyess is pertormance.

»1
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432 Segment details with respect 1o g K

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT ANALYSIS

Fual]
Pakistan | Middle Eaxi I Banglndost ] A -
f_ ! e hl 1d for Sake Tatal
{Rupese in 000}
Profit & Loss
Nel mark-up/ralutndiproit 28,817,140 174,718 59,039 - 31,590,737
Fritar $egment revenue - nel 164,375 1133,243) M3 - .
NOR Mark-up ¢ retum / iderest income 10 880 873 247111 5829 - 11,133,812
Tatal Income 40,862 478 1,288,586 573,50 - 42,724,580
Segment duact expamibes 23,605,101 BAZ,63% 278,074 24,775 814
Iniar gegment expensza alkotation {118,339} 23,508 #2831 - -
Tatal axpansas 23,690,762 743,247 349,708 . M.775.874
Provizlans [511&'] -{30,550) .13, 215) - BA5 334
Frofit before lox - tontinsasd operations . _ 16 660,07 14,689 DA616 P 17‘{_3'ﬁij'
Profit efars 1ax - disconti rations - - . - . ’ - ), -
efare 3continued ope ] . 1{0 500 T80 500
[_ Pakistan | Mitkide East ’ Bang I T tew
fer Sale
— {Rupaes In '000}
Balance Shast -
Cash and Bank batances ' B1,219,888 1,318,443 3,780,962 - 86,319,290
Invesimanis 249,017,112 21828791 1.605,826 . - 278,251, 78
Met Inter gagmant landings . 335610074 - - . 326,510,074
Landings to financial InslituGony Stsomann 5477 480 5,382 538 . 82,172,287
Advantas - periaming 475,457,556 3,001,998 16,231,301 - 498,700,348
Aﬂ\:mnes - ron-peroming 2406, 124 - 132,738 - 2,534,872
OAivore ~ &7 510,038 jléﬂlﬁﬁal -’5,423.?64 21,625 493 ?9&2‘!17
Total Assaty 1. 270,841,510 26 B3T 429 27,919,469 21625496 1,347 234 578
Bormwings X 101,925,284 21496018 536,433 - 124,017,736
Subordinaied deist X 11,989,060 - - - X - 11,889,000
Deposils & other accours .o B¥5,176,97) - 463510 23,038 662 - 702,847,125
Nt inter sngment borrawing * 1ILE19,074 - - - 31x.4919,074
Others ' 48,331,856 12,008 2,450,054 21,825,458 32,7 10,440
Total lab#inies - 1196 042 147 26,441,591 26,093,146 21825 498 1,270,202 374
Net dssals ’ . ’ 74,759 553 39 ,M_G 1‘325|343 - 7,021,852
Equity . . 77,021,852
. e ——k——
Contingencles & C it 4??|0Ilii1! 25 773,018 4412 496 ° 460 038 suulzu B9
2017
P ohe Bang) Algtuani - |
L 'ahislan I Mindd e East "] I Halg for Sai Tota) —I
{Rupazs in "00)
Prefit £ Loss
Net matk-upfralumprofit . 27,4251 a7 173 36t 153 - 28,903,462
ter sngmand revenue - nel 21.487 [tiAat ] 56,222 - -
Mon mark-up f return / interest income 9.548.780 188,506 25,741 - 5,762,087
Total Incame 36,993,393 1,109,040 643,118 - 38745048
Seyment direcl axpanses B 24,396.370 705,022 169,562 . 25290074
Inter sagmert expans e alioeallon . {143.678) - 116,848 26,832 - - .
Telal expenzes . 24,252 602 B21,868 215,414 . 25,290,974
Provisions : kL 44 6eB : .- - 616,495 -
Frofil betere {ax - cuntinued opamlions 13758 164 350372 453 534 - 14.071.07 i
ad— P — = R e ———
Profil betors 18x - disconkinued cperations 330 815 338,81
e ————
i Banatad ¥ -
L Fakistan ’ Middie Easy I Held ror Eale Totat
———{Rupses in "000}
Balance Sheet . .
Cash & Sank balances 68,266,830 4,025 789 X 108105 - 7Fd 374,534
Invesimants ITT 145,560 6,440,353 12,158,085 - 401,742,398
Nedinter segment kendings 298,773,714 - - - 288,773,714
L ings lo R W inEltut] 42,739 996 I853627 . 2207205 . 48,896,833
Advances - perfgmming 384,362 262 12,810,576 1,790,512 . 58,963,750
Atlvancas - non-performing 1.651 493 44 876 . - 1,685,172
Cihers 57.822.022 [4,641,009} (3.178.873) - 25,356,000 75,261,218
Total Ascets 1,231,760,278 22,624,002 20.067 244 25.356,080 1,200 807 614
Borrcwings . 187,727 B4z 1720,218 16,088,877 - 207 536 908
Suboroinalad debt 4,801,000 - - - 4,991.000
Daposits & other aecounts 625,088,064 17,821,781 1,105,159 - Hd4 224 9A4
Net inler sagment borrowing 298,773,714 - - - 298,773 114
Ctlers . 50,551 642 1.470.839 41774 24,678,242 76,750,587
Teta) Habilties 1,168.042.287 21020815 19,735,840 24.67&.542 1,232,977234
Hat .Aum E3. 71801 1.613 167 821 434 £77 748 £E 830,380
Equity - £5,830.380
Gonti L5 404 183 402 13,331 B76 4,473,300 1.102,161 423 106 739
44 TRUST ACTIVITIES
The Graup is rot wngaged in any Significan inust acivies. Howaver, i Bcts as yecuity agent for verious Termn Finance Gert I and di on behaif of fix customars. In addition, the Biank is alsa hokling

investments of other anities in its IPS gccount Maintained with the State Bank of Pakistan,
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has related party fransactions with its parant, subsidiaries, assorcia

Parsonnal,

The Group enters inta transaclions with related parties in the grdinal
with person of similar standing. Contribulions fo and accruals in Fa
acluarial valuatrons / terms of the contributian plan. Remuneration
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BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

tes, joint ventures. employee benefit plans and its directors and Key Management

ry course of business and on substantially the same terms as for comparahie fransactions
spect of siaff reticement benefits and other banefil plans are made in accordance with the
to the executives / officers is determined in accordance with the terms of their appointment.

Datails of transactions with relaled parties during the year. cther than those which have been disciosed elsewhare in these financial statements ara as follows:

Balances with ather banks

In currenl scoounis .
In deposit accounts

L.angings lo financial ingtitulions
Qpenirg balance

Additian during tha year

Repaid during tha yoar

Closing balance

lnvasimanis
CGipening batance
Invaetmeant made auring the yesr

Irvestment redsemead / disposed off during the year

Transfer i/ (Gt} - net
Ciosing balance

Frovision 1o¢ giminution in value of investmenis

Advances

Cpening balence
Additinn during the year
Reaid during the year
Transfer in / {ouwl) -
Clesing balance

Prowvision held against advances

Otrer Assels

Interest / mark-up accrued
Recewakle from stall retrement fund
PPrepayment f renl receivabla

Frobil Recaivatle on Sukuk

Advance agansl shares

Mhers

Horrewings

Opening batance
Borrowings during the year
Settled Juring the year
Closing balance

Subordinated debt

DOpening balance

Redemption ¢ Sold during the year
Clasing balance

Doposits and alher secaunts
COpening balance

Raceived during the year
Wiharawn during the yaar
Translear in { {out) - mat
Closing balance

Cthar Liabilities

Interest ) mark-up payable
Unearned reni

Others

Contingencies and Commitments
Qthar contingancies

Income

Mark-up f return fimeres| earmed
Fer and commission ncome
Divigerd meamg

ot getr on sule ol socurlies
{thor neame

Lxpense
WMars-up § retumn / interast paid

Other operaling expenses
Pravision / {Reversal) apainst nen-performing advances

and invesimants
Othars

Dividend parg
Insurance premium puid
nsurarce claims setttad

— e it Dec 21, 2048

As at bag 1, 2017 —— ...

_ Kay manage- y Kay manage-
D':;‘;"r meni Anzociates Orher '?;:m Dir;;t;rﬂ mant hssocintes Other F..M'd
persannel pant Personna parties
{Rupers in '000) —&{Hupeys in "DDD)
R - - 1.500,000 - - - -
- - - 134,478,646 - - - 89,750,000
- - - {135.978.648) - - - (88,250 000)
. . - - - - - 1,500,000
- - 3213322 1.317.808 - - 3,263,590 2.579.489
330,829 454,122 M - 2,134,593 1.615.585
(205.000; {739,269 - - 12,184.851) 3,081,266}
422 461 - M - -
- S 1 T 77 3203322 TSTTRGE
- - - 5353 - - - 53,936
- 460,291 - 7.581.327 79,130 351,335 - 8.040,236
. 206,248 - 6,738,397 21,120 304,451 - 15,620,527
(6.068) 98, 964) - (8,201,259} {155,858} - (14,149, 78g;
111,718 {115 198} - (2. 673958) (100,260} (39,5473 - {1915 850}
105,650 451,375 - 3,354 509 - 460.291 - T.o%.3z27
. . - - . - - 1 540029
CMOPRET
5507 42,368 47,13 - 43,725 - 577.813
. - - 623 633 - - - 729,546
R - 83z 5473 - - 2,196 -
- . - 1,858 - - - 1819
- . - 50,000 - - - -
- 1.216 184013 - - 132 224 748 823
- - - 502,800 - - -
. - - 35,345,858 - B - 34,192,883
- - - (35,845 808 - - - {33,690,083}
. - - - - - - 502,800
e ]
- 19,964 435,044 - - 132,348 79,003 332,467
- {19.884) (43,044} - - {112,384} {32.85%) (322.467)
R . . - - 19 954 45,044 -
6275 161,264 1,509,741 4,178,991 10,201 164,508 1,031,857 5863180
206,234 1,444 555 33,685,662 82,682,956 302,823 1895088 55650025 111,897,086 .
(205.130) (1,422,088) 134,138, 684) 87189777} (1974108 (1.348,38D) (565,171,851} (115,305,412)
- 10,459 - 3865601 (109,338 1350 130 - {1,076 872)
7 A3g 194,151 1,056,739 3217 181 §.275 161, 264 1,508 749 4178891
11 1.680 7445 11.918 - 1,448 7.845 40,025
- - - - - 8,935 -
- 2185 9,656 3,981 - 8,070 faq -
- - 162,458 - - - 128,188 2,589,842
Far the year ended Dec 31, 2018 For the year sndwd Dec 34, 2017
{R! in "ORG). R in 900}
5,507 16,663 476.686 2319 2197 - 452,954
- 219,000 2,108 - - - 3.481
- - - 5675 - - 323,375 -
B 3180 424 357 2124 - 2,027 508,882 18,608
20 453 55,367 192 261 119 19,668 78015 274,682
- 108,887 994 483 - 666 505 434 135 1,356,377 - 983648
- . - - - . . {3.025)
88.216 38778
640.'921_ 11,584 5,454 1.538 460 . . .
- - 487,497 - - - 505,526 -
- - 270,344 - - - 321,392 -
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: 2018 2017
r] 48 CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS .. -Rupees in 000)---.
Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):
} Paid-up capital (net of losses) 17,743,629 16,075,720
' ~ Capital Adéquacy Ratio (CAR):
Eligible Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Capital 60,698,276 54 227 146
] Eligible Additional Tier 1 (ADT 1) Capital . 6,833,728 -
Tota! Eligible Tier 1 Capital 67,532,004 54,227,145
j Eligible Tier 2 Capital « 15,263,399 12,140,824
: Total Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2) 82,795,402 66,367,970
'3 * Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs):
© Credit Risk 493,307,386 | 431,830,731
Markel Risk 2,783,950 3,703,163
Operational Risk 61,403,300 62,020,163
" Total 557,494,636 497,554,057
Common Equity Tier 1 Capitat Adequacy raflo 10.89% 10.80%
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratic 1211% 10.90%
i Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 14.85% 13.34%
In line with Basel lll Capital Adequacy guidelines, following capital requirements are applicable to the Bank:
n Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy ratic 6.00% 6.00%
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 7.50% 7.50%
[] Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 11.90% 11.28% -
" For Capital adequacy calculation, Bank_has adopted Standardized Approach for Credit & Market Risk related exposures and
Alternate Stendardized Approach (ASA) for operational risk,
Leverage Ratio (LR):
3
Eligible Tier-1 Capitaf 67,532,004 54,227,146
Tota' Exposures 1,187,539,074 1,322‘273,942
ﬂ Leverage Ratio 5.69% 4.10%
Liquidity Coverage Ratio {LCR};
U Total High Quality Liguid Assets 252,703,051 234 488,085
Tolal Net Cash Qutflow 162,363,261 165,803,247
u Liquidity Coverage Ratio 156%, 1419%
Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR):
;u Total Available Stable Funding 630,592,999  555280,073
_ Total Required Stable Funding _ - 472,759,179 405,154,261
u Net Stable Funding Ratio ' 133% 137%
46.1 Tlhe full disclosures_ on the papital Adequgcy, Leve{age Ratio & Liguidity Requiremeﬁts as. pef SBP instructions has been
a Placed on the website. The link to lhl:-.‘ full disclosure is available at hﬂps:le.bankalfalah.comfﬁnancial-reportsf.

oy

!'
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47 RISK MANAGEMENT

1

The variety of business activiies undertaken by the Bark require effective identification, measurement, monitoring, integration and
management of different financial and non-financial risks that are constantly evolving as business activities change in response to
r concurrent internal and external devalopments. The Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC) is appointed and authorized by the Board
of Directors (BOD) ta assist in design, regular evaluation and timely updating of the risk management framework of the Bank. The Board
has further authorized management committees ie. Central Management Committea (CMC) and Central Credil Committee {CCC). To

The risk management framework endeavors to be a comprehensive and evolving guideline to cater to changing business dynamics. The
|.- framework includes: ’ .

- Clearly defined risk management policies and proceduies.

: - Well constiluted organizational stru\cture. in the form of a separate risk management department, which ensures that individuals
[ responsible far risk approval are independent from risk tzking units i.e. Business Units.
- Mechanism for ongaing review of policies and procedures and risk exposures. ¥

E The primary objective of this architecture is to inculcate risk management into the organization flows to ensure that risks are accurately

L) identified & assessed, properly documented, approved, and adequately monitored & managed in order to enhance long term earnings and

to protect the interests of the Bank's depositors and shareholders.

The Bank’s risk management framework has a well-defined organizational structure for effective management of Credit Risk, Market Risk,
Liguidity Risk, Operational Risk, IT security Risk, Credit Risk Systems and Environment and Sociai Risk.

471 Credit Risk ..

Credit risk is the identification of prabability that counterparty will cause a financial loss to the Bank due to its inability or unwitlingness to
meet its contractual obligation. This credit risk arises mainly from both direct lending activities as well as contingent liabilities, Credit risk .
management processes encompass identification, assessment, measuremant, monitoring and control of Bank's exposire to credit risk. The
Bant's credit risk management philosophy is based on Bani's overall business strategy / direction as established by the Board. The Bank is
committed to the appropriate level of due diligence to ensure that credit risks have been properly analysed, fuily disclosed to the approving
authedities and appropriately quantified, also ensuring that the credit commitment is appropriataly structured, priced (in line with market
practices) and documented. ) i

ﬂ The Bank has built and maintained a sound loan portfolic in terms of well-defined cregit policy approved by BOD. Hts credit evaluation
system comprises of weli-designed credit appraisal, sanctioning and review procedures for the purpose of emphasizing prudence in lending
activities and ensuring the high quality of asset portfolio. In order to have an eflective and efficient risk assessment, and to closely aiign its
functions with Business, Credit Division has separate units for corporate banking, Islamic banking, commercial & SME banking, agricuitural

u financing, and overseas operations. ' ' . oo
The Bank manages its portfolio of loan assets with a view to kmit concentrations in terms of risk quality, industry, maturily and large

g exposure. Internal rating based portfolia analysis is also conducted an regular basis. This portfolio level oversight is maintained by Credit &

l For Domestic operations, Bank detarmines the amount for Specific & General provisions are held as per the Prudential Regulations issued
by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBF). Provisions at overseas branches are hald to meet the requirements of reguiatary authorities of the

respective countries in which overseas branches operates. .

1

A sophisticated internal credit rating system is in place, which is capable of guantifying counter-party & transaction risk it accordance with
the best practices. The risk rating system takes into consideration quadlative and guantitative factors of the counter-party, transaction
e struclure & security and generates internal ratings at Obligor and Facility levels. The facility rating system, developed in Kne with SBP's
guidelines, also provides expected LGD (Loss Given Default). This has béen implamented in Corporate Banking, Isiamic Banking and Retail
& Middle Market segments. Furthermore, this system has an integrated loan origination module, which is currenty being used in Corporate
Banking, Islamic Banking and Retail segments. The system is regularly reviewed for improvements as per SBP's guidelines for Internat
Credit Rating and Risk Management. Furthermore, Bank has also automated Internal Rating validation process based on statistical tests for

portfolio for strategizing and decision making. The system has been enhanced to compute the risk weighted assets required for supporting
the credit facilities at the time of credit origination and computation of Risk Weighted Assets for the quarterly credit risk related Basel

A centralized Tredit Administration Division (CAD) under Credit & Risk Management Group is working towards ensuring that terms of
approval of credit sanctions and regulatory stipulations are complied, all documentation including security documentation is regular & fully
enforceable and al! disbursements of approved facilities are made oniy after necessa?y authorization by CAD. Credit Monitoring, under

CAD. keeps a watch on the quality of the credit portfotio in terms of borrowers' behavior, identifies weakening accounts relationships and
repors it to the appropriate autherity with 2 view to arrest deterioration.

. the priority of the Special Asset Management Group
settlement or a combination of these)
broceed with legat recourse so as to
poftfolio of the Bank and reports the
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Credit Risk - General Disclosures Basel Specific

Bank Alfalah Limited is using Standardized Approach (SA) of SBP Basel accord for the purpose of estimating Credit Risk Weighted Assets.
Under $A, banks are allowed to take into consideralion external rating(s) of counter-party(s) for the purpose of calculating Risk Weighted
Assets. A detailed procedural manual specitying return-based formats, methodologies and processes for deriving Credit Risk Woeighted
Assets in accordance with the SBP Basel Standardized Approach is in place and firmly adhered ta.

Disclosures for portfolio subject to the Standardised Approach & Supervisory risk weights

External ratings

SBP Base! |l guidelines require banks to use ratings assigned by specified External Credit Assessment Institutions (ECAIs) .namely -
PACRA, JCR-VIS, Mondy's, Fitch and Standard & Poor's. '

The State Bank of Pakistan through its letter number BSD/BAI-2/201/1200/2009 dated December 21, 2008 has accorded approval to the
Bank for use of ratings assigned by Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh (CRAB) and CRISL. The Bank uses these ECAIs to rate its
exposures denominated in Bangladeshi currency on certain corporate and banks incorporated in Bangladesh. :

The Bank usaes external ratings for the purposes of computing the risk weights as per the Basel Ill framework. For exposures with a
contracteal maturity of less than or equal to one year, short-term rating given by approved Rating Agencies is used, whereas for long-term
exposure with maturity of greater than one year, long-term rating is used. .

Where there are two ratings available, the lower rating is considered and where there are three or more ratings the second - lowast rating is
considered.

Disclosures with respect to Credit Risk Mitigation for Standardised Approach
Credit risk mitigation policy

The Bark defines collateral as the assets or rights provided to the Bank by the borrower or a third party in order to secure & credit facility. -
The Bank would have the rights of secured creditor in respect of the assets / contracts offered as security for the ebligations of the borrower
{ obligor.

Collateral valuation and management

As slipulated in the SBP Basel [i / Ill guidelines, the Bank uses the comprehensive approach for collaieral valuation. Under this approach.
the Bank reduces its ¢redit exposure to a counterparty when calculating its capital requirements to the extent of risk mitigation provided by
the eligible financial collateral as specified in the Basel lll guidelines. In line with Basel I / 1ll guidelines, the Bank makes adjustments in
eligible collaterals received for possible future fluctuations in the value of the collateral in fine with the requirements specified by SBP
guidelines. These adjustments, also referred to as 'haircuts’, to produce volatility adjusted amounts for collateral, are reduced from the
exposure to compute the capital charge based on the applicable risk weights. '

Types of collateral taken by the Bank

Bank Affalah Limited determines the appropriate collateral for each facility based on the type of product and counterpanty. In case of
corporate and SME financing, fixed assets are generally taken as security for long tener loans and current assets for working capital
finance usually backed by mortgage or hypothecation. For project finance, security of the assets of the borrewer and assignment of the
underlying project contracts is generally obtained. Additional security such as pladge of shares, cash collateral, TDRs, $SC/DSCs, cherge
on receivables may also be taken. Moreover, in order to cover the gnlire exposure Personal Guarantees of Directors / Borrowers are slso
cbtained generally by the Bark. For retail products, the security to be taken is defined in the product policy for the respective products.
Housing foans and automobile loans are secured by the security of the property/automabile being financed respectively. The valuation of
the properties is carried out by an approved valuation agency.

The Bank aiso offers products which are primarily based on collateral such as shares, specified securities and piedged commodities, These
products are offered in line with the SBP prudential regulations and approved product policies which also deal with types of cBllateral,
valuation and margining.

The decision on the type and quantum of cellateral for each transaction is taken by the credit approving authority as per the credit approval
autharization approved by the Central Credit Committee (CCC) under its delegation powers. Far facilities provided as per approved product
policies (retail products, loan against shares etc.), collateral is taken in line with the policy.

Types of eligible financial collateral

For credit risk mitigation purposes (capital adequacy purposes), the Bank considers all types of financial collaterals that are eligible under
SBP Basel lil accord. This aiso includes Cash / TDRs, Gold, securities issued by Government of Pakistan such as T-Bills and PIBs,
National Savings Certificates, cerain debt securities rated by & recognised credit rating agency, mutual fund units where daily Net Asset
Value (NAV] is available in public domain and guarantees from certain specified entities (Government of Pakistan, Banks etc.) under
substitution effect of Basel in genaral, for capital calculation purposes, in line with the SBP Basel || requirements, the Bank
recognises only eligible collaterals as mentioned in the $SBP Basel (1l accord.

Credit concentration risk

Credit concentration risk arises mainly due to concentration of exposures under -various categories viz. industry, geography: and
singlefgroup borrower exposures. Within credit portfolio, as a prudential measure aimed at betier risk management and avoidance of
Concentration of risks, the SBP has prescribed regulatory limits on banks' maximum exposure to single borrower and group borrowers.
Moreover, in order to restrict the industry concentration risk, Bank’s annual credit plan spells out the maximum allowabie exposure that it
Can take on specific industry. Additionally, the Intemal Rating System allows the Bank 1o monitor rigk rating congentration of horrowars
against different grades / scares ranging from 1 - 12 {1 being the best and 12 being loss category). Concentration in customers that are
rated in high risk category is also mgnitorad against the approved appetite set by the managemen.
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Pariculars of bank’s significant on-balance sheat and off-batance sheel credit risk in various seclors are analysed as foliows:

Credit risk by public / private seclor

Public Govermment
Privale

Investment in debt securities.

Credit risk by industry sector

Textie

Chemical and Pharmaceuticals
Electronics and electrical appliances
Power {eleciricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary
Transport, Storage and Communication
Financial

Credit risk by public / private sector

Fublief Governmanl
Private

Agvances

Credit risk by industry sector

Agricutiure, Forasiry, Hunting and Fishing
Automobile and transporation equipment
Cement

Chemical and Pharmaceuticals
Construction

Electronics and efectrical apphiances
Expors { Imports

Finangial

Foog & Allied Products

Footwear and Lealher garments
Individuals

Insurance

Metal & Alied industries

Mining and Quarrving

Qil and Allied

Cthars

Power (electricity). Gas, Water, Sanitary
Services

Sugar

Textie

Transpaort, Storage and Commuricatic
Wholesale & Retal Trade :
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Gross lendings

Non-perforniing tendings

Provision heid

7018 5017 7018 7017 7018 2017
{Rupees in '000)

62,172,287 48.805.828 ] . . .

62,172,287 48.895 828 - - " -

Gross investments

Non-performing invesiments

Provision held

2018 2017 2018 207 2048 2017
{Rupees in '009)
167,888 173,520 167,888 173,520 167,288 173,520
606,732 617,638 606,732 617,638 608,732 617,638
1,785 2,185 1,785 2,185 1,785 2,185
7,154,912 7.062.456 - - - -
B4g 367 1,357 B32 281,700 224,498 281700 224,498
613,756 469,302 83,776 79,361 61776 12,361
9,393,440 9,682,933 1,121,881 1,007 202 1,121,881 1,087,202

Grogs investments

Non-performing investmonts

Provigion held

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
<{Rupees in 'Q00)
6,964,682 6,807,539 . - . -
2,428,758 2 875,394 - 1,087 202 - 1,097,202
9,393,440 0.682.933 - 1,097,202 . 1,087,902
Gross advances Non-performing advances Provision heid
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 M7
— {Rug in '000)
52,589,474 32,080,952 236,673 235231 124,732 150,350
10,413,594 7,856,545 1,000,864 996.428 376,448 367,279
13,081,710 8,187,225 - - - -
24,724,564 17,746,542 822,917 845938 82217 830,271
7,857,587 1,995,896 51%.297 118,291 B1%,397 117,201
10,718,745 9,876,062 130,474 145,684 130,474 146,664
8,423,173 6,337,714 715,315 733,558 £47,563 682,557
9,628 504 6,511 404 926,031 551,150 925,039 851,150
47,122,245 31,504,922 2,367,083 687,555 2,145,133 869,842
2,050,714 2,271,226 203,343 180,212 183,840 174,187
48,262,008 42,018,570 788,404 876,257 540,429 703,030
2,508 14,575 . . - -
16,961,841 10,717,131 636,651 754,328 635,360 744,349
2,319,851 1,558,248 - - . -
15,001,286 6,477,959 - 835574 . 635,574
35,544,447 26,114,688 1,004,676 1,100,531 864,087 836,827
76,868,350 66,719,698 1,157,905 - . 289,476 .
6,824,348 14,521 265 94,578 477,503 82733 477,503
11,627,623 9,961,647 841,130 3,608 372,009 2,186
93,676,552 71,480,857 3,630,707 3,834,443 3,617,203 3,554,234
5,597,342 8,592 228 1,785,681 1,788,981 1,758,981 1,788 981
18,044,357 34,533.980 1,877,105 3.215.838 1,826,156 2,854 966
518,297,711 417181032 18,823 540 17 580,111 15,584,665 15,685,041

e
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Credit risk by public / private sector

Gross advances Non-performing advances Praviston held
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 017
{Rupees in 'C0D)
Public/ Govemment 98,240,545 67,044,050 - N - .
Private 420 167,166 250.137,873 18,823,540 17,580,111 15,884,660 15,685,041
518,397,711 477,181,032 18,823,540 17,580,711~ 15,584,669 15,685,041
Coatingencies and Commitments 2018 2017
-——-{RUpags in 00D)-—---

Credit risk by industry sactor
Agriculture, Forestry, Hunting and Fishing - 644,423 271,048
Autamobile and transportation equipment 3,199,346 4,625,145
Cement 475,655 2,509,863
Chanical and Pharmaceuticals . 3,802,147 3,992.081
Construglion s 4,333,141 6,243,762
Electronics and electrical appliances : 1,816,994 1,867,320
Exports f Imports 5,048,665 4,530,444
Financial N 17,923,587 22,038,188
Feod & Allied Products __ 7,589,602 5,280610
Footwear and Leathar garmanis ) 176,289 401,764
Individuat 210,596 321,576
nsurance . . 66,021 §7,548
Melal & Alied indusiries v s 343,783 9,845,722
Mining and Quarrying o 3,822,471 74,01
Qi and Alied - 585,359 9,636.992
Qthers 30,743,208 20,739,714
Power (efectricity), Ges, Waler, Santary 7,283,152 5,648,591
Services 882,925 11,079,370
Sogar 411,855 707,252
Textile 22,378,081 16,564,787
Transpon, Slorage and Communication 3,354,176 3,860,401
Wholesale and Retail Trade R 9,874,261 7,011,478

: -, 125,112=423 137,950,168
Cradit risk by public / private sector . .
Public/ Government . . 14,722,962 27,668,588
Private - T 110,389,524 110,280,569

T 125,112,423 137,950,166

Concentration of Advances

The bank top 10 exposures on the basis of total {funded and non-funded exposures) aggregated o Rs 136.994 million (2017 : 100,748 milion} are as

fallowsng: . .
Funded - 119,055,988 56,344,569
Nen Funded 17,030 556 32,403,343
Total Expasure 136,853 545 100,747 942
The sanctioned limits against these lop 10 exposures aggregated to Rs 191245 Miliion {prior year: 153,892 Million}

Total fundead classified therein 2018 2017

Amount Pr:\:;:on “Anriount Provision held
{Rupees in 'Dﬂﬁ}

CAEM - - . -
Substandard - . - -
Dowbifipl . b . . .
Loss . . 9.358 5358
Total Nil ] NI 5,358 5,358

For the purpose of this nole, expasure means outslanging funded fecilities and utilised non-furded tacililes a5 at the reparting da-te.

b
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Advances . Province/Region-wise Disbursemaent & Utitization

2018
Litilization
. Distursement KPK including " AJK includi
Pravince/Reglon Punjab Sindh | ta necluding
N Il FATA Balochistan Isiamabad Gilaht-Baltistan
Puniab 1,011,452 998,920 5,379 (13 1 7,048 39
Sindh T28.308 1,168 724,783 D 19 138 -
KPk, including FATA 17,504 . - 17,143 - ass -
Balochistan 3,504 . - - 3,564 - -
Iskamabad 75,964 8,032 - 188 116 66,528 -
AJK including Gilgit-Biatiistan 574 - - - - - 574
Total 1 .837!39? 1 !01 1!320 730,787 17,402 SITSO 74,187 813
2017 -
Utilization
. Disbursement . KPK inciuding AN including
Province/Ragion Punjab Sindh hi #
1] s 1] i FATA Balochistan Islamahbad Gilgit-Bakistan
Punjab 785,870 785,870 . ; . . .
Sindh 695,306 - 6585 398 - - - -
KPK including FATA 15813 . - 15,813 - - -
Balachistan : . 272 - - - 2372 - -
Islamabad 50,005 - - - 50,008 -
AJK including Gilgit-Baltistan 872 .- _ - - - - 872
Total 1,5505329 785870 - BSE5 356 : 15813 2372 : 50!006 872
Market Risk

Market risk exposes the Bank to the risk of finangial [osses resulting from movements in market prices. It s 1he risk associated with changes in the interest
rates, foreign exchenge rates, equity prices and commodity prices. To martage and conbrol market risk, a comprehensive Board approved Market &
Liquidity Risk Managemant Policy, is in place. The policy outlines a well-defined risk conirol structure, responsibiliies of relevant stakeholders with respact
to market risk management and methods to measure and control market 7isk carried out at a portiolio level. Moregver, it also includes condrols which are
applied, where necessary, 1o individual risk types, to particular books and to specific exposures. These controls include limits on exposure to individual
marked risk variables as well as limils on concentrations of tenors and issuers. This structure is reviewed, adjusied and approved periodically.

Under the BoD approved policy, the Bank's Asset and Liabiiity Gommiltee (ALCO) and tvestment Committee (IC} are primarily responsible for the
oversight of the market risk, supported by market risk rmanagement Unit of Risk Management Division {RMD). The Bank uses the Standardized Approach

isk as per the current regulatory framewark under Basel 11/ i), Furthermore, the Bank carries out risk assessment via
diversified tools including Vaiue al Risk (VaR), Pv01 (price value per basis point) and Duration on a regular basis. The Bank also ascertains the impact of
market risk on relevant factors through stress testing and Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment processes.

Forelgn axchange risk

Foreign exchange {FX) risk arises from the fluctuation in the value of financial instruments due 1o the changas in foreign ak:;hange rates. FXrisk is mainly
managed through matched positions. Unmatehed positions are covered substantially through derivative instruments such as forwards and Swaps,

The Bank also manages FX risk by setting ang monitoring dealer and currency-wise limits. The currency risk is regulated and monitored against the
regulatory/statutory limits enforced by the State Bank of Pakistan. The foreign exchange exposure limits in respective currencies are managed against the
prescribed limits, Risk Assessment with respect to FX risk is alsa canducted on a regular basis through VaR analysis .

The analysis balow represents the concentration of the Bank's foreign cumrency risk for on and off balance sheet financial instruments:

R
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M Currency wise assets and liabilities onsidered above have been pregented on gross basis as per respective currencies.
2018 2017
" Foreign Foraign Net fareign Foreign Foreign Net forat
_bal : sn
r1 Currency Currency :’:L :ta“aen:: currancy Currency Currency ot ba.lance currency
Assets Liabilities axposure Assets Liabilities sheet items exposiire
{Rupees in '000) <{Rupees in 'DOD)
- United Stales Dollar 72,108,056 117,349,741 45,325,354 84,669 61,629,055 80,687,137 20,318,024 1,165,842
. Great Britain Pound Ster 2,339,753 5,093 350 2,760,223 6,626 . 1855845 5,457,565 3,808,651 10,931
Fur . 2,332,247 4,132,522 1,813,236 12,961 189,571 188,056 12,024 3,539
Japanese Yen 315 1.400 3,908 2,823 2,409,902 5,286,262 2,881,800 5,449
- Cther currencies 30,918,270 30,990,150 15877 3.997_ 27,848 884 27,844 252 3,531 §.163
: 107,699,641 157,567,163 49,978 568 111,076 93,637 257 119.473 272 27,024,038 1,188,024
B == - LT L = L TR T
L.} 2018 - 2047
Banking Trading book Banking Trading book
hook book
{Rupees in '000)
Impact of 1% change in foreign exchange rates on
- Profit and loss account - 1111 - 11,880
- Other comprehensive income . - : . -

47.31  Balance sheet split by trading and banking books 2018 2017
. . Banking Trading
Banking book Trading book Total book book Total
{Rupees in "000)
Cash and balances with treasury banks 82,407,736 - 82,407,736 70,381,480 - 70,381,480
Balances with other banks 3,911,554 - 3,911,554 3,993,054 - 3,993,054
Lendings le finangial institwlions 62,172,267 - 62,172 287 48,895,828 - 48,895,828
Investments 231,719,116 47,532,615 279,251,731 378,942,516 22799882 . 401,742,398
Advances 501,638,727 - 501,839,727 400,869,922 - 400,659,922
Fixed assets 18,317,042 - 18,317,042 16,188,502 - 16,198 802
intangible assets 1317271 - 1,317,271 1,508,765 - 1,508,768
Deferred tax assels - - - - - .
Non current assels held for sale 23,589,489 . 23,589,459 26,821,724 - 26,821.724
Other assels 35,938,315 - 35,998,315 30,831,827 - 30,831,827
n 861,072,537 47,832 615 1.008,605,152 978,234 018 23 795882 1 001,033 900
n 47.3.2 Equity posilion Risk
Equity posilion risk arises due to adverse movements in the prices of equilies and instruments exhitiing behavior simifar to equities held by the bank. The
Bank’s equily investments are classified as Available for Sale (AFS} and Held for Trading {HFT) investments. The objective of investments classified as
HFT portfolio is to take advantage of short term capital gains, while the AFS portiolic is maintained wilth a medium term view of capital gains and dividend
income. The Bank’s Investment Committee is primarily responsible for the oversight of the equily investment risk. Market Risk Management Unit of RMD
: maoniters and repors portfolio and scrip level internal and external limits,
2018 2017
Banking book  Trading book Banking Trading book
] book

{Rupeas in '000)

tmpact of 5% change in equity prices on

- Profit and loss account - {6,681) . {1,357}
- Other comprahensive incorne {620,838) - (290,281 .
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474 Yield ! interwst Rate Risk in the Banking Beok MRRBB)-Bases i Specific

Intergsi Rate Risk is the agverse impact on the bank's shareholder's aquity due 1o changes in the interest rales. It may be further etabyraled as chanpes in the presant value of e as5e!, ligbililies and
commilments due to changes in the term struciure of the interasi rates. The Bank is exposed fo inlersst rate rigk Primarily as u result of mismatches in ihe amaunts of assets, iabilies and of-balance
sheel inferes! sensitive instruments within a cenain range of maturdy or re-pricing [whichever is earlier}. The Bank has farmulated a soparate |ntarest Rete Risk Managemant {| RRM framewark which
eslablishes agoregeie and nor-wise balance sheat igvel PV Price Valua of 18p7 bmits b manags Ineres rae risk within the Dasrd approved risk appelite. Treasury and Capital Markets Group Is
primariy rasponsible for management of interest rate risk on a daily basis. and Ihe Asset and Liability Committes (ALCO) overanes the interast rate risk s Bark level. Markal Risk Depariment of Risk
Management Division indepencently monitors, analyses and reponts vanous limits nchiding managernert aclion paint imits and re-pricing of the assets and ligbiites on a regular baslg,

- The increase (dedine) in earmings o economic valua { or any ciher relavant measwes Lsed by management) for upward and dowrward shocks acconding 1o management's mathad for MEasxing

IRRER, brokan down by currencies (it any, and than translated inta Rupees)
2010 2017
Eanking bemtk  Traokig nook  Banking book Trodkmy book
. {Rupens In*009).
Impact of 1% change in wilevest rales on
- Profil and [o8s account {1150 (45 (578 {265)
- Other compranansive ncome - - -
.
4741 hof b Rate Sensitive Assety snd Liebilitios
r— L .
Effecitive Total Mrhrest rish
Yieht! ver [T Crver Crer Over 2 . ver 3 Ovar 3 Koadniwresl
Interest Upto 4 m3 ©s Wonths to 1 Wi w03 s w10 Abore bearing finanolat
taw Mantn Monins Morithe fau Yan Veary Year o 10 Yeury {natrumenta
Om-baBNcE Ahee! THANRGIS INFLruments {Ru Paes In 00]
ALt —
Cach and BANCEE with haksury barks 0% 2407736 1,678,800 - - - - 70731048
Balancys with other barke MY 111584 : - - - - - - 2481070
Lending to hrancial milkusions T14% 8,572,007 LLe | 1002a4d34 L) - | - - . . - -
nycuments ET1% 9.2 120,908 951 $1.257.000 15,172,087 PG 1230428 | 17 247 473 2,800,507 13,227 12212560
- T FOVIRTIF | " 207223 MeR 115,400,750 103211, 140 080,73 1,154,652 1037, 047 £515.904 12008747 1,503,248 2T
Ansets held for nake 23,545,408 23880480
Clther Bssets 19,633 18y B - = = - - B - 31823161
WAS5.705 401,100,795 R ITT E X 48,203,767 Te.8ITMs 16223407 20,809,138 ANEATE [[EE T
Lisihives
Bils payabke 25.5.226 . - - - - - - - . T ETH
Bormovinga 4% 17735 47,493,002 22807 10,848 8ot waTae 6,040 RIo 2,104,432 BATLAGT 200,000 -
Col te 3Rt other accounts 4 TOZNA7.125 mim.m BL002.03% 28,514,501 14,237 801 Ta3.529 1,700,400 13,074 .30 £35.800 20050706
Labrivirs JRainah aneats subitc! 16 Mnamcc lease - - . - - - . - .
Sutordinated dett L3MM 1,590,000 - 1,389,000 - - - -
sl deecty masocisted vath the 2eses
nakl for ale I0AT6.IN
CHhin akubbies 1] hi-J i - = = - -
$20.804,5%1 HAATT W.101.302 17150399 Fd2585

On-balance shaal gap

DFf-balance shesl Aot ncisl insinamanis
Donsmeniary credng and shon-tenm-

G balanca shier gap
Tolal ¥ widbnbeiwst Risk Sansvly Gap

o ik

Rk

trackre lotnd warsactions 14 112422 14,006,517 38,507 ge? 34051202 2LERAITD 8242, 240 124,24 A, 820,083 ATE. 781 1050 Sbt
Commimenis i 1scpect of _ t
= Fareand snchange conlracts - pure hure 012 63 8 91E 857 L E TR 12728 340,128 - - - - - -
= Forwsnd enchame conracts - aae L AER, ] AT T 26 A Eie 12,002.0T% 410, 0e - - - - - .
- ierew Rate Swaps . wcspts 16,853 Tok 1, bt 057 LE LR 347,188 - - - - . . -
= Inieresi Rade Swaps . paymants 15,850 TO8 - - 3,540,078 1024, 60 1,38 510 +EE T 1140888 1300820 . -
« Futures - yabe 1,400 313 - 1 F) - N - - - _ .

o " .

Rish y Gep

Totzl hnanclal mssels ax per nple 4T 4,1

4742 Reconciision of Askets and Liabllitlas sipesed bo yis|o f Interest rate risk with Total Assets and Liaillties

2014
~—{Rupets In 00a)——

[y Wontha to + w1 tad o s 1010 iove !
Tk Month Honins Months Yo Vears Yoar Yuars Vamis 10 Yaurs “"m’-';:"“ ek
On-badunce shevt fingnoial insirumangs {Rupees In DOD)
A sats - —
Cth and b slarces wilh ey barks 2024 70,381,480 7553785 - - - 52,807,083
Balantes wity othver barka 137% 300305 324,300 85840 - - - - - 201520
L snding 10 finencisl irawions. 37M% A5 pakaze |- 30693824 16,021,827 217182 - - - - - - -
Irve B ater e LY 404,742,308 BB.286.210 42,701 317 26814 457 4,753,061 #4857, 519 3,270 395 13,654 355 . 30,078 200,480 #.655078
AOVARGE S TR 400558922 174715055 63137 877 BO.TESAET B4R 451 1.890.672 1,810 295 013127 17, B3E, %3 ATAT 455 442,040
ASETS R lar nok 26521724 - . - . - - - - - 26.871.724
Oher aycels 28621 - . - - - - - B . 1
361,418,577 01,483 484 24 7M 518 105752, 308 51238512 45,373 4 FZRIT™T 41,578 492 24,136 441 4038234 REENELER 1]
LrbaTara
Bk ogvabie 20,882 97 - B - . - - - B - 20 882870
Bomawinim & 0% 207.538.539 133,022, 658 A.27E 497 8,265 619 17,754 270 7438 114,330 203420 6143008 - -
Depcrads and athar acotunis 280 B4 524 984 240,600 247 31,204,080 §raTlzH 16,094 924 E10.095 A0 P B3.329 - - ZER.385 016
Subniammked debt B7TR &, 091,000 - 4. 1,800 - - - - . - - -
Liabilt 4 cirecily aasocinted with the assel -
held for galy 759 096 - - . - - . 24,730 056
CHher it ik g 1 - - : - - - - - . 28,780 B8
B2, 685 MO0 I eI 56,530,577 TE AN HA 33 856198 &5Y.535 471 2T A5, 449 B 141 608 - 240.828 832
un-balance sheal gap 51 ix 72,204 B4 14815, 33 113 64E [ERTIFIT] CTREFTF M Y- X TF] Ap.0p3 043 BN 4038334 {05, L]
Uif-balance sheat Ta il Inyiummts
Dacumentary crodids and shoclberm- 137 850,164 22947004 38820408 41,785,008 20807234 5,485,941 T 083 ELLE ) 6.540,502 T -
M -rBae o et homy
-Forwaig #xchangs corkracts - puchage 60,285 544 27287434 22,912 3ot 8575250 1510860 - . - - -
- Forre)d auchangs contracts - sae 31.822.208 B2He% 12121,629 10,859.20@ 831 416 - -
= ITAraEt Hate Suags Bl ] BAESTSE 12508 8,923,158 . . - - . - -
- 'Heresl Rt Swaps * PP BAGSTEE - - - b 4,309 375 1184472 2.143.135 1104173 - =
UH-balnca shee pap d 12506 CEN TN ] Jo,485 137 71 BBE £T4 ntee; £34 3,089 ) 03 hd
Total Yieldmumeres Risk Senaltiviey Gap 34 204 747 BAD -] 30 05 Y78 26,208 L1 4308835 4! L-}

2017

984,895 709 - 981 416,372
Add; Non hnancial assen

Il’.:?mqlng fined azsais N 10,397,042 16,198,502

O‘::?i:le; . 1172 1.608.763

55 8561

Total agsots as per simlement of financial postian qatsaad 1252

Tolal financial umbiitins as pernoe 47 4 1

1,002.605.152 _ 1,001,033 900

Add Nen finangial Nabities PR a1 479865850
o M

O::ermd ux finbiiie g 2,000,097 3,443,012

ther linbinkies 1388, 312 74 548

Total lighilniag as per el o fi pasition z

—_—mt s S/4nT
531&83 300 93‘.203’520

— L el
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Operational Risk

Basel Il defines Operational risk as. “the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or

fram external events.” In compliance with the Risk Management Guidelines, issued by SBP, an Operational Risk Management (ORM)
Unit is established within RMD. .

The Operational risk management policy of the Bank is duly approved by the Board and Operational Risk Management Manual covers
the processes, structure and functions of Operaticnal risk managernent and provides guidelines to identify, assess, monitor, control
and report operational risk in a consistent and transparent manner across the Bank.

Operational Risk Disclosures - Basel Il Specific

Bank Alfalah Limited is ameng the first few banks to secure SBP approval for adoption of Alternative Standardized Approach [ASA)
under Basel il for determining capitai charge on Cperational Risk in December 2013 and Bank started calculating its capital charge for
operational risk on ASA in its financials from December 31, 2013, . '

The SBP Approval stipulated a capital floor i.e. operational risk charge under ASA should net fall below as a cerfain percentage of
cperational risk capital charge cafculated under Basic Indicator Approach for initial 3 years. Thesa floors were 90% for 2013 and 2014,
80% for 2015 and 70% for 2016.However, removal of Capital Floor for calculation, of Capital Charge under ASA was extended in line
with Iniemational developments and consultations of the Bassl Committee on Banking Supervision {BCDBS), State Bank of Pakistan is
in process of reviewing its instructions on Operational risk,

The Banik's ORM framework and practices address all the significant areas of ORM within the Bank including Risk- Centrol Self
Assessment (RCSA), Key Risk Indicators {KRIs), Operational Loss Dala Management, and Operational Risk Reporting. The ORM
Unit engages with Bank’s business / support units and regularly coltaboraies in determining and reviewing the risks, and suggests
conlrols an need basis, Additionally, all the policies, precedures and systems of the Bark are reviewed from the operational risk
perspective, and the recommendations of RMD are taken into cansideration before their approval. A Process improvement Committee
{PIC) in this regard has been formed to evatuate and consider the recommendations of all the reviewers. Further, the unit also reviews
functional specification documents (FSDs} and reviews / test the functionalities and systems prepared on premise of the FSD. The
Operational Loss Database and KRIs systems are in place which have been further enhanced and the reports are submitted to
Central Management Committee and Board Risk Managemant Committee. State Bank has further extended the timeline for collection
of loss data base reponis till further notice. :

-

- . .
~ As required by Basel, Bank has categorized all its operational loss/near miss incidents into following loss event categaries:

pr

- Internal Fraud
- External Fraud
- Employment Practice & Workplace Safety

- Client, Product & Business Practice

- Damage to Physical Assets _

- Business Disruption & Systern Failure - -
- Execution, Delivery & Process Management

And also mapped the incidents into following Business Lines:

- Retail Banking

- Commercial Banking

- Corporate Finance

- Trading & Sales

- Payment & Settlerment

- Agency Sarvices

- Cost centers/Centralized funclions

IT Security Risk

The Bank has in place an IT Security Risk Management Policy and an IT Management Policy, duly approved by the Board of
Directors, which derive from the regulatory mandates and the I1SO 27001:2013 international standards framework. A dedicated (T
Security Risk Management unit, functioning within RMO manages 1T and information security rigks to bank's technology assets by
developing IT security basalines for IT solutions that support producls and services, Security solutions selection, and acquisition .
including vendor and/or service provider selection managed by IT Security in close coordination with ITG and procurement/central
administration, monitoring of threats and vulnerabilities though Security Operations Centre{ 24/7 ). investigation of reported

and Board IT Committee(BITC) /ITSC/Board.

Environmental & Social Risk Management Unit

Initiative to integrate sustainable finance approach in credit evaluation and approval process. Being a responsible corporate citizen
wherever the Holding company operates, it has an integrated sustainable finance approach in its lending activities. In this regard

putin place in clese coordination with IFC.

The £5MS Framework essentially requires that any relevant fending opportunity is to be reviewed and avaluated under against;

- IFC Exclusion List )

- Applicabig national lawe on environment, health, safety and social issues
- IFC Perormance Standards. :

Tf]is Framework is an integral part of the credit approval process and al! relevant credit proposals require clearance of E&S Officer
Prior to approval of the eompetent authority. The Envirenmental & Social Rigk Management Unit, part of RMD and E&S Unit is
responsible for identifying, vetting and approving projects from an Environmental & Sacial Management Risk (ESRM) perspective.
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ﬂ 47.5.4 Credit Risk

63 BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

This unit is primarily responsibie for development and management of Credif Risk Systems including Credit initiation & Internal Rating
System (CNRS) and its related modules like Bank Alfalah CAR Calculator (BACK). it also Supports other credit refaled autornation &
ﬂ cptimization initiatives like eCIB automation and Credit Dacision engine for Consumer Finance Group as desired by Management
from time to'time.

H 47.5.% Country risk

Country nisk, refers to the possibility that economic and political conditions in a foreign country could adversely impact the Bank's

8xposure in that country. For the Bank, country risk arises as a result of the Bank's foreign currency lending, trade and treasury

" business with counterparties domiciled in other countries as well as investments and capital transactions. In order to manage the risk,
[-J Bank has in place a comprehensive country risk management framework. Under this framework, the transfer risk is measured using

their utilization are monitared and manzged at head office level and country risk exposurss are reperted to the relevant committees at
a defined fraquency.
47.6 Liquidity Risk
E Liquidity is a financial institution’s capacity to meet its obligations as they fall due without incurring losses. Liguidity risk is the risk 1o an
c: institution's earnings, capital & raputation arising from its inabifity (real or parceived) to meet its contractuat obligations in z tirety

manner without incurring unaceeptabla losses when they come due.

With reference to SBF Basel Il| Liquidity Standards issued under BPRD circular # 08 dated June 23, 2016, Bank Alfalah calculates
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) on monthly basis. Based on December 31, 2018 numbsrs Bank’s LCR is 1.42 or 142% against SBP
minimum requirement of 100%, with Total Stock of High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA} of PKR 281,732.849 million and Net Cash
Qutflows of PKR 198,337.514 millicn.

Moreaver, under the sama circular the Banke are expecied to calculate Net Stabie F unding Ratio (NSFR) on quarterly basis. Based on
December 31, 2018 numbers Bank Alfalah's NSFR is 123% against SBP minimum requirement of 100%, with Total Available Stable

Funding of PKR 630,582.995 million and Total Required Stable Funding of PKR 472 759,178 millign.

The Bank manages and controls liquidity risk through a detailed risk managemsnt framework, -which includes 80D approved policy,
management level procedural document and Asset & Liability Committee (ALCO) level guidelines. Under this framework, various

U liquidity metrics ara imptemented and monitored on a regular basis.

At BAFL, BoD approves the Liquidity Risk Policy. Further, it alsa approves the Bank's overall liquidity risk appetite and broad liquidity
risk strategy through Annual Business Plan. The Bank's ALCO is primarily fespensible for the implementation of BaD's strategy

Management Unit is responsible for independent monitoring of the overall liquidity risk in line with regulatory requirements and bank’s
own risk appetite. . ' !

The Bank's overall funding strategy is based on the'prihciples of diversification and stability. The Bank has a diverse funding base,
which includes stable funding in the form of equity, Sub-ordinated Ioans, retail and small business deposits. Moreover, far non-stable
funding in form of Large Volume Depositors. The Bank has in place internally approved limits 1o monitor and Manage risk emanating
from volatile funding concentration. Moreover, the Bank is fully compliant with Basel Il] LCR and NSFR, which ensure sufficient stock
of High Quality Liquidity Assets in relation ta its liability prafile.

At BAFL, Stress Testing is used in an atlampt to highlight the vulnerability of the Bank's Balance Sheet to hypothetical stress events
and scenarios. Under the same, liquidity r i

calculated. BAFL carries out the stress testing based on SBP Stress Tests and internal defined scenarios to gauge the potential
impacts of different liquidity stress seenarios on the Bank's stock of liquid assets. The results are shared with the senior management
BoD and the regulator.

At BAFL, Centingency Funding Pian, is implemented to address liquidity issues in times of stress / criges situations. The Global
Treasury prepares the CFPs for all operations on annual basis for identifying the stress scenarios and the funding plan for such

scenarios along with early waming indicators. These plans are reviewed by the Risk Management Division and are approved by the
ALCQO annually. :

cash outflow is mainly determineg through votatility of the Bank's liabiiity profile. The table befow showcases the composition of HOLA
as of December 31, 2018,

HOLA* Market Value V\{eighled Amount
-----{Rupees in 000)----..

Leval 1 Assets 279,406 840 279,406 840

Level 2A Assets - -

Level 2B Assets 4652019 2,328,008
i 284,058 859 281,732,848

»

u Main drivers of LCR resulis are HQOLA and Net Cash Quiflow. HQLA is defined by the liquidity quality of the Bank's assets and net

* These have been defined in detail in SBP Gircular Na. 08, dated June 23, 2018, f./
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66 BANK ALFALAH LIMITED

Derivative Risk

The Bank currently deals in derivative instruments namely forward exchange contracts, Interest rate swaps and futures with
the principle view to hedge risks associated with interest rates and foreign exchange risk.

Interest rate swaps and futures are conducted to hedge interest rate risk present in the Bank's foreign currency bend
portfalio. With respect 1o forward exchange contracts, the bank offers such products to protect customers from adverse
movements in foreign currencies. On a bast effort basis, the respective positions are then hedged/matched in the inter-bank
market. Open positions, if any, are managed through regulatory and other intemal limits that includes Foreign Exchange
Exposure Limits and Currency wise NOP Limits.

Market Risk Department under the Risk Management Division performs hedge effectiveness testing of foreign cyrrency
bond portfolio against interest rate swaps and futures on a periodic basis. The results are then shared with the concerned
stakeholders and strategies are devised/revisited in coordination with Treasury to align the outcomes with established rigk .
parameters, i

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The Board of Directors in itg meeting held on February 21, 2018 has announced cash dividend of 5L percent (2017:
10%). This appropriation will be approved in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2018 do not include the effect of this appropriation which will be accounted for in the finandial

statements for the year ending December 31, 2019.
DATE OF AUTHORISATION

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on February 21, 2019 by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company,

GENERAL

Comparative information has been re-classified, re-arranged or additionally incorporated in these financial statements,
wherever necessary to facilitate comparison.M f._,

President/Chief Executive CHj_éf Financial Officer ‘ Director Dirgctor ' / Director



